Public Document Pack

Audit,
Governance &
Standards

Committee

Thu 14 A or REDDITGH B0R0UGK COUNCI
2022 E,
7.00 pm 2\

N %%/Yeﬂ\ )

www.redditchbe.gov.uk

Council Chamber
Redditch Town Hall




If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Jo Gresham

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 (Ext. 3031)
e.mail : joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE MEETINGS

At the current time, seating at the meeting will be placed in such a way as to achieve
as much space as possible for social distancing to help protect meeting participants.

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, please do not
hesitate to contact the officer named above.

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON

Members and Officers who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are encouraged to
take a test on the day of the meeting. Meeting attendees who do not have access to LFTs
are encouraged not to attend a Committee if they have any of the following common
symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a new and continuous
cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

Whilst the Council acknowledges that it is no longer a legal requirement to wear face masks,
we would really appreciate if the Members who attend a meeting in person would consider
wearing a face covering throughout the meeting unless they are exempt or speaking.

The meeting venue will be fully ventilated, and Members and officers may need to consider
wearing appropriate clothing in order to remain comfortable during proceedings.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

The usual process for public speaking at Committee meetings will continue to be followed
subject to some adjustments which allow written statements to be read out on behalf of
residents and the virtual participation of residents at meetings of the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee. Members of the public are encouraged to log in virtually, either to
speak or observe meetings wherever possible.

Members of the public will be able to access the meeting if they wish to do so. Seating will be
placed in such a way as to achieve as much space as possible for social distancing to help
protect meeting participants. Whilst the Council acknowledges that it is no longer a legal
requirement to wear face masks, it would be really appreciated if members of the public who
attend a meeting in person would consider wearing a face covering throughout the meeting
unless they are exempt or speaking. It should be noted that members of the public who
choose to attend in person do so at their own risk.


mailto:joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Members of the public who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are encouraged to
take a test on the day of the meeting. Meeting attendees who do not have access to LFTs
are encouraged not to attend a Committee if they have any of the following common
symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a new and continuous
cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

Notes:

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council might have
to move into closed session to consider exempt or confidential information. For
agenda items that are exempt, the public are excluded.



REDDITGH BOR0UGH COUNCIL
—_— '

Thursday, 14th April, 2022

Audit, o0 om
Governance & Committee Room 2 Town Hall
Standards

Agenda Membership:
Clirs: Juliet Brunner (Vice- Julian Grubb
Chair) Emma Marshall
Salman Akbar Timothy Pearman
Tom Baker-Price David Thain
Luke Court Vacant Seat

1. Apologies and named Substitutes

2. Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and/or Other Disclosable
Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of those interests.

3. Minutes (Pages 1 -8)

4. Public Speaking

Members of the public have an opportunity to speak at meetings of the Audit, Governance
and Standards Committee. In order to do so members of the public must register by 12 noon
two working days before the day of the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee

A maximum of 15 minutes will be allocated to public speaking.
Monitoring Officer's Report - Standards Regime (Pages 9 - 12)
New Model Code of Conduct (Pages 13 - 36)

Grant Thornton - External Audit Sector Update (Pages 37 - 50)

Grant Thornton - External Audit Plan 2020/21 (Pages 51 - 80)

© o N o o0

Grant Thornton - Informing The Audit Risk Assessment (Pages 81 - 114)



Audit, Governance &
Standards

Thursday, 14th April, 2022

10. internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 115 - 156)

11. Capital Strategy 2022/23 incorporating the Treasury Management Strategy
(Pages 157 - 196)

12. Rrisk Management Report (Pages 197 - 202)
13. Review of the Independent Member (Pages 203 - 210)
14. risk Champion Verbal Update - Councillor Baker-Price

15. committee Work Programme (Pages 211 - 212)



This page is intentionally left blank



Public DoR¥fment Pack Agenda ltem 3

REDDITCH BUROUEH COUCIL
=2

Audit,
M.reddiichbc.gov.uk G overnance Thursd ay, 27th Janu ary,

& 2022
Standards

Committee

N”NUTES Present:

Councillor Jennifer Wheeler (Chair), and Councillors Salman Akbar,
Tom Baker-Price, Luke Court, Julian Grubb, Emma Marshall,
Timothy Pearman and David Thain

Also Present:

Councillor Mike Rouse — Portfolio Holder for Finance and Enabling (via
Microsoft Teams)

Jackson Murray - Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton

Officers:

Andy Bromage, Claire Felton and James Howse.

Democratic Services Officers:

Jo Gresham

27. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Juliet
Brunner.

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest.
29. MINUTES

The minutes from the previous meeting of the Audit, Governance
and Standards Committee held on 28t October 2021 were

Chair



Page 2 Agenda Item 3

Audit,
Governance &
Standards

Committee

Thursday, 27th January, 2022

submitted for Members’ consideration. During consideration of this
item the scheduling of the Recruitment of the Independent Member
item was queried by some Members. It was confirmed that at the
last meeting held in October 2021 it was agreed that the item would
be considered at the Committee meeting due to be held in April
2022. It was also confirmed that the item was included on the
Committee’s Work Programme.

Councillor Jenny Wheeler welcomed Councillor David Thain to the
Committee.

RESOLVED that

The minutes from the meeting held on 28" October 2021 were
atrue and accurate record.

30. PUBLIC SPEAKING
There were no registered public speakers on this occasion.
31. MONITORING OFFICER'S REPORT - STANDARDS REGIME

The Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services presented
the Monitoring Officer’s report for the Committee’s consideration
and in doing so highlighted the following:

e There had been no new Member complaints received since
the last meeting of the Committee and there were non-
ongoing.

¢ Significant progress had been made in implementing a pan-
Worcestershire New Model Code of Conduct and that an
update would be provided to the Committee at the meeting
scheduled for 14™ April 2022.

¢ In light of the removal of Plan B Guidelines, the Council
continued to take a risk assessed approach to Council
meetings and thanked Members for their continued support
in this area.

RESOLVED that



Page 3 Agenda Item 3

Audit,
Governance &
Standards

Committee

Thursday, 27th January, 2022

The Monitoring Officer’s report be noted.
32. GRANT THORNTON - SECTOR UPDATE

The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton provided Members with
the Sector Update report for the consideration of Members. In doing
so Members’ attention was drawn to the following:

e The Financial Reporting Council published its annual reports
in October 2021. It was explained that the Financial
Reporting Council were the ‘Auditor of the auditors’ and
reviewed nine of Grant Thornton’s audits for the financial
year 2020/21. Of the nine audits that were reviewed; six files
were graded as ‘Good’ and three as ‘Improvements
Required’. None of the files that were reviewed were graded
as ‘Significant Improvements required’. In addition to this
Members were informed that in respect of Value for Money
work carried out, a high standard of delivery continued and of
the six reviews undertaken by the Financial Reporting
Council all were graded as ‘Good with Limited
Improvements’.

e The Quality Assurance Department (QAD) team from the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(ICAEW) carried out annual reviews of non-major local
audits. The five Grant Thornton audits reviewed by the
ICAEW for the financial year 2020-21 were all found to be
‘Satisfactory/ Generally Acceptable’.

e The importance of Public Interest Reports (PIRS) in order to
understand the issues facing Local Government following a
difficult two years as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Chair thanked the Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton for
a straightforward report.

RESOLVED that

The Grant Thornton Sector Update report be noted.



Audit,

Governance &

Standards

Committee

Page 4 Agenda Item 3

Thursday, 27th January, 2022

33.

GRANT THORNTON - ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2019/20

The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton presented the Annual
Audit Letter for 2019/20 to the Committee and in doing so Members’
attention was drawn to the following:

The Annual Audit Letter 2019-20 summarised the key
findings arising from the work carried out by Grant Thornton
to the year ending 315t March 2020. It was explained that this
was a public facing document that was available to relevant
stakeholders.

An unqualified opinion was given on the Council’s financial
statements on 8" November 2021. Included in this opinion
was an emphasis of matter paragraph regarding the property
and land valuations. It was confirmed that this issue had
been reported to Members at the last meeting of the
Committee and was in respect of a small piece of land that
had been sold but had not been included in the Fixed Asset
Register (FAR). It was reiterated to Members that the
relevant officers had provided Grant Thornton with
appropriate assurance that this was an isolated occurrence.
Members were concerned about this conclusion; however,
they were reassured that this was an anomaly and that it was
hoped that next year’s working papers would be of a higher
quality in order to inform the audit.

A Variation of Fees had been proposed by Grant Thornton
as a result of the extra work that had been undertaken. It
was reported that the proposed fee for the year ending
2019/21 was £76,379. This variation had been submitted to
the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) to be
reviewed. Further information was provided to Members
regarding the variation of fees and the Committee was
informed that an additional £8k had been included in the fees
which was to cover the extra work and time that been
necessary due to the Covid-19 pandemic and associated
lockdowns. Some Members were interested in what the ‘New
accounting standards’ fee related to. It was explained that
these were fees that had been introduced as a result of the
proposed implementation of IFRS16. Although the



Audit,

Page 5 Agenda Item 3

Thursday, 27th January, 2022

Governance &
Standards

Committee

34.

implementation IFRS16 had now been postponed until 2023-
24, preparatory work had been carried out by Grant Thornton
which had resulted in necessity to include in the £1.5k to
cover this work.

e The draft Statement of Accounts for 2020-21 were expected
by 315t March 2022 and it was acknowledged that this could
potentially mean that the final Statement of Accounts would
be almost a year later than outlined in the External Audit
Plan 2020-21.

During the discussion Members concluded that this had not been a
normal year in which to carry out an audit and thanked officers for
their hard work. It was noted by the Chair that, it was hoped that, as
a result of the new Enterprise Resource Planning system the future
working arrangements for external audits would be more efficient
and that this would result in fewer costs. This was reiterated by the
Executive Director of Resources who stated that he hoped that for
future audits the quality of papers would drive the timeline for the
audit which should result in the costs being lower.

RESOLVED that
The Grant Thornton Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 be noted.

DECISION TO OPT INTO THE NATIONAL SCHEME FOR
AUDITOR APPOINTMENTS MANAGED BY PSAA

The Executive Director of Resources presented the report in
respect of the Decision to opt into the National Scheme For Auditor
Appointments Managed by PSAA. He reported that Members were
being asked to vote on the recommendation included in the report,
which was, to accept the invitation to opt into the sector-led option
for the appointment of external auditors for a period of 5 years from
2023. It was confirmed that there were other options that Members
could consider if they so wished. This included procurement of their
own auditor rather an a PSAA appointed auditor which would
require additional resource.



Audit,

Page 6 Agenda Item 3

Thursday, 27th January, 2022

Governance &

Standards

Committee

35.

It was stated to Members that some of the information included in
the report was from the Local Government Association (LGA) who,
it was noted, strongly supported the PSAA option. In addition to this
the following was highlighted for Members’ consideration:

e Quality vs price — although it was acknowledged that were
the Council to procure an auditor outside of the National
Scheme for Auditor Appointments it may result in lower
costs however the quality of the audit would also likely to be
lower, particularly as there was a limited supply of auditors
who were experienced in carrying out audits at Local
Authorities. Members agreed that the level of quality was
hugely important and therefore accepted that this could
result in higher fees, regardless of procurement route.
However as clarified by the Executive Director of
Resources, given the bulk buying power of the National
Scheme for Auditor Appointment, a quality audit procured in
this way is likely to be more cost effective.

RECOMMENDED that

the Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into
the sector-led option for the appointment of external
auditors to principal local government and police bodies
for a procurement period of five financial years from 1 April
2023 (that is to say from 2023/24 to 2027/28) be accepted.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee received the regular Internal Audit Progress report
from the Head of Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service. It
was explained that this report was for the period 15t April 2021 to
31t December 2021 against the performance indicators agreed.

During the presentation of the report the following was highlighted
for Members’ attention:

e Four reviews, including General Data Protection Regulations
(GDPR) and Worcester Regulatory Services, had been



Page 7 Agenda Item 3

Audit,
Governance &
Standards

Committee

Thursday, 27th January, 2022

completed since the last meeting of the Committee in
October 2021. Two reviews, Budget Monitoring and Benefits,
were at clearance stage.

e One high priority recommendation had been identified as
part of the GDPR review. This recommendation was in
respect of the two-factor authentication for third parties who
were not internal employees of Redditch Borough Council.
Members were very keen to get this high priority
recommendation addressed as soon as possible due to the
high level of associated risk. It was reported that this was
identified in November 2021 and was being followed up by
the Data Protection Officer who was working on appropriate
mitigations in this area. It was also confirmed to Members
that all recommendations were appropriately monitored
however it was noted that there had been some slippage in
this instance however there would be further updates
provided in February and March 2022.

e A nationwide cyber issue, LOG4J, had been experienced
late in 2021 which had not been included in the review. It
was considered to be a potential security threat. It was
clarified to Members that this threat was not specific to
Redditch Borough Council and that many organisations had
experienced this cyber issue.

At the end of the report the Chair thanked the head of Internal
Shared Service for his thorough report.

RESOLVED that
The Internal Audit Progress Report be noted.
36. RISK CHAMPION UPDATE - COUNCILLOR BAKER-PRICE
During the Risk Champion update, Councillor Baker-Price
highlighted to Members what the potential risks over the coming

year might be to the Council. These were as follows:

e Pressure of inflation — this would be a risk that presented
itself for this and future years.



Page 8 Agenda Item 3

Audit,
Governance &
Standards

Committee

Thursday, 27th January, 2022

e Changes to the rules on borrowing for Local Authorities.

e Training for Members — due to the changes in rules from
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) it was important that Members understood any new
changes and that in order to better understand this he felt
that Audit, Governance and Standards training would be
necessary. The Executive Director of Resources agreed with
this and undertook to work with officers in order to get this
underway.

RESOLVED that
The Risk Champion Verbal Update be noted.

37. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
The Senior Democratic Services Officer present confirmed that any
additional items that had been identified by Members during the
course of the meeting, would be added to the Committee’s Work
Programme.

RESOLVED that

the contents of the Committee’s Work Programme be noted.

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm
and closed at 8.17 pm




Page 9

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance &

Standards Committee
2022

14% April

MONITORING OFFICER’S REPORT

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Councillor Mike Rouse - Portfolio

Holder for Finance and Enabling
(including Governance)

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Yes

Report Author Job Title: Head of Legal, Democratic and
Claire Felton Property Services
Contact email:
c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Wards Affected N/A
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s)

An Effective and Sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

advance of the meeting.

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee is asked to

RESOLVE that:-

1) subject to Members’ comments, the report be noted

2. BACKGROUND

2.1

This report sets out the position in relation to key standards regime

matters which are of relevance to the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee since the last update provided at the meeting of

the Committee in January 2022.

2.2

It has been proposed that a report of this nature be presented to each

meeting of the Committee to ensure that Members are kept updated
with any relevant standards matters.

Agenda Iltem 5



mailto:c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 10 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance &

Standards Committee 14t April
2022

2.3 Any further updates arising after publication of this report, including any
relevant standards issues raised by Parish Councils, will be reported
on orally by Officers at the meeting.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  There are no financial implications arising out of this report.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  Chapter 7 of Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011 (‘the Act’) places a
requirement on authorities to promote and maintain high standards of
conduct by Members and co-opted (with voting rights) Members of an
authority. The Act also requires the authority to have in place
arrangements under which allegations that either a district or parish
councillor has breached his or her Code of Conduct can be
investigated, together with arrangements under which decisions on
such allegations can be made.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1 ltis important to ensure that the Council manages standards regime
matters in an appropriate manner. The issues detailed in this report
help to ensure that there is an effective and sustainable Council.

Climate Change Implications

5.2  There are no specific climate change implications

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1  There are no direct implications arising out of this report. Details of the
Council’'s arrangements for managing standards complaints under the
Localism Act 2011 are available on the Council’'s website and from the
Monitoring Officer on request.



Page 11 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance &

Standards Committee 14t April
2022

Operational Implications

6.2 Member Complaints

Since the last meeting of the Committee, there have been no new
Member complaints received and there are none ongoing.

The New Normal

6.3  Since 7th May 2021, elected Members have needed to attend formal
Committee meetings in person. These rules do not apply to informal
meetings, such as Scrutiny Task Groups or Member training and
consequently a lot of informal and private meetings continue to take
place remotely.

6.4  Throughout the pandemic a risk-assessed approach has been adopted
by the Council when organising and holding committee meetings.
Arrangements continue to be reviewed on a monthly basis, taking into
account local case numbers and national rules. Group leaders are
consulted on arrangements.

6.5 The Member Support Steering Group met on 15" February 2022 and
considered potential additional training and the draft Member Induction
programme for Councillors due to be elected in May 2022.

6.6  The Constitutional Review Working Party met on 3@ March 2022. Any
recommendations arising from meetings of this group will be reported

to Council for Members’ consideration.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1  The main risks associated with the details included in this report are:
e Risk of challenge to Council decisions; and
¢ Risk of complaints about elected Members.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

No appendices.



Page 12 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance &

Standards Committee 14t April
2022

Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date
Councillor Mike Rouse — April 2022
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for
Governance

Claire Felton - Head of Legal, April 2022
Lead Director / Head of Equalities and Democratic

Service Services and Monitoring
Officer
Financial Services N/A

Claire Felton - Head of Legal, | April 2022
Legal Services Equalities and Democratic
Services and Monitoring
Officer




Page 13 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
14 April
2022

New Worcestershire-wide Member Code of Conduct

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Rouse

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Claire Felton

Report Author Job Title: Clare Flanagan
Contact

email:clare.flanagan@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 01527 534112 x3173

Wards Affected n/a

Ward Councillor(s) consulted n/a

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) n/a

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision n/a

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked:
1) to review the Worcestershire-wide draft Code of Conduct at

Appendix 1 and its appendices, and consider whether it
recommends its adoption by the Council

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Committee will recall from previous reports that the National
Committee on Standards and Public Life carried out a review of the
operation of the Standards Regime under the Localism Act 2011. The
report on the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations
and resulting changes to the Council’s arrangements for handling
member complaints was considered by this committee on 26 November
2020.

2.2 In December 2020 the Local Government Association (LGA) published a
model Code of Conduct as part of its work in supporting the sector to
continue to aspire to high standards of leadership and performance. It
was broadly similar to the current Worcestershire-wide Code. The main
areas where it differed were:

e The LGA Code included detailed guidance to explain the
reasons for obligations and how they should be followed



Page 14 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
14 April
2022

e Itincluded a statement about a right to respectful behaviour from
the public which is not referred to in the Worcestershire-wide
Code

¢ Itincluded an obligation to undertake Code of Conduct training
provided by the local authority

e The value for registering gifts and hospitality is £50 compared to
£15 in the Worcestershire Code

e There was more detail about registering and declaring Other
Interests. The LGA Code states (in table 2) that Councillors
have a personal interest in any business where it relates to or
affects any body of which a Councillor is in general control or
management and to which they are nominated or appointed by
the Council. This is in direct contrast to the current situation in
the Worcestershire Code where appointment to an outside body
by the Council does not automatically mean that an Other
Interest should be declared.

2.2 The LGA Model was offered as a template and it was recognised that
councils might either adopt it or make local amendments to it.

2.3Members have previously expressed a preference for a Code of
Conduct that applies to all councils across the County and at all tiers of
local government, as is currently the case in Worcestershire and so
resolved at its meeting on 11 March 2021 to refer the LGA Model Code
to the Monitoring Officers across the County to consider the feedback
from this and the other Standards Committees, and bring back a new
pan-Worcestershire Code for consideration / adoption.

2.4 Attached at Appendix 1 is the draft Code of Conduct as proposed by
the Monitoring Officers following their discussions. The changes
and/or additions to the LGA Model Code are highlighted in the attached
draft so that members can see what they are. There are a number of
appendices, which support the core document. These are:

- Appendix A: The Ten Principles of Public Life;

- Appendix B: Guide to Registerable Interests set out in
Table A — Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Table B — Other Registerable Interests;

- Appendix C: Best Practice Recommendations

- Appendix D: to be read alongside:
ACAS Guide and
Guidance on The Public Sector Equalities Duty

This suite of documents comprises the proposed Code of Conduct.
These are being referred to all of the local authorities across



Page 15 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
14 April
2022

Worcestershire for consideration and adoption.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  Under the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to adopt a Code
of Conduct, which it has. Following a review of the operation of the
Standards regime under the Localism Act, carried out by the
Committee for Standards in Public Life, the Local Government
Association issued a new Model Code for adoption or local
amendment.

4.2  Adoption by the Council will ensure compliance with the requirements

of the Localism Act and the Code proposed here will meet members’
requirement for a pan-Worcestershire Code of Conduct.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

51 n/a

Climate Change Implications

5.2 n/a

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 n/a

Operational Implications

6.2 n/a

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS




Page 16 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
14 April
2022

e Appendix 1 —Member Code of Conduct and supporting documents.

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Councillor Mike Rouse

Portfolio Holder Various
Lead Director / Head of Claire Felton Various
Service

Financial Services N/A

Legal Services Claire Felton Various

Policy Team (if equalities | n/a
implications apply)

Climate Change Officer (if | n/a
climate change
implications apply)




Page 17 Agenda Item 6

Local L8

Government

Association

Local Government Association
Model Councillor Code of Conduct 2020

Joint statement

The role of councillor across all tiers of local government is a vital part of our country’s
system of democracy. It is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all
adopt the behaviors and responsibilities associated with the role. Our conduct as an
individual councillor affects the reputation of all councillors. We want the role of councillor to
be one that people aspire to. We also want individuals from a range of backgrounds and
circumstances to be putting themselves forward to become councillors.

As councillors, we represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver
local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to represent our local
area, taking decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. We have both an individual and
collective responsibility to meet these expectations by maintaining high standards and
demonstrating good conduct, and by challenging behaviour which falls below expectations.

Importantly, we should be able to undertake our role as a councillor without being
intimidated, abused, bullied, or threatened by anyone, including the general public.

This Code has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct and
safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 18 Agenda Item 6

Introduction

The Local Government Association (LGA) has developed this Model Councillor Code of
Conduct, in association with key partners and after extensive consultation with the sector,
as part of its work on supporting all tiers of local government to continue to aspire to high
standards of leadership and performance. It is a template for councils to adopt in whole
and/or with local amendments.

All councils are required to have a local Councillor Code of Conduct.

The LGA will undertake an annual review of this Code to ensure it continues to be fit- for-
purpose, incorporating advances in technology, social media and changes in legislation. The
LGA can also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the
application of the Code and the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) and the

county associations of local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish
councils.

The LGA Model Councillor Code of Conduct has been reviewed by councils across Worcestershire
together with Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority and slightly amended to provide a pan-
Worcestershire Code. The relevant Monitoring Officers will undertake further reviews of this Code
should further significant changes be recommended by the LGA.

Definitions

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or co-opted
member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is defined in
the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of the authority but
who

a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint sub-
committee of the authority;

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that
committee or sub-committee”.

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, “local authority” includes county councils, district
councils, London borough councils, parish councils, town councils, fire and rescue
authorities, police authorities, joint authorities, economic prosperity boards, combined
authorities and National Park authorities.

Purpose of the Code of Conduct

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling the
behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out
the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect
you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of local
government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all councillors and your
specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The LGA encourages the use of
support, training and mediation prior to action being taken using the Code. The
fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of
councillor and local government.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 19 Agenda Item 6

General principles of councillor conduct

Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public services,
including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers; should uphold
the Ten Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles. See Appendix A

Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed
specifically for the role of councillor.

In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions:

* | act with integrity and honesty

* | act lawfully

* | treat all personsfairly and with respect; and

* | lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of
councillor.

In undertaking my role:

* | impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community

* | do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any
person

* | avoid conflicts of interest
* | exercise reasonable care and diligence; and

* | ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local
authority’s requirements and in the public interest.

Application of the Code of Conduct

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of
the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and continues to
apply to you until you cease to be a councillor.

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor
which may include when:

* you misuse your position as a councillor

* Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with
knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a councillor;

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:

* at face-to-face meetings

* at online or telephone meetings
* in written communication

* in verbal communication

* in non-verbal communication

* in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and
comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times
when acting as a councillor.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2

Page 20 Agenda Item 6

Where you act as a representative of the Council:

(@) on another relevant authority, you must, when acting for that other authority, comply with
that other authority’s code of conduct; or

(b) on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, comply with the authority’s
code of conduct, except and insofar as it conflicts with any other lawful obligations to
which that other body may be subject.

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of
Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any
matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish councillors are
encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring
Officer.

Standards of councillor conduct

This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required
of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may
be made against you, which may result in action being taken.

Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be
followed.

General Conduct

1. Respect
As a councillor:

1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect.

1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner
organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and
respect the role they play.

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word.
Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor
engaging in a political debate with other councillors you can express, challenge, criticise and
disagree with views, ideas, opinions and palicies in a robust but civil manner. You should
not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or organisations, to personal attack.

The robust manner in which councillors engage with each other during political debate is not
appropriate when engaging with local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner
organisations and those volunteering for the local authority. As strategic leaders and employers, it is
expected that councillors will set a positive example to staff by treating them with politeness and
courtesy at all times.

In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and
offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in councillors.

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of the
public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 21 Agenda Item 6

conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local authority, the
relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, where
action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority
employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s councillor-
officer protocol.

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination
As a councillor:

2.1 1do not bully any person.
2.2 1 do not harass any person.

2.3 | promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any
person.

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as

offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power

through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be
a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in
emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events and may not always be
obvious or noticed by others.

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes

alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at least
two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and
contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any
reasonable person.

Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected
characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's

identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and
sexual orientation.

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central
role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority’s performance
and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality

across public services. Councillors must not do anything that is likely to cause the Council to
breach its public commitment to equality and fostering good relations with all communities.

Appendix D sets out additional guidance that Councillors must read alongside this Code of
Conduct.

3. Impartiality of officers of the council

As a councillor:

3.1 1do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority.

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless they
are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 22 Agenda Item 6

undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example,
their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they
have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their
advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional

integrity.

You must:

(a) when reaching decisions on any matter have regard to any relevant advice provided to you by the
Council’s officers and in particular by the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer; and

(b) give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory requirement and any reasonable
additional requirements imposed by the Council.

4. Confidentiality and access to information
As a councillor:

4.1 | do not disclose information:
a. given to mein confidence by anyone
b. acquired by me which | believe, or ought reasonably to be
aware, is of a confidential nature, unless
i. Ihavereceived the consent of a person authorised to giveit;

ii. lam required by law to do so;

iii. the disclosure is made to athird party for the purpose of
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other
person; or

iv. thedisclosureis:

1. reasonable and in the public interest; and

2. made in good faith and in compliance with the
reasonable requirements of the local authority; and

3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its
release.

4.2 1 do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my roleas a
councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members,
my employer or my business interests.

4.3 | do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by
law.

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed
materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should
work on this basis, but there will be times when itis required by law that discussions,
documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority must be treated in
a confidential manner. Examples include information relating to ongoing negotiations or
personal data relating to individuals.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 23 Agenda Item 6

With regards to personal data relating to individuals, you must not do anything that is likely to cause
your authority to breach Data Protection law. You must seek to ensure you are familiar with how the
Data Protection Act applies to your role in handling personal data through training, and if you are not
sure you should seek advice from the Monitoring Officer.

5. Disrepute
As a councillor:

5.1 1do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute.

As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your
actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the
public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, other
councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s confidence in your or your
local authority’s ability to discharge your/its functions. For example, behaviour that is
considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local authority into disrepute.

You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to
constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken by
the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct.

6. Use of position
As a councillor:

6.1 1 do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or
disadvantage of myself or anyone else.

Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities,
responsibilities, and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others.
However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or
others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities
As a councillor:

7.1 1 do not misuse council resources.

7.2 1 will, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising their use
by others:

(a) act in accordance with the local authority's requirements.

(b) ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes unless
that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be
conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or of
the office to which | have been elected or appointed; and

(c) have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity during elections.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 24 Agenda Item 6

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in
carrying out your duties as a councillor.

Examples include:

» office support

* stationery

* equipment such as phones, and computers

* transport

* access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and
are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with
the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies
regarding their use.

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct
As a Councillor;

8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.

8.2 | cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or
determination.

8.3 1 do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be
involved with any investigation or proceedings.

8.4 | comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that | have
breached the Code of Conduct.

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to
have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local
authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local
authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring
Officer.

Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority

9. Interests
As a councillor:

9.1 I register and disclose my interests.

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and
maintain a register of interests of members of the authority .

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow
councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register is
a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register

also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held
accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should
disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 25 m
that a potential conflict might arise. It is also imgportant that the puinJAkﬁg\g @ Ite m 6

interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking
part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This
helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set
out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.

Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in
doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer.

10.Gifts and hospitality
As a councillor:

10.1 1do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which
could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable
suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to
acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons
who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other
significant advantage.

10.2 I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £15 within 28 days of its receipt.

10.3 I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or
hospitality that | have been offered but have refused to accept.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably
believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always
be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a
refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must
ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality
which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends
and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and
hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your
Monitoring Officer for guidance.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 26 Agenda Item 6

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Appendices Page 27 Agenda Item 6

Appendix A — The Ten Principles of Public Life
The principles are:

Selflessness — Members should serve only the public interest and should never improperly confer an
advantage or disadvantage on any person.

Honesty and Integrity — Members should not place themselves in situations where their honesty and
integrity may be questioned, should not behave improperly, and should, on all occasions, avoid the
appearance of such behaviour.

Objectivity — Members should make decisions on merit, including when making appointments,
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or bengfits.

Accountability — Members should be accountable to the public for their actions and the manner in
which they carry out their responsibilities, and should co-operate fully and honestly with any scrutiny
appropriate to their particular office.

Openness — Members should be as open as possible about their actions and those of their Authority
and should be prepared to give reasons for those actions.

Personal judgement — Members may take account of the views of others, including their political
groups, but should reach their own conclusions on the issues before them and act in accordance with
those conclusions.

Respect for others — Members should promote equality by not discriminating unlawfully against any
person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their race, age, religion, gender, sexual
orientation or disability. They should respect the impartiality and integrity of the authority’s statutory
officers and its other employees.

Duty to uphold the Law — Members should uphold the law and, on all occasions, act in accordance
with the trust that the public is entitled to place in them.

Stewardship — Members should do whatever they are able to do to ensure that their authorities use
their resources prudently and in accordance with the law.

Leadership — Members should promote and support these principles by leadership, and by example,
and should act in a way that secures or preserves public confidence.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 28 Agenda Item 6

Appendix B Registering interests

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must
register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in
Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2
(Other Registerable Interests).

“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband
or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28
days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered
interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘'sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the
councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence
or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with
the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer
agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register. The Monitoring
Officer may state on the register that the councillor has an interest the details of
which are withheld.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you
have been granted a dispensation. If the interest has not already been recorded, notify the
Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days beginning with the date of the meeting.
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just
that you have an interest.
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate
and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. [Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is
being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or
further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it ]

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 29 Agenda Item 6

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or
wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must
disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are
also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any
discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have
been granted a dispensation. Ifitis a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose
the nature of the interest.

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest
or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a
financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to
speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on
the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of
the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects —
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. afinancial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or
c. afinancial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable
Interests as set out in Table 2

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the
meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied

9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well-being:
a. to agreater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b. areasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it
would affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to
speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation.

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

10. Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter
to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of
your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must
not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else
to deal with it ]

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 30 Agenda Item 6

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Requlations 2012,

Subject Description :
Employment, office, trade, Any em.ployment, o_fflce, tra_lde,
profession or vocation profession or vocation carried on for

profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during the
previous 12-month period for expenses
incurred by him/her in carrying out
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards
his/her election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract made between the
councillor or his/her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the

councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which
such person is a partner, or an incorporated
body of which such person is a director* or
a body that such person has a beneficial
interest in the securities of*) and the council
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the council.

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which does
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another)
a right to occupy or to receive income.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made

Page 31 em 6
Licenses Any licence (alone ﬂ%ﬁ/'vﬂh’ the'ré‘)ctb

occupy land in the area of the council for a
month or longer

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor's
knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a
body where—

(a) that body (to the councillor’s

knowledge) has a place of business or

land in the area of the council; and

(b) either—

(1) ) the total nominal value of the

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share

capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
.which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or|.
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were

spouses/civil partners have a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and
provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building
society.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 32 Agenda Item 6

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests

You must register as an Other Registerable Interest :
a) any unpaid directorships

b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or
management and to which you not are not nominated or appointed by your
authority

¢) any body
(i) exercising functions of a public nature
(ii) directed to charitable purposes or
(iif) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union)

of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 33 Agenda Item 6

Appendix C —the Committee on Standards in Public Life and
Best Practice Recommendations

The LGA has undertaken this review whilst the Government continues to consider the
recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in their report on
Local Government Ethical Standards. If the Government chooses to implement any of the
recommendations, this could require a change to this Code.

The recommendations cover:

* Recommendations for changes to the Localism Act 2011 to clarify in law when the
Code of Conduct applies

* The introduction of sanctions

* An appeals process through the Local Government Ombudsman

* Changes to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012

* Updates to the Local Government Transparency Code

* Changes to the role and responsibilities of the Independent Person

* That the criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests should be abolished

Best Practice Recommendations
As included in The Local Government Ethical Standards report. These are:

Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment in
codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and harassment,
supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a definition.

Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation and prohibiting trivial or
malicious allegations by councillors.

Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and
regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and
neighbouring authorities.

Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and
the public, in a prominent position on a council’'s website and available in council premises.

Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at least
once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.

Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test
against which allegations are filtered.

Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent
Persons.

Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to undertake a
formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to

review and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss

as being without merit, vexatious, or trivial.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report

Page 34 Agenda Item 6

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct
following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible
on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code engaged by
the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker,
and any sanction applied.

Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance
on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for
handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes.

Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor
towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council, rather than the clerk in
all but exceptional circumstances.

Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and
management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils
within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate training,
corporate support and resources to undertake this work.

Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any
conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps should
include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the
investigation.

Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which

they own as part of their annual governance statement and give a full picture of their
relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide by
the Nolan principle of openness and publish their board agendas and minutes and annual
reports in an accessible place.

Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or group
whips to discuss standards issues.

The LGA has committed to reviewing the Code on an annual basis to ensure it is still
fit for purpose.

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021



Page 35 Agenda Item 6

Appendix D

This Code of Conduct must be read alongside:

ACAS Guidance “If You’re Treated Unfairly at Work”
https://www.acas.org.uk/if-youre-treated-unfairly-at-work/being-bullied

Equality and Human Rights Commission — Public Sector Equality Duty Guidance

Approved 3 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021
DLG amendments 16 December 2021


https://www.acas.org.uk/if-youre-treated-unfairly-at-work/being-bullied

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee
2022

14™ April

GRANT THORNTON — SECTOR REPORT

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Councillor Mike Rouse - Portfolio
Holder for Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Relevant Head of Service

Peter Carpenter — Head of Finance
and Customer Services

Report Author

Peter Carpenter Services

Job Title: Head of Finance and Customer

Contact emaiil:
peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Wards Affected

All Wards

Ward Councillor(s) consulted

No

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s)

An effective and sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

advance of the meeting.

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to note updates as included in Appendix

1.

2. BACKGROUND

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  There are no financial implications arising out of this report.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The Council has a statutory responsibility to comply with financial
regulations.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS
Relevant Strategic Purpose

5.1

effective and sustainable Council.

The issues detailed in this report help to ensure that there is an

Agenda Item 7



mailto:peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 38 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

Climate Change Implications

5.2  There are no Climate Change implications arising out of this report.

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 There are no Equality and Diversity implications arising out of this
report.

Operational Implications

6.2 The report attached at Appendix 1 provides Members with our external
auditor’s updated sector update. It sets out key audit deliverables and a
sector update which includes a number of matters that are relevant to
Local Government. It is also important to note that the report details a
new approach to the value for money element of the audit.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1  As part of all audit work the auditors undertake a risk assessment to
ensure that adequate controls are in place within the Council so reliance
can be placed on internal systems.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1 - Grant Thornton Sector Update Report



Page 39 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Councillor Mike Rouse -

Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Finance

and Enabling

Peter Carpenter — Head of April 2022
Lead Director / Head of Finance and Customer
Service Services

Peter Carpenter — Head of April 2022
Financial Services Finance and Customer

Services

N/A

Legal Services

N/A
Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

N/A
Climate Change Officer (if
climate change
implications apply)




This page is intentionally left blank



° Grant Thornton

Redditch Borough Council
Sector Update

14 April 2022

) Wa]| epuaby



Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section Page The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,

Introduction 03 which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. It is

Sector Updote o4 not a comprehensive record of all the

relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Authority or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

2t abed

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

) Wa]| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. P)



Commercial in confidence

Introduction

This paper provides the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee with a
summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be
relevant to you as a local authority.

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Jackson Murray
Engagement Lead
T: 0117 3056 7859

Members of the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee can find further useful material
on our website, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you
E: jackson.murray@uk.gt.com can download copies of our publications www.grantthornton.co.uk.

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with
Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please
contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.

Neil Preece
Manager
T: 0121232 5292

E: neil.a.preece@uk.gt.com

¢ abed

) Wa]| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3


http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

Sector Update

Authorities continue to try to achieve greater efficiency in
the delivery of public services, whilst facing the challenges
to address rising demand, ongoing budget pressures and
social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date
summary of emerging national issues and developments to
support you. We cover areas which may have an impact on
your organisation, the wider local government sector and
the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the
detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and
find out more.

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake
research on service and technical issues. We will bring you
the latest research publications in this update. We also
include areas of potential interest to start conversations
within the organisation and with audit committee members,
as well as any accounting and regulatory updates.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

e Grant Thornton Publications

* Insights from local government sector
specialists

* Reports of interest

¢ Accounting and regulatory updates

Commercial in confidence

Y17 abed

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and

local government sections on the Grant Thornton website by
clicking on the logos below:

Local

Public Sector

government

) Wa]| epuaby


http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/

Commercial in confidence

Levelling up White Paper - Department for
Levelling Up, Communities and Housing

(“DLUCH"”)

On 2 February the Department for Levelling Up, Communities and
Housing (“DLUCH”) published its Levelling Up White Paper.

The paper states “Levelling up requires a focused, long-term plan of
action and a clear framework to identify and act upon the drivers of
spatial disparity. Evidence from a range of disciplines tells us these

drivers can be encapsulated in six “capitals™

* Physical capital - infrastructure, machines and housing.

* Human capital - the skills, health and experience of the workforce.

* Intangible capital - innovation, ideas and patents.

* Financial capital - resources supporting the financing of companies.
* Social capital - the strength of communities, relationships and trust.
* Institutional capital - local leadership, capacity and capability.”

The paper also states “This new policy regime is based on five mutually
reinforcing pillars.” These are set out and explained as:

1) The UK Government is setting clear and ambitious medium-term
missions to provide consistency and clarity over levelling up policy
objectives.

2) Central government decision-making will be fundamentally
reoriented to align policies with the levelling up agenda and hardwire
spatial considerations across Whitehall.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The UK Government will empower decision-makers in local
areas by providing leaders and businesses with the tools they
need.

The UK Government will transform its approach to data and
evaluation to improve local decision-making.

The UK Government will create a new regime to oversee its
levelling up missions, establishing a statutory duty to publish
an annual report analysing progress and a new external
Levelling Up Advisory Council.

G abed

Levelling Up the United
Kingdom - GOV.UK

www.gov.uk

Levelling Up the United Kingdom

) Wa]| epuaby


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-the-united-kingdom

Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton - reaction to Levelling up White
Paper

On 2 February the Department for Levelling Up, Communities and

Housing (“DLUCH?) published its Levelling Up White Paper. “To level up, these areas would need to grow their economies by
£12billion, increase employment rates by 6 percentage points,
Commenting on the release of the government’s Levelling up White create 1,700 new businesses a year and increase average weekly
Paper plans, Phil Woolley, Head of Public Sector Consulting, Grant pay by £200. Itis too early to determine whether the measures
Thornton UK LLP, said: announced today will be sufficient, but it is a start. Success will
ultimately depend on the ability and willingness of local and
“The publication of today’s White Paper plans is a welcome first step national government to tronsl,otg these new frameworks into
and it is reassuring to see the government recognise the need for meaningful change in people’s lives.
systemic changes in order to deliver its central aim of Levelling up. The . ) ) )
‘12 missions’ can be seen as an attempt to consolidate existing elements The Spending Review offers the next opportunity for government Y,
of government activity behind a singular banner and now provides a to show its commitment by realigning departmental objectives g
clearer picture of the levelling up opportunity. behind these new goals. @
D
(@)

“Following a decade of successful regional devolution and mayors, the
White Paper marks the next stage of the country’s devolution journey.
With government now offering a clear framework of devolved powers
and accountability, local leaders will need to embrace the opportunity
and collaborate across the public and private sector to ensure they
negotiate and then deliver the best deal for their communities. Grant
Thornton’s Levelling Up Index shows that the economies of the 10 worst
performing local authorities in England are on average over five times
smaller than their best performing counterparts - highlighting the scale
of the challenge ahead.

) Wa]| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Commercial in confidence

Emergency consultation on 2021/22 reporting

requirements - CIPFA

On 4 February CIPFA released an emergency four week consultation on
time limited changes to the Code to help alleviate delays to the publication
of audited financial statements. This explores two possible changes that
might be made as an update to the 2021/22 code and to the agreed
position in the 2022/23 code.

The decision to launch the consultation came after the Department for
Levelling up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) asked CIPFA to consider
amendments to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, after
just 9% of local audits for 2020-21 were published on time.

After considering a wide range of options CIPFA LASAAC decided to explore
two approaches:

1) An adaptation to the code to allow local authorities to pause professional
valuations for operational property, plant and equipment for a period of up
to two years (though the initial proposal is for the 2021/22 financial year);
this approach also explores the use of an index to be used to increase or
reduce that valuation

2] Deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases for a further year and
reversing the planned changes to the 2022/23 code to implement that
standard.

CIPFA Chief Executive Rob Whiteman said: “DLUHC is understandably
concerned about this growing crisis - and CIPFA shares this concern. We
are committed to supporting CIPFA LASAAC in its exploration of the options
that may improve timeliness issues, without significantly impacting
accountability. But this is a difficult issue, and we need feedback from
stakeholders on whether and how this might work.”

CIPFA said that the changes do not represent the best form of financial
reporting for local authorities, but are a “temporary expedient to help
improve an unacceptable situation”.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The consultation closed on Thursday 3 March. Any updates to the Code
are subject to oversight by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board before
implementation.

The consultation can be found here:

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-
proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes

Summary of the Grant Thornton response
Property, Plant & Equipment Valuations

In principle we are very supportive of changes to the measurement basis for
operational property, plant and equipment. However our view is that it is too
late to effect change for the 2021/22 reporting cycle. Our response
highlighted a number of difficulties with this approach, including the risk
that some assets then fall outside of the requirement to be revalued every
five years as a minimum, and the challenge of consistent application of
indexation. The proposed amendments to the Code do not appear to
override the requirement that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using the current value at the end of
the reporting period, which stems from IAS 16:31. If the financial reporting
requirements are not sufficiently tightly defined and auditors therefore
cannot obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support this
requirement, there is a risk that audit opinions could be modified as a result.

Deferral of IFRS 16 - Leases

The removal of the requirement for disclosure (based upon IAS 8] in 2021/22
is not likely to have a significant impact in terms of freeing up auditor time
and audit work covering the disclosures in 2022/23 would then be required
in the 2022/23 audit. Savings to preparer time and effort would depend on
what progress has already been made in preparing for the imminent
implementation of IFRS 16.

)1 abed

) Wa]| epuaby


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes

Commercial in confidence

Prudential Code and Treasury Management

Code - CIPFA

On 20 December CIPFA published the new Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (Prudential Code) and Treasury Management in
the Public Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes
(the Treasury Management Code).

CIPFA commented “These two statutory and professional codes are
important regulatory elements of the capital finance framework in which
local authorities operate. Local authorities are required by regulation to
‘have regard to’ their provisions. These two codes have been published a
principles-based consultation from February to April, which was followed by
a second consultation on the detailed changes to the code from September
to mid-November.

The updated Prudential Code includes some substantive changes. Most
notably, the provisions in Code which present the approach to borrowing in
advance of need in order to profit from additional sums borrowed have
been strengthened. Additionally, the relevant parts of Code have
augmented to be clear that borrowing for debt-for-yield investment is not
permissible under the Prudential Code. This recognises that commercial
activity is part of regeneration but underlines that such transactions do not
include debt-for-yield as the primary purpose of the investment or represent
an unnecessary risk to public funds.”

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The updated Prudential Code removes the "advance of need" terminology
and emphasises the legislative basis for borrowing, namely that a local
authority can borrow and invest for any legislative function and/or for the
prudent management of their financial affairs.

The examples listed in the Code of legitimate prudential borrowing are:

Financing capital expenditure primarily related to the delivery of a local
outhoritg’s functions;

Temporary management of cash flow within the context of a balanced
budget;

Securing affordability by removing exposure to future interest rate rises;
or

g abed

Refinancing current borrowing, including replacing internal borrowing, to
manage risk or reflect changing cash flow circumstances.

CIPFAY

) Wa]| epuaby



Commercial in confidence

Good practice in annual reporting - NAO

The National Audit Office (NAO) has published this guide which sets out
good practice principles for annual reporting with examples from public
sector organisations

The NAO comment that the guide sets out “good-practice principles that we
believe underpin good annual reporting. These principles are: Supporting
Accountability; Transparency; Accessibility; and the need for the report to
be Understandable.”

The NAQO further comment “The best annual reports we have seen use these
principles to tell the “story” of the organisation. It is important that
stakeholders, including the public and Parliament, are able to hold an
organisation to account. To do this effectively, stakeholders need to
properly understand the organisation’s strategy, key risks that might get in
the way of delivering this strategy and the effectiveness of their
management, and the amount of taxpayers” money that has been spent to
deliver the outcomes the organisation seeks to achieve.”

The guide draws on examples of good practice from within each of the six
sections of an Annual Report:

* Strategy

* Risk

* Operations

» Governance

* Measures of success

* Financial performance

e External factors

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Although the guide does not include any local authority examples,
those included, and the underlying principles, are equally relevant
to all public facing organisations.

Good practice guide

Good practice in annual reporting

National Audit Office

61 abed

The guide can be found here:
Good practice in annual reporting - National Audit Office

NAQO) Report

) Wa]| epuaby


https://www.nao.org.uk/report/good-practice-in-annual-reports/

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2022Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

0g abed

) Wa]| epuaby



Page 51

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022
GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PLAN 2020-2021
Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Rouse, Portfolio

Holder for Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Relevant Head of Service

Peter Carpenter — Head of Finance
and Customer Services

Report Author

Peter Carpenter Services

Job Title: Head of Finance and Customer

Contact emaiil:
peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Wards Affected

All Wards

Ward Councillor(s) consulted

No

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s)

An effective and sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

advance of the meeting.

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to note and agree the 2019/20 Audit Opinion

Plan

2. BACKGROUND

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1

The fee associated with the External Audit Opinion and audit of

accounting statements and consideration of the Councils arrangements
for securing economy, effectiveness and efficiency is £71,292.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1

The Council has a statutory responsibility to formally prepare accounts

in compliance with national guidelines and ensure these are audited by

an audited body.

Agenda Iltem 8



mailto:peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 52 Agenda Item 8

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1 The issues detailed in this report help to ensure that there is an
effective and sustainable Council.

Climate Change Implications

5.2  There are no Climate Change implications arising out of this report.

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 There are no Equality and Diversity implications arising out of this
report.

Operational Implications

6.2  Attached at Appendix 1 is the 2020-2021 Audit Plan. The Plan sets out
work that the Grant Thornton propose to undertake in relation to the
Audit of the financial accounts for 2020-2021 and any risks that have
will require additional review and consideration.

6.3  The Audit will include an understanding of the organisational
operations together with issues that may impact on the Council in the
future. This assessment results in the External Audit consideration of
the risks associated with the accounts and the Appendix details the
level of risk allocated to the services we provide.

6.4  The work by the Grant Thornton will enable a robust opinion to be
made across all the internal control and accounting arrangements that
the Council has in place. This includes full consideration of the Key
Matters set out on pages 3 and 4 of the report.

6.5 The Auditors will also make an assessment of the Council’s
arrangements to secure value for money to include systems and



Page 53 Agenda Item 8

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

processes to manage financial risks and improving efficiency. This will
include an assessment of the recommendations in relation to the
reporting of financial information and monitoring to members and the
delivery of savings and additional income.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 The Financial Services risk register includes the preparation of the
accounts and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated in
compliance with accounting standards. Risk management arrangements
in place across the organisation ensure that risks are addressed and
mitigated.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1 - Annual Audit Plan 2020 - 2021



Page 54 Agenda Item 8

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Councillor Mike Rouse, N/A
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Finance

and Enabling

Peter Carpenter — Head of April 2022
Lead Director / Head of Finance and Customer
Service Services

Peter Carpenter — Head of April 2022
Financial Services Finance and Customer

Services

N/A

Legal Services

N/A
Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

N/A
Climate Change Officer (if
climate change
implications apply)




° Grant Thornton

Redditch Borough Council audit

plan
e

Year ending 31 March 2021

g wa)| epuaby



Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Jackson Murray
Key Audit Partner
T 0117 305 7859

E Jackson.murray@uk.gt.com

Neil Preece
Manager

T 0121 232 5202

E neil.a.preece@uk.gt.com

Cathy Smith

Assistant Manager

T 0121 232 5103

E cathy.smith@uk.gt.com

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Key matters

Introduction and headlines

Group audit scope and risk assessment
Significant risks identified

Accounting estimates and related disclosures
Other matters

Progress against prior year recommendations
Materiality

Value for Money Arrangements

Risks of significant VFM weaknesses

Audit logistics and team

Audit fees

Independence and non-audit services

Page
03
05
07
08

1L
15

19
20
22
23
25

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

Public

9g abed

g wa)| epuaby



Key matters

Financial Reporting

Our audit of the 2019/20 financial statements was not completed until 8 November 2021. As a result of the COVID-19
pandemic the statutory deadline had been extended to 30 November 2020.

The 2020/21 financial outturn was not reported to Executive until 11 January 2022. We would expect this report to be
presented around three months after the year end, so in June or July 2021. The previous finance monitoring report,
covering the period to Quarter 3 (December 2020), was presented on 23 March 2021, which is within the expected
timeframe. As at March 2022 there has not been any reporting of the 2021/22 financial position.

The 2020/21 financial statements should have been published and presented for audit by 30 July 2021. As at March 2022
the financial statements have not been prepared, and we were expecting them to be prepared by the end of March or
early April. We now understand there will be further delays until the end of May at the earliest.

There has therefore been a significant deterioration in the timeliness of financial reporting. The excessive delay in
completing the audit of the 2019/20 financial statements, and in receiving draft 2020/21 statements, has potentially
serious consequences. In its report “Local auditor reporting on local government in England”, published on 8 July 2021,
the House of Commons Committee of Public Accounts stated “If local authorities are to effectively recover from the
pandemic, it is critical that citizens have the necessary assurances that their finances are in order and being managed in
the correct manner.” And “The Department [the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government] considered that a
local authority was in a stronger position to complete its budget setting process each Autumn if its auditors had already
completed their audit of the previous year’s accounts, as the audited accounts often formed the underlying basis for the
budget setting process. The Department felt that audited accounts provided confidence, assurance and transparency for
the budget setting process. It noted that there had been recent cases where an audit had revealed information that
affected the value of a local authority’s reserves and which had knock-on effects on future budgets.”

PSAA reported that at the target date of 30 September 2021 only 9% of local government bodies’ 2020/21 audits had
been completed. The position compares to completion of 45% of 2019/20 audits and 57% of 2018/19 audits by the
respective target dates of 30 November 2020 and 31 July 2019.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

Our response

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to audit quality and
financial reporting in the local government sector. Our proposed
work and fee, as set further in our Audit Plan, has been agreed
with the Executive Director of Resources.

We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting
your financial resources as part of our work in completing our
Value for Money work.

Our 2019/20 Audit Findings Report made four recommendations

for improvement. These were agreed with management, and an mv)
action plan presented to the Audit, Governance & Standards Q
Committee as part of that report. We will monitor progress (@)
progress against these previously agreed recommendations. @D

The Council’s valuer reported a material uncertainty in regards to
the valuation of properties in 2019/20 due to the Covid 19
pandemic and we expect significant uncertainty will continue in
the 2020/21 valuations. We identified a significant risk in regards
to the valuation of properties - refer to page 9.

LS

g wa)| epuaby



Key matters (continued)

Staffing in the finance team

There are capacity issues, including systems knowledge shortages, within the Finance team which has a number of
vacancies. This has been exacerbated by unanticipated departures from some key roles and difficulties in recruiting.
Whilst steps have and are being taken to respond to this challenge, including two national recruitment campaigns and
the appointment of experienced permanent and temporary resource, more work needs to be done to secure a sustainable
solution to ensure that the control environment is robust and the required skills and experience for accounts production
are in place.

New financial ledger

The Corporate Peer Challenge Action Plan, reported to Members in October 2018, set out that “The business case for the
Enterprise System has been approved by both Councils. Implementation by October 2019”. Delays in implementing the
new system, led to “Go Live” being delayed from October 2019 to February 2021. As at March 2022 there are still issues
with implementing the new system and it is still not functioning as fully as planned.

Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

The Council had to adapt service provision and also saw significant impact on various income streams as a result of the
pandemic. However, various sources of government funding have offset this. The Council has invested in improved
technology for Officers, which has made communicating with others while working from home easier.

Alongside “business as usual”, the Council administered significant values of Government grant schemes to businesses in
2020, and also distributed the Council Tax Hardship Funding received from Central Government. Accounting for this
increased expenditure, and specifically the multitude of Government grants received in year, will require the Council to
consider each funding stream separately.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

We identified a significant audit risk relating to the finance team
capacity. Please refer to page 8.

We identified a significant audit risk relating to implementation of
the new financial ledger and the data migration to the new
ledger. Please refer to page 8. Our IT auditors will review the
Council’s process for ensuring the data migration was complete
and accurate and the IT General Controls in place around the
new financial ledger.

We will consider the accounting treatment of COVID-19 funding
and ensure that this has been appropriately reflected within the
Council’s financial statements.

We will continue to provide you with sector updates via our Audit
Committee updates.

Public

3G abed

g wa)| epuaby



Public

Introduction and headlines

Group Audit

The Council is required to prepare group financial statements that consolidate the financial information of
Rubicon Leisure Ltd.

Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope
and timing of the statutory audit of Redditch Borough
Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with governance. Slg nificant risks

Respective responsibilities
Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial
The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document statement error have been identified as:

entitled Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). This

summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and *  Management over-ride of controls

end and what is expected from the audited body. Our * Valuation of land and buildings
respe.ctive responsibilities are also set OL'Jt.i!’\.the.Terms of « Valuation of the pension fund net liability
Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by ) o )

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body *  Staffing within the finance department
responsible for appointing us as auditor of Redditch * New financial ledger implementation
Borough Council. We draw your attention to both of these

documents.

) We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the
Scope of our audit audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 260) Report.

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code
and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs] (UK). We are
responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the

Council and group’s fincnciql SEERETIENS that have been We have determined planning materiality to be £1.260m (PY £1.330m) for the group and £1.190m (PY £1.30m) for
prepared ka management with the. oversight of those the Council, which equates to 2% of your prior year gross expenditure. We are obliged to report uncorrected
charged with governance (the Audit, Governance & omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly
Standards Committee). trivial has been set at £69.5k (PY £65k].

We are also responsible for undertaking sufficient work to
be able to satisfy ourselves as to whether, in our view, the
Council has put arrangements in place that support the
achievement of value for money.

6G abed

Materiality

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or the Audit, Governance & Standards
Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of
the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for the conduct of its business, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have
considered how the Council is fulfilling these
responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding
of the Council's business and is risk based.

g wa)| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5



Public

Introduction and headlines (continued)

Value for Money arrangements

Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following risks
and timing of the statutory audit of Redditch Borough of significant weakness:

Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with governance. *  Medium Tern Financial Plan and Financial Sustainability

Respective responsibilities *  Risk Management

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document + Performance management reporting

entitled Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). This *  How the Council measures benefits realisation from commissioned or procured services.

summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and
end and what is expected from the audited body. Our
respective responsibilities are also set out in the Terms of
Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by Audit |OgiStiCS
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body
responsible for appointing us as auditor of Redditch
Borough Council. We draw your attention to both of these
documents.

Our interim visit took place in January / February 2022 and we currently envisage that our final visit will take
place from July 2022. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan, our Audit Findings Report and Auditor’s Annuall

Report. U
Scope of our audit Our proposed fee for the audit at the planning stage is £71,292 (PY: £76,379) for the Council, subject to the g
The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code Council delivering a good set of financial statements and working papers. oD
and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs] (UK). We are We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard (revised 2019) and we as a firm, and (@)}
responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the o
Council and group’s financial statements that have been financial statements.

prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance (the Audit, Governance &
Standards Committee).

We are also responsible for undertaking sufficient work to
be able to satisfy ourselves as to whether, in our view, the
Council has put arrangements in place that support the
achievement of value for money.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or the Audit, Governance & Standards
Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of
the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for the conduct of its business, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have
considered how the Council is fulfilling these
responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding
of the Council's business and is risk based.

g wa)| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Group audit scope and risk assessment

In accordance with ISA (UK] 600, as group auditor we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the components and the consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group
financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Individually Level of response required
Component Significant?  under ISA (UK) 600 Risks identified Planned audit approach
Redditch Borough Yes Audit of the financiall See pages 8-10. Full scope audit performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP.
Council information of the component
using component materiality
Rubicon Leisure No Specified audit procedures See page 10. Specified audit procedures relating to the likely significant risks
Limited relating to significant risks of of material misstatement of the group financial statements

material misstatement of the
group financial statements

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

T9 abed

g wa)| epuaby



Public

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle  Group & Council Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the

includes fraudulent presumed risk that revenue may be misstated Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be
transactions due to the improper recognition of revenue. rebutted, because:
(rebutted) * thereis little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;

* opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and

* the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Redditch Borough Council,
mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Redditch Borough Council. Group U
revenues are not significantly different to Council revenues, including in relation to their 8
recoghnition and risk, and hence the same rebuttal applies. oD
Fraudulent Group & Council Practice Note 10 states that as most public We have rebutted this risk for Redditch Borough Council because: %
expend}t'ure bod|e§ are .net spending bodies, then the risk of expenditure is primarily related to employee costs; and
recognition material misstatement due to fraud related to
(rebutted) expenditure may be greater than the risk of ° lack of incentive to manipulate financial results, coupled with an overall strong control
material misstatements due to fraud related to environment.
revenue recognition. We therefore do not consider this to be a significant risk for Redditch Borough Council.

We will continue to review material expenditure transactions as part of our audit ensuring that it

remains appropriate to rebut the risk of expenditure recognition for Redditch Borough Council. >
Group expenditure is not significantly different, including the recognition processes, to Council (@)
revenues and hence the same rebuttal applies. (D
Finance team Council The finance team has a number of vacancies We will: -
capacity Wh'?h mean it is not. curre.ntlg in a sustainable keep in regular contact with senior officers to closely monitor the staffing levels and capacityin - )
position. The draft financial statements for . the finance department, including the arrangements put in place to address the situation; and
2020/21 have yet to be produced and there is QJ
also a risk that this adversely impacts upon the consider findings from internal audit reviews and the impact that these may have on our audit
control environment. approach. CI—DF
New financial Council The new financial ledger was implemented in Our IT auditors will review the Council’s process for ensuring the data migration was complete and
ledger February 2021. As at February 2022 there are accurate and the IT General Controls in place around the new financial ledger. 3
implementation still issues with implementing the new system
and it is still not functioning as fully as planned. m

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 8



Significant risks identified

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
Management Council Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of ~ We will:
over-ride of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. * evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;
controls i i - i
We have .c.lso considered the |mpoct. of COVID-19 on the risks of cn'wd' * analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high
opportunities fc?r management ov?rr|de of controls and we are satisfied risk unusual journals;
that opportunities have not been increased.
We therefore identified e of Li ol * testunusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft
\ e theretore identifie mqnogement override 'o contro', in particular accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration;
journals, management estimates and transactions outside the course of . . ) ) .
business as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant *  gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical
assessed risks of material misstatement. judgements applied made by management and consider their
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and
* evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates
or significant unusual transactions.
Valuation of Council The Council and group revalues its land and buildings on a rolling five- We will:
Icm.d .ond yearly basis. Thls vcl.uatlor'w represents a significant e.stlmcte by * evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation
buildings management in the financial statements due to the size of the numbers of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope

involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.
Additionally, management will need to ensure the carrying value in the
Council and group financial statements is not materially different from the
current value or the fair value (for surplus assets) at the financial
statements date, where a rolling programme is used

As a result of the impact of COVID-19 the 2019/20 financial statements were
subject to a material uncertainty in regard to property valuations. As the
pandemic is ongoing there remains an increased level of uncertainty that
we will reflect in our work.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings, particularly
revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk.

of their work;

evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation
expert;

write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was
carried out;

challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess
completeness and consistency with our understanding;

test revaluations made during the year to see if they have been input
correctly into the Council's asset register;

evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not
revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves
that these are not materially different to current value at year end; and

ensure that any RICS guidance in relation to material uncertainty around
property valuations has been considered by the valuer and is
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

g abed

g wa)| epuaby



Significant risks identified

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Risk Risk relates to
Valuation of Group &

the pension Council

fund net

liability

The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its
balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, represents a
significant estimate in the financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate
due to the size of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of the
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

The methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19 estimates
are routine and commonly applied by all actuarial firms in line
with the requirements set out in the Code of practice for local
government accounting (the applicable financial reporting
framework). We have therefore concluded that there is not a
significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate
due to the methods and models used in their calculation.

The source data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19
estimates is provided by administering authorities and
employers. We do not consider this to be a significant risk as
this is easily verifiable.

The actuarial assumptions used are the responsibility of the
entity but should be set on the advice given by the actuary. A
small change in the key assumptions (discount rate, inflation
rate, salary increase and life expectancy) can have a significant
impact on the estimated IAS 19 liability. We have therefore
concluded that there is a significant risk of material
misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate due to the assumptions used
in their calculation. With regard to these assumptions we have
therefore identified valuation of the Council’s pension fund net
liability as a significant risk.

We will:

update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by
management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not
materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

evaluate the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an
actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried
out the Council’s pension fund valuation;

assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the
Council to the actuary to estimate the liability;

test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the
notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial report;

undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions
made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and
performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

obtain assurances from the auditor of Worcestershire Pension Fund as to the
controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data,
contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and
the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

9 abed

g wa)| epuaby



Public

Accounting estimates and related disclosures

The Financial Reporting Introduction

Council issued an u pdoted Under ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) auditors are required to
understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates,

ISA (UK) 540 (revised): including:
AUd't’nQ ACCOU”U”Q * the nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s
Estimates and Related financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
Disclosures which includes * how management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or
. ope knowledge related to accounting estimates;
significant enhancements
in respect of the audit risk
assessment process for
accounting estimates. We
identified one
recommendation in our
eco © dG .O OEJ As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the
2019/20 audit in relation to role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important where

the Council’s estimation th estimclctes have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant
judgement.

* how the entity’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks
relating to accounting estimates;

* the entity’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;

G9 abed

* the entity’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

* how management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

process for the valuation
of land and buildings.

Specifically do Audit, Governance & Standards Committee members:

* understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make
the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

* oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including
the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and

* evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

g wa)| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



Public

Accounting estimates and related disclosures

Additional information that will be required When the models used include increased complexity or subjectivity, as is the

To ensure our compliance with this revised auditing standard, we will be case for many valuation models, auditors need to understand and assess the
requesting further information from management and those charged with controls in place over the models and the data included therein. Where
governance during our audit for the year ended 31 March 2021. adequate controls are not in place we may need to report this as a significant

control deficiency and this could affect the amount of detailed substantive

Based on our knowledge of the Council we have identified the following material testing required during the audit.

accounting estimates for which this is likely to apply:
If management has changed the method for making an accounting estimate
we will need to fully understand management’s rationale for this change. Any
+  Depreciation; unexpected changes are likely to raise the audit risk profile of this accounting
estimate and may result in the need for additional audit procedures.

* Valuations of land and buildings;

* Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities;
We are aware that the Council uses management experts in deriving some of

its more complex estimates, e.g. asset valuations and pensions liabilities.

«  Accruals & provisions (if material). However, it is important to note that the use of management experts does not
diminish the responsibilities of management and those charged with
governance to ensure that:

 Fair value estimates (inc Surplus Assets); and

99 abed

The Council’s Information systems * all accounting estimates and related disclosures included in the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the

In respect of the Council’s information systems we are required to consider how 8 . N g
financial reporting framework, and are materially accurate; and

management identifies the methods, assumptions and source data used for each

material accounting estimate and the need for any changes to these. This * there are adequate controls in place at the Council (and where applicable
includes how management selects, or designs, the methods, assumptions and its service provider or management expert) over the models, assumptions
data to be used and applies the methods used in the valuations. and source data used in the preparation of accounting estimates.

g wa)| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 12



Estimation uncertainty
Under ISA (UK] 540 we are required to consider the following:

* how management understands the degree of estimation uncertainty related to each
accounting estimate; and

* how management address this estimation uncertainty when selecting their point estimate.

For example, how management identified and considered alternative, methods, assumptions
or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why
these alternatives were rejected in favour of the point estimate used.

The revised standard includes increased emphasis on the importance of the financial
statement disclosures. Under ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018), auditors are required to
assess whether both the accounting estimates themselves and the related disclosures are
reasonable.

Where there is a material uncertainty, that is where there is a significant risk of a material
change to the estimated carrying value of an asset or liability within the next year, there
needs to be additional disclosures. Note that not all material estimates will have a material
uncertainty and it is also possible that an estimate that is not material could have a risk of
material uncertainty.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Where there is material estimation uncertainty, we would expect the financial statement
disclosures to detail:

* what the assumptions and uncertainties are;
* how sensitive the assets and liabilities are to those assumptions, and why;

* the expected resolution of the uncertainty and the range of reasonably possible
outcomes for the next financial year; and

* an explanation of any changes made to past assumptions if the uncertainly is
unresolved.

Planning enquiries

As part of our planning risk assessment procedures we have prepared and agreed with
management a separate document (Informing the audit risk assessment 2020-21) that will is

being presented to the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee alongside this audit plan.

Further information

Further details on the requirements of ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) can be found in
the auditing standard on the Financial Reporting Council’s website:

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0faé9c03-49ec-49ae-a8c-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-
540 Revised-December-2018 final.pdf

Public

/9 abed

g wa)| epuaby



Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement to check that they are
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and our knowledge

of the Council.

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual Governance

Statement are in line with requirements set by CIPFA.

We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required,
including:

giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2020/21 financial
statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to the
2020/21 financial statements;

issuing a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the Council
under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act);

application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law
under section 28 or a judicial review under section 31 of the Act; or

issuing an advisory notice under section 29 of the Act.

We certify completion of our audit.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each material
class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and
transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will not be as
extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and
conclude on:

g9 abed

* whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and

* the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements.

The Public Audit Forum has been designated by the Financial Reporting Council as a “SORP-
making body” for the purposes of maintaining and updating Practice Note 10: Audit of
financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (PN 10). It
is intended that auditors of public sector bodies read PN 10 in conjunction with (ISAs) (UK].

PN 10 has recently been updated to take account of revisions to ISAs (UK), including ISA (UK)
570 on going concern. The revisions to PN 10 in respect of going concern are important and
mark a significant departure from how this concept has been audited in the public sector in
the past. In particular, PN 10 allows auditors to apply a ‘continued provision of service
approach’ to auditing going concern, where appropriate. Applying such an approach should
enable us to increase our focus on wider financial resilience (as part of our VfM work) and
ensure that our work on going concern is proportionate for public sector bodies. We will
review the Council’s arrangements for securing financial sustainability as part of our Value
for Money work and provide a commentary on this in our Auditor’s Annual Report (see page

19).

g wa)| epuaby



Progress against prior year audit
recommendations

We identified the following issues in our 2019/20 audit of the Council’s financial statements, which resulted in four recommendations being reported in our 2019/20 Audit Findings Report. We
have followed up on the implementation of our recommendations and all of them are still to be addressed.

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

Public

High

X

Quality of working papers and responses

This is the third year that we have made a recommendation in relation to
the quality of working papers and responses to audit questions. The
quality of working papers this year has not improved. While some of this
is related to the challenges of Covid-19, most of the issues relate to lack of
attention to detail, superficial explanations, and providing inaccurate or
incomplete information. There is a direct cost to the Council of this - both
internally through engaging contractors to support the audit, and
externally through additional audit fees.

Recommendation

The Finance Team needs to properly address the recommendations made
in previous years and to ensure that responses to audit questions are
“right first time”.

Management response

The Council acknowledges that the quality of working papers has led to a
number of difficulties this year end, as with previous year ends, for the
closure of the accounts and audit process. Covid-19 has driven some of
this as officers were unable to sit down with auditors to go through
working papers to explain them which can often resolve issues. Aside from
this an old ledger system which was not fit for purpose made date
extraction hard to support sampling and robust working papers. A new
system has now gone live and it is anticipated that this will improve the
quality of working papers in coming years. Additional resource will also
need to be deployed in this area to ensure a smooth year end process
next year.

As the 2020/21 financial statements have not yet been prepared we are
unable to comment on the quality of the supporting working papers.

69 abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

g wa)| epuaby



Progress against prior year audit

recommendations

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Public

Update on actions taken to address the
issue

X

Fully depreciated assets

The Fixed Asset Register shows over £6.6m of fully depreciated Vehicles, Plant & Equipment. We asked
Management to consider whether these should be written out (they are no longer used) or prove they are still in
existence and in use. Management have advised that they are still in use. We would therefore ask Management
to reconsider their useful lives as, if the assets are fully depreciated but still in use, they would not appear to be
appropriate.

Recommendation

Management should reconsider the useful lives of these assets as, if the assets are fully depreciated but still in
use, they would not appear to be appropriate.

Management response

Management will undertake a review of these assets as part of the closedown next year and determine an
appropriate course of action as a result.

As the 2020/21 closedown process has not
yet begun we are unable to comment on
this recommendation.

Property, Plant and Equipment valuations

This is a major focus of our work, and will continue to be so in 2020/21. Our work this year took an excessively long
time to complete - both for auditors and officers. The amount of time needed to complete this aspect of our audit
is not sustainable.

Recommendation
Management needs to:
1) Ensure previous years valuation reports are readily available.

2) Ensure that a Letter of Engagement is agreed with the valuer, clearly setting out the requirements and
expectations.

3) Ensure that evidence to support the floor area of revalued buildings is retained and readily available.
4) Conduct a review of assets not revalued in year to determine whether they continue to be fairly stated.
Management response

This was a particularly challenging are of the audit this year, in part due to the increased demands by the
regulator. In addition to this, it was determined during the audit that the Council did not hold detailed records of
assets owned. As a result the external valuer was required to supply this information such as floor areas. Moving
forwards the Council will use the external valuers as a “first port of call” on all valuation and assets queries to
allow for a smoother audit process rather than trying to do this internally.

0/ abed

The Council has yet to receive valuations
for property as at 31 March 2021.
Regardless of the challenges around the
new financial ledger, as this work is
conducted by expert valuers, external to the
Council, we would have expected this to be
have been completed in a timely manner.

g wa)| epuaby

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Progress against prior year audit
recommendations

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

X

Annual Governance Statement

Our work on the Annual Governance Statement identified a significant
number of typographical errors, referring to the wrong Committee, not
referring to the CIPFA / SOLACE requirements, and saying nothing about
the "Significant Governance Issues".

Recommendation

Management needs to ensure that the Annual Governance Statement
complies with the CIPFA / SOLACE requirements. In particular referring to
the S.1561 Officer responsibilities and ensuring that “Significant
Governance Issues” are appropriately explained.

Management response

Management agreed with the feedback from auditors and amended
accordingly and this will be reflected in future sets of accounts.

As the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement has yet to be prepared we are

unable to provide an update on this recommendation.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

T/ abed

g wa)| epuaby



Materiality

The concept of materiality

Materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies
not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable
accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if
they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross expenditure of the
group and Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. Materiality at the
planning stage of our audit is £1.260m (PY £1.330m) for the group and £1.190m (PY £1.30m) for the Council,
which equates to 2% of your gross expenditure for the prior year. We design our procedures to detect errors in
specific accounts at a lower level of precision. We deem senior officer remuneration as a specific sensitive
area for users of the accounts and have applied a lower threshold of materiality of 2% of earnings disclosed in
the remuneration disclosure, which in 2019/20 was £7k.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we become aware of facts
and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee any
unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work. Under ISA
260 (UK] ‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected
omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA
260 (UK] defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in
aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of the group and
Council, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less
than £59.6k (PY £65k).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will
consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit, Governance & Standards
Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Prior year gross operating

costs

£63.5m group
£59.9m Council

m Prior year gross operating

costs

Public

Materiality

£1.260m

Group financial
statements
materiality

(PY: £1.330m)
£1.190m

Council financial
statements
materiality

(PY: £1.30m)

2/ abed

£69.5k

Misstatements
reported to the
Audit, Governance
& Standards

Committee
(PY: £65k)

g wa)| epuaby



Value for Money arrangements

Revised approach to Value for Money
work for 2020/21

On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a
new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from
audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised
approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM)

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s
new approach:

* Anew set of key criteria, covering financial
sustainability, governance and improvements in
economy, efficiency and effectiveness

* More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the
auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements
across all of the key criteria, rather than the current
‘reporting by exception’ approach

+ The replacement of the binary (qualified /
unqualified] approach to VFM conclusions, with far
more sophisticated judgements on performance, as
well as key recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified during the
audit.

The Code require auditors to consider whether the body
has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. When reporting on these arrangements, the
Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria.
These are as set out below:

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

&5

Improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness

Arrangements for improving the
way the body delivers its services.
This includes arrangements for
understanding costs and
delivering efficiencies and
improving outcomes for service
users.

Financial Sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring the
body can continue to deliver
services. This includes planning
resources to ensure adequate
finances and maintain
sustainable levels of spending
over the medium term (3-5 years)

Governance

Arrangements for ensuring that
the body makes appropriate
decisions in the right way. This
includes arrangements for budget
setting and management, risk
management, and ensuring the
body makes decisions based on
appropriate information

Public

¢/ obed

q Lueliépueﬁv



Risks of significant VFM weaknesses

As part of our planning work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the body’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform further procedures on.
The risks we have identified are detailed in the first table below, along with the further procedures we will perform. We may
need to make recommendations following the completion of our work. The potential different types of recommendations we

could make are set out in the second table overleaf.

Risks of significant weakness

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that
proper arrangements are not in place at the body to deliver value for money.

Financial Sustainability
A How robust is the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and how well
developed are savings plans?

The Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 - 2023/24 presented to Executive on
16 February 2021 sets out in the proposed use of £702k reserves that are no-
longer needed to help balance the budget for 2021/22. The MTFP also
includes "Savings and Additional income" of £1,163k in 2021/22; £524k in
2022/23 and £545k in 2023/24. Even with those savings, further use of
balances of £261k will be required in 2022/23 and £761k in 2023/2L. At 31
March 2024 general balances are forecast to be £852k, compared to a
target of £1,500k.

To address this risk we will:

* review the MTFP which Cabinet approved in February 2021 and select a
sample of savings or income generation schemes to test in order to obtain
assurance that they are robust and realistic;

* monitor the progress made to identify non priority areas and to begin to
disinvest in those areas; and

* review the longer term plan to bridge the structural deficit.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Risk Management
How the Council monitors and assesses risk.

An Internal Audit report from June 2019 identified significant weaknesses in
risk management arrangements. The Council engaged external experts
(Zurich) to build on this report, and reported the findings to the Audit,
Governance & Standards Committee in October 2019. Since that date there
have not been any formal update reports to Members, nor has a corporate
risk register been presented. Members are therefore not provided with
appropriate assurance over effective risk management and whether the
issues raised by Internal Audit and Zurich have been addressed.

To address this risk we will:

* review the arrangements in place to ensure that Members are provided
with appropriate risk management information in order for them to obtain
assurance over the processes and to make informed decisions.

20

Public

) abed

g wa)| epuaby



Risks of significant VFM weaknesses

Risks of significant weakness

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that
proper arrangements are not in place at the body to deliver value for money.

Performance information reporting
A How financial and performance information has been used to assess
performance to identify areas for improvement.

During 2017/2018 the Council began presenting a “Corporate Performance
Report”, presented to Cabinet on a regular basis. In our Audit Findings Report
for the year we commented “Corporate Performance is now presented bi-
monthly using a new format. The first report was presented to Cabinet on 7
March 2018. The report is very comprehensive and thorough, an is also easily
understandable. This report notes the strategic measures that are currently
used to understand the purpose ‘keep my place safe and looking good’.
These are reported, along with others relevant to the strategic purpose. The
Council is now adequately reporting progress against the Council Plan and
the key indicators for each strategic purpose to Cabinet.”

The last such report was 6 March 2018 which pre-dates the COVID-19
pandemic by around two years. It is now nearly four years since a Corporate
Performance Report was presented.

To address this risk we will:

* review how the Council is reporting performance to Members, or making
information available to them on an ongoing basis in order for them to
obtain assurance over the processes and to make informed decisions.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Benefits realisation
A How the Council assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits from

outsourcing and procurement.

We have not seen any evidence on how the benefits realisation of projects is
measured. We have therefore assessed this as a significant risk.

To address this risk we will:

* review the arrangements in place for how the Council measures benefits
realisation from commissioned or procured services.

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on
risks of significant weakness, as follows:

s

Statutory recommendation

Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation under schedule 7
requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant
weaknesses in arrangements to secure value for money they should make
recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the body.
We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in
place at the body, but are not made as a result of identifying significant
weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

21

Public

G) abed

g wa)| epuaby



Audit logistics and team

Audit, Governance
& Standards
Committee

14 April 2022
Year end audit
. July - October 2022
Planning and Audit Plan

risk assessment

Jackson Murray, Key Audit Partner

Jackson’s role will be to lead our relationship with you and
/ take overall responsibility for the delivery of a high quality

)

audit, meeting the highest professional standards and
adding value to the Council.

Neil Preece, Audit Manager

Neil’s role will be to manage the delivery of a high quality
audit, meeting the highest professional standards and
adding value to the Council.

Cathy Smith, Audit Incharge

Cathy’s role will be to have day to day responsibility for the
running of the audit and first point of contact.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Audit, Governance
& Standards
Committee

Audit Findings Audit Auditor’s
Report opinion Annual
Report

Audited body responsibilities

Where audited bodies do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does
not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby
disadvantaging other audits. Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that
agreed due to a client not meeting its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on
site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client not
meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the agreed
timescales. In addition, delayed audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:

produce draft financial statements of good quality by the agreed timetable you have
agreed with us, including all notes, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement;

ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in
accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with you;

ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples for
testing;

ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise agreed)
the planned period of the audit; and

respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

Public

Audit, Governance
& Standards
Committee

9/ abed

g wa)| epuaby

N

2



Audit fees

In 2017, PSAA awarded a contract of audit for Redditch Borough Council to begin with effect from 2018/19. The fee agreed in the
contract was £44,629. Since that time, there have been a number of developments, particularly in relation to the revised Code and
ISA’s which are relevant for the 2020/21 audit.

As referred to on page 19, the 2020/21 Code introduces a revised approach to our VFM work. This requires auditors to produce a
commentary on arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by exception” approach. Auditors now
have to make far more sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as issue key recommendations if any significant
weaknesses in arrangements are identified during the audit. We will be working with the NAO and other audit firms to discuss and
share learning in respect of common issues arising across the sector.

The new approach will be more challenging for audited bodies, involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the
reporting, and the planning and risk assessment which underpins it, will require more audit time, delivered through a richer skill mix
than in previous years. Our estimate is that for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of £71,292 (60%). This is in line with
increases we are proposing at all our local audits.

Additionally, across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and
the need for auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing, as
noted in the number of revised ISA’s issued by the FRC that are applicable to audits of financial statements commencing on or after
15 December 2019.

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and public sector
financial reporting. Our proposed work and fee for 2020/21, as set out below, is detailed overleaf and has been agreed with the
Executive Director Resources.

Proposed fee

Actual Fee 2018/19 Actual Fee 2019/20 2020/21
Redditch Borough Council Audit £57,629 £76,379 £71,292
Total audit fees [excluding VAT) £57,629 £76,379 £71,292

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Assumptions

In setting the above fees, we have

assumed that the Council will:

* prepare a good quality set of
accounts, supported by
comprehensive and well
presented working papers
which are ready at the start of
the audit

* provide appropriate analysis,
support and evidence to
support all critical judgements
and significant judgements
made during the course of
preparing the financial
statements

* provide early notice of
proposed complex or unusual
transactions which could have
a material impact on the
financial statements.

Relevant professional standards

In preparing our fee estimate, we
have had regard to all relevant
professional standards, including
paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the
FRC'’s Ethical Standard (revised
2019) which stipulate that the
Engagement Lead (Key Audit
Partner) must set a fee sufficient
to enable the resourcing of the
audit with partners and staff with
appropriate time and skill to
deliver an audit to the required
professional and Ethicall
standards.

23

Public

) ) abed

g wa)| epuaby



Audit fees - detailed analysis

Scale fee published by PSAA £44,629
Ongoing increases to scale fee first identified in 2019/20
Raising the bar/regulatory factors £2,500
Enhanced audit procedures for Property, Plant and Equipment £3,000
Enhanced audit procedures for Pensions £1,750
PSAA inflationary uplift £1,813
£9,063
Revised base audit fee 2019/20 £53,692
New issues for 2020/21
Additional work on Value for Money (VM) under new NAO Code £10,000
Increased audit requirements of revised ISA 540 (estimates) £2,100
Additional work relating to journals and COVID-19 grants £3,000
Additional work on new ledger system £2,500
Proposed increase to base 2019/20 fee £17,600
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £71,292

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

24

Public

g/ abed

g wa)| epuaby



Independence and non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant
facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm
or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to
discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we
make additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence
as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard (Revised 2019) and we as a firm, and
each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective
opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the
National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out
supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council.

Other services
The following other services provided by Grant Thornton were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be
undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year

Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related
services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network
member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Service Fees £

Threats

Safeguards

Public

Audit related

Certification 24,000
of Housing

benefit

subsidy

claim

Self-Interest
(because
thisis a
recurring
fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not

considered a significant threat to independence as
the fee for this work is £24,000 in comparison to th
total fee for the audit of £71,292 and in particular

e

relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall.

Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent

element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived

self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification 3,000
of Housing

capital

receipts

grant

Self-Interest
(because
thisis a
recurring
fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not

considered a significant threat to independence as
the fee for this work is £3,000 in comparison to the
total fee for the audit of £71,292 and in particular

relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall.

Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent

element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived

self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

6/ abed

Non-audit
related

None

25

g wa)| epuaby



Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

08 abed

g wa)| epuaby



Page 81 Agenda Item 9

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

GRANT THORNTON — INFORMING THE RISK ASSESSMENT 2020-2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Rouse - Portfolio
Holder for Finance and Enabling
Portfolio Holder Consulted -

Relevant Head of Service Peter Carpenter — Head of Finance
and Customer Services

Report Author Job Title: Head of Finance and Customer

Peter Carpenter Services

Contact emaiil:
peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Wards Affected All Wards
Ward Councillor(s) consulted No
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) An effective and sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to note the report and management
responses and comment on if those responses are consistent
with their understanding on the control regime at the Council.

2. BACKGROUND

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  There are no financial implications as a direct result of this report
however robust internal financial control mechanisms as confirmed
within this report reduce the costs associated with fraud and inaccurate
accounting arrangements.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  Grant Thornton have a responsibility to ensure that robust systems are
in place together with proactive communications with those charged
with Governance.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS



mailto:peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 82 Agenda Item 9

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1 The issues detailed in this report help to ensure that there is an
effective and sustainable Council.

Climate Change Implications

5.2  There are no Climate Change implications arising out of this report.

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 There are no Equality and Diversity implications arising out of this
report.

Operational Implications

6.2  This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and
the response that Grant Thornton have received from Redditch
Council’'s management. The Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent
with its understanding and whether there are any further comments it
wishes to make.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 As part of all audit work the auditors undertake a risk assessment to
ensure that adequate controls are in place within the Council so reliance
can be placed on internal systems.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1 — Grant Thornton Informing the Risk Assessment report for
2020-2021



Page 83 Agenda Item 9

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee 14t April
2022

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Councillor Mike Rouse -

Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Finance

and Enabling

Peter Carpenter — Head of April 2022
Lead Director / Head of Finance and Customer
Service Services

Peter Carpenter — Head of April 2022
Financial Services Finance and Customer

Services

N/A

Legal Services

N/A
Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

N/A
Climate Change Officer (if
climate change
implications apply)




This page is intentionally left blank



° Grant Thornton

Informing the audit risk assessment
for Redditch Borough Council
2020/21

T 0117 305 7859
E Jackson.Murray@uk.gt.com

6 Wal| epugDige



Public

o
=
The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which %
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive -
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any e=
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting onthe (D
basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 3

other purpose.
O

2 ©2021 Grant Thomton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21 Q GrantThornton



Public

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10 L)

Laws and Regulations 15 ﬁ

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16 %

Related Parties 18 >
Q.

Accounting Estimates 21 QJ

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 22 —

Appendix A — Accounting Estimates 25 CBD
O

Q GrantThornton

3 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Redditch Borough Council's external auditors and
Redditch Borough Council’'s Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important
areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee under auditing

standards.

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit, Governance and

Standards Committee and also specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee in understanding matters relating to the
audit and developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit,

Governance and Standards Committee and supports the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to th

financial reporting process.

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of th

following areas:

General Enquiries of Management;
Fraud,;

Laws and Regulations;

Related Parties; and

Accounting Estimates.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Q GrantThornton

e

Public

e

6 Waj| epu



Public

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Redditch Borough Council’s
management. The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and
whether there are any further comments it wishes to make.

6 Wal| epuahigey

Q GrantThornton

5  © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events orissues that  The key issues that will impact the financial statements for 2020/21 can be split between external and

will have a significant impact on the financial statements internal. The external impact will be determining the accounting requirements for IFRS 16 and the

for 2020/217? increased audit scrutiny with regards to fixed assets. Internally, the implementation of the new ERP
system has now been completed, so it will be a learning process to ensure that working papers created
meet audit requirements. Finally, the impact of COVID-19 and the passporting of grants as well as the
multi year nature of the collection fund impacts must be accounted for correctly. The continuing impact of
COVID-19 on the leisure industry has significant ramifications for the Council through its wholly owned
leisure company Rubicon Leisure which will be reflected in detail in the accounts.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the The accounting policies are reviewed every year as part of the accounts closedown process. There are no ;JU
?:ccour.llt;ng policies adopted by Redditch Borough proposed discretionary changes this year as there have been no fundamental changes in Council activitiesﬁ
ouncil?

Have there been any events or transactions that may

cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies?

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including No
derivatives?

8b

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside  The passporting of COVID-19 grants has been a significant piece of work which would be considered to b
the normal course of business? outside the usual course of business.

6 Wal| epu

Q GrantThornton

6  © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that A fyl| review will be conducted as part of the closedown process with officers across the Council and
would lead to impairment of non-current assets? insurance asked to feedback to determine if there have been any potential impacts on non current assets.
To date there have been none notified.

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? No

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies g
and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial
statements?

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details pyring the year the Council as used Anthony Collins Solicitors, Browne Jacobson LLP, Bevan Brittan

of those solicitors utilised by Redditch Borough Council  sgjicitors ,St Philips, St Ives and Kings Chambers. Also Geldards LLP and BLM Solicitors.
during the year. Please indicate where they are working

on open litigation or contingencies from prior years? None working on open litigation or contingencies from previous years.

6 Wa}| epushHigey

Q GrantThornton

7  © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of the Council’s service providers reported g
any items of fraud, non-compliance with laws and
regulations or uncorrected misstatements which would
affect the financial statements?

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted  g|ack Radley have been hired by the Council to support its implementation of a commercial culture and

during the year and the issue on which they were bring challenge where appropriate to decision making.
consulted?

6 W3}l epubipeq

@ GrantThornton

8  © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud
ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management. Management,
with the oversight of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and
encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee should consider the
potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Redditch Borough Council’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management
override of controls.

ed

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements management h
put in place with regard to fraud risks including:

» assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud;

8b

» process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks;
» communication with the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud; and
* communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.

We need to understand how the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries
both management and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas
have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Redditch Borough Council’s management.

6 Wa}| epu

Q GrantThornton

9  © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

1. Has Redditch Borough Council assessed the risk of  The Council has assessed the risk of material misstatement. Although there is an on-going risk of fraud
material misstatement in the financial statements due to  peing committed against the Council, arrangements are in place to both prevent and detect fraud. These

LUl include work carried out by Internal Audit on overall fraud risk areas and work on Council Tax and Housing
. . . Benefit fraud.

How has the process of identifying and responding to

L2 5. @ HECIE BEn Dnler 2l Em wiel Sre i There is on-going communication between external audit and responsible officers on emerging technical

SIS @IS PosEess issues. Officers also attend technical updates. Financial monitoring reports also highlight areas of

o ; variance within the capital and revenue budgets and this assists management in identifying areas of
How do the Council’s risk management processes link to  aterial misstatement within the accounts

financial reporting?

Management considers there is a low risk of material misstatement in the financial statements due to
fraud and none has been detected to date.

2. What have you determined to be the classes of There are some areas that are inherently at risk from fraud such as:
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to .
fraud? -Council Tax

-Benefit Fraud
-Single person discount

6 Wa}| epuhigey

10 © 2021 Grant Thomton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21 Q Grant Thornton



Public

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected  The Audit, Governance & Standards Committee receives any adhoc fraud reports.
or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either

within Redditch Borough Council as a whole or within
specific departments since 1 April 2020? The Audit, Governance & Standards Committee would consider the fraud and the actions put forward by
As a management team, how do you communicate risk officers to ensure fraud is mitigated in the future.

issues (including fraud) to those charged with

governance?

4. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? Evidence published within the Annual Fraud Indicator report suggests that fraud is committed in all
organisations to varying degrees, so it is likely that some fraud is occurring in the Council.

Do you have any concerns there are areas thatare at | gpcations handling income, particularly in the form of cash, are more likely to be at risk of fraud. However,

risk of fraud? management does not consider these to be significant risks.

There are no material instances of fraud that have been identified during the year.

Med

Are there particular locations within Redditch Borough
Council where fraud is more likely to occur?

5. What processes do Redditch Borough Council Financial monitoring reports highlight areas of variance within the capital and revenue budgets and this
have in place to identify and respond to risks of assists management in identifying areas of material misstatement within the accounts.
fraud?

6 Wall epuad

Q GrantThornton

11 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Fraud risk assessment

Public

Question Management response

6. How do you assess the overall control environment for Redditch
Borough Council, including:

» the existence of internal controls, including segregation of
duties; and

» the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of
internal control?

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the
risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect
fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of
controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting
process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve
financial targets)?

7. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting?

12 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Internal Audit include fraud risks in their planning process and act as an effective internal
control against fraud.

Sound systems of internal control with roles and responsibilities are defined in various
places such as constitution.

The role of Internal Audit provides assurance that the Council’s internal controls are in
place. An annual report is produced and is available prior to the annual accounts being
signed and approved.

The regular monitoring of budgets and the allocation of financial professional support to
budget holders provide control and mitigation against such overrides.

Due to the control environment in place, there are no areas which are particularly at risk
of misreporting.

6 W3}l epuzbipeq

Q GrantThornton



Fraud risk assessment

Public

Question Management response

8. How does Redditch Borough Council
communicate and encourage ethical behaviours
and business processes of it's staff and
contractors?

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns

about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about
fraud?

Have any significant issues been reported?
9. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what
are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified,
assessed and managed?

10. Are you aware of any related party relationships
or transactions that could give rise to instances of
fraud?

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud

related to related party relationships and
transactions?

13 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

There is a Fraud Strategy and Whistleblowing procedure in place which explain the procedures to follow.

These policies have been reviewed and are in place for 2020/21.

Employees are aware of the anti-fraud and corruption strategy, details are available on the website.

Staff are encouraged to report anything that they perceive as being “out of the ordinary”, and no issues
have been raised to date.

There are not any significantly high-risk posts identified.

2019/20 financial statements disclosure of related party transactions does not identify potential fraud
risk.

Members and officers are required to make full disclosure of any relationships that impact on their roles.
Members are required to declare any relevant interests at Council and Committee meetings.

6 Wa}| epuUHigey

Q GrantThornton



Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

Internal Audit provide the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee with updates of their work on fraud
prevention and detection, including any significant identified frauds and the action taken.

11. What arrangements are in place to report fraud
issues and risks to the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee?

How does the Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee exercise oversight over management's
processes for identifying and responding to risks of
fraud and breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements
so far this year?

12. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential
or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so,
what has been your response?

13. Have any reports been made under the Bribery
Act?

14 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Any adhoc investigations are reported to the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee.

The Corporate risk register is reviewed by the Committee and the Member risk champion reports to the
Committee at each meeting on updates from managers in relation to departmental registers.

To date, no issues or concerns have been raised.

We are not aware of any whistleblowing reports.

If there was such a report then members would consider the appropriate course of action.

We are not aware of any reports under the Bribery Act.

Q GrantThornton

Public

6 W3}l epuabireq



Public

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Redditch Borough Council's
operations are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements.

As auditors, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud
or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make
inquiries of management and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations.
Where we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance
and the possible effect on the financial statements.

Med

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

6 Wall epuad

Q GrantThornton

15 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws  The Monitoring Officer will advise the Council's Management team and Councillors as
and regulations have been complied with? appropriate.

The reporting arrangements include sections for both financial and legal implications to
ensure managers have considered compliance with laws and regulations. In addition staff
have professional training and conduct in place to support compliance.

What arrangements does Redditch Borough Council have in
place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and
regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory
environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’'s We are not aware of any changes to Redditch Borough Council’s regulatory environment

financial statements? that may have a significant impact on the Redditch Borough Council’s financial statements.
2. How is the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Assurance of complying with the Council's Constitution is provided through the Annual
provided with assurance that all relevant laws and regulations Governance Statement which is reported to the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee.

have been complied with?

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or No
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1

April 2020 with an on-going impact on the 2020/21 financial
statements?

4. Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would No
affect the financial statements?

6 W3l epushireq

Q GrantThornton

16 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

5. What arrangements does Redditch Borough The legal and finance team liaise on a regular basis to identify and evaluate any potential claims.

Council have in place to identify, evaluate and
account for litigation or claims?

6. Have there been any report from other regulatory No
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs which
indicate non-compliance?

6 Wall epushireq

@ GrantThornton

17 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

Related Parties

Matters in relation to Related Parties

Redditch Borough Council are required to disclose transactions with entities/individuals that would be classed as related parties. These may
include:
+ entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Redditch Borough Council;

+ associates;

* joint ventures;

* an entity that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;

+ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

+ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the Council.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council’s
perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the
financial statements are complete and accurate.

6 W3l epushiFeq

Q GrantThornton

18 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21



Public

Related Parties

Question Management response

1. Have there been any changes in the related parties The Council, by nature of its activities, has a significant list of related parties with which it transacts.
including those disclosed in Redditch Borough Council’'s  There have been no material changes in relation to related parties since 2019/20, subject to the
2019/20 financial statements? receipt of management and member declarations for 2020/21

If so please summarise:

» the nature of the relationship between these related
parties and Redditch Borough Council;

» whether Redditch Borough Council has entered into
or plans to enter into any transactions with these
related parties; and

» the type and purpose of these transactions .

2. What controls does Redditch Borough Council have in A number of arrangements are in place for identifying the nature of a related party and reported
place to identify, account for and disclose related party ~ value including:

transactions and relationships? . . . ) . . )
+ Maintenance of a register of interests for Members, and a register for pecuniary interests in

contracts for Officers and Senior Mangers requiring disclosure of related party transactions.

» Annual return from senior managers/officers requiring confirmation that they have read and
understood the declaration requirements and stating details of any known related party interests.

* Review of in-year income and expenditure transactions with known identified related parties from
prior year or known history.

6 W3l epyshireq

19 © 2021 Grant Thomton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21 Q Grant Thornton



Related Parties

Public

Question Management response

2. What controls does Redditch Borough Council
have in place to identify, account for and disclose
related party transactions and relationships?

3. What controls are in place to authorise and
approve significant transactions and arrangements
with related parties?

4. What controls are in place to authorise and
approve significant transactions outside of the
normal course of business?

20 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

* Review of in-year income and expenditure transactions with known identified related parties from
prior year or known history.

» Review of the accounts payable and receivable systems and identification of amounts paid to/from
assisted or voluntary organisation.

* Review of year end debtor and creditor positions in relation to the related parties identified.

* Review of minutes of decision making meetings to identify any member declarations and therefore
related parties.

Transactions with related parties are subject to the same authorisation and approval arrangements as
other transactions including controls enforced though the Technologyone system and the observance of
the segregation of duties of officers. Significant changes to arrangements with related parties will be
reported through the Council’s political management processes as appropriate.

All transactions including any outside the normal course of business are subject to the same
authorisation and approval arrangements including controls enforced though the Technologyone system
and the observance of the segregation of duties of officers. All business will be expected to be within
Council policy and any new business will be subject to a formal decision through political management
arrangements

6 W3l epyahireq

Q GrantThornton



Public

Accounting estimates

Issue

Matters in relation to Related Accounting estimates

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) requires auditors to understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates,
including:

As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important
where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement.

Specifically do Audit, Governance and Standards Committee members:

We would ask the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate.

the nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
how management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

how the entity’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;

the entity’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;

the entity’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

how management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and

evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

6 W3l epusPigeq

21  ©2021 Grant Thomton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21 Q Grant Thornton



Public

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question

Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and
conditions, that are significant to the financial
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in,
accounting estimate and related disclosures?

2. How does the Council’s risk management process
identify and addresses risks relating to accounting
estimates?

3. How do management identify the methods,
assumptions or source data, and the need for changes
in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

4. How do management review the outcomes of
previous accounting estimates?

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes
in 2020/21 and, if so, what was the reason for these?

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

The need for material accounting estimates is considered for property asset valuations, pensions assets
and liabilities values and provision for credit losses and impairment allowances and provision for other
liabilities.

Each area is subject to robust scrutiny as part of the closedown process informed by input from external
professional experts where appropriate and using evidence based approaches to assess the estimation
basis.

Each area has a clear set of base information and/or accounting records including a significant degree of
historical data where relevant. They will have established calculation bases which are reviewed and refin
in response to external challenge (e.g. from the external auditor) or changing circumstances (e.g. the
COVID-19 pandemic).

Uabipeq

Accounting estimates will be reviewed as the natural course of some of these estimates where historical
data/performance provides the starting point of estimation. Other areas of estimation are subject to valuati
from first principles each year.

No

6 Wal| Bp

Q GrantThornton



Public

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

6. How do management identify the need for and apply
specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting
estimates?

7. How does the Council determine what control
activities are needed for significant accounting
estimates, including the controls at any service
providers or management experts?

8. How do management monitor the operation of control
activities related to accounting estimates, including the
key controls at any service providers or management
experts?

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and

governance over management’s financial reporting

process relevant to accounting estimates, including:

* management’s process for making significant
accounting estimates;

* the methods and models used; and

+ the resultant accounting estimates included in the
financial statements.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Differentiation has been made between where external expert knowledge and access to wider market data
is required to make an accounting estimate and where in-house expertise and experience can be
reasonably applied. There is a value for money consideration in respect of the likely value and variability of
accounting estimates and the cost of procuring external advice.

There is a degree of reliance on the work of externally procured experts although all accounting estimated
will be subject to a test of reasonableness. Actuarial and property valuation experts work within industry
wide standards which provide a high degree of quality assurance.

ed

External experts provide comprehensive reports detailing the basis and output of their work which provide
management the facility to understand and challenge accounting estimates.

epy

Areas of significant accounting estimates are clearly flagged in the financial reporting process to the

Council’s Audit, Governance & Standards Committee through the note on ‘Significant Assumptions made irr=—

estimating Assets and Liabilities’. Areas of volatility and those deemed to be of significant interest (by valu

or nature) will be given particular prominence in the presentation to Committee. 3
O

Q GrantThornton



Public

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

10. Are management aware of transactions, events,
conditions (or changes in these) that may give rise
to recognition or disclosure of significant accounting
estimates that require significant judgement (other
than those in Appendix A)?

11. Are the management arrangements for the
accounting estimates, as detailed in Appendix A,
reasonable?

12. How is the Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee provided with assurance that the
arrangements for accounting estimates are
adequate?

24 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

The impact of COVID-19 on the accounts may well impact on accounting estimates and result in
significant judgement being applied.

Yes

The professional judgement of the Section 151 officer is applied and then explained to committee with
regards to the accounting estimates used.

6 W3l epyshigeq

’Q GrantThornton



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to make
the estimate

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
Management
have used
an expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of
uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative
estimates

Public

Has there been a
changein
accounting
method in year?

La_nd_ and The Council has a contract with
buildings Bruton Knowles to manage its
valuations asset base, including undertaking

annual valuations. The Valuer is a
RICS/CIB Member) and reviews
are made inline with RICS
guidance on the basis of 5 year
valuations with interim reviews.

Depreciation  pepreciation is provided for on all
fixed assets with a finite useful life
on a straight-line basis.

25 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Technical Accountant
notifies the valuer of the
program of rolling
valuations or of any
conditions that warrant
an interim re-valuation

Consistent application
of depreciation method
across all assets.

Yes, Bruton
Knowles

No

Valuations are made in line with RICS
guidance —reliance on expert.

The length of the life is determined at
the point of acquisition or revaluation
according to:

* Assets acquired in the first half of a
financial year and depreciated on
the basis of a full year's charge;
assets acquired in the second half
are not depreciated until the
following financial year.

» Assets that are not fully constructed
are not depreciated until they are
brought into use.

No

No

6 W3l epushireq

’Q GrantThornton



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model used to
make the estimate

Estimate

Valuation of The estimates of actuarial
defined movements in the pension
benefit net fund liabilities are undertaken
pension by a qualified actuary. The

fund - actuary uses estimates based

liabilities on their professional know
ledge within accepted
parameters used by the sector
and as reviewed by the
Council.

Fair value
estimates

The calculations for the fair
value of financial instruments
and borrowings are provided
by the Council’s treasury
management advisers,
Arlingclose. These are
generally for disclosure only.

26 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Controls used to
identify estimates

The Council reviews
the factors used by

the actuary to

determine that they

are within the
standard sector

parameters and are

reasonable.

Appropriately
qualified experts
used to derive
valuations.

Whether
Management
have used an
expert

A certified

actuary is used
by the pension
fund to provide
the information

Yes,
Arlingclose

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative estimates

The underlying assumptions are based on the
actuary’s judgement within the standard sector
parameters. Given the length of the liabilities a small
change to one of the parameters could have a
significant impact on the level of liabilities reported.
The professional actuary is used to ensure that the
estimate has been based on an appropriate basis.
Asset valuations have been based on the best
estimates available to the pension fund at the time of
producing the report. Additional disclosures will be
set out in the accounts on the potential uncertainties
at the year end.

The Council does not have any complex borrowings
with high degrees of uncertainty. The Council
employs relevant experts to identify the most
appropriate valuation techniques to determine fair
value — being its professional treasury advisers,
Arlingclose.

Public

Has there
been a
changein
accounting
method in
year?

No

No

6 W3l epyRhireq

Q GrantThornton



27

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate

Provisions

Method / model used to
make the estimate

Provisions are made where an
event has taken place that
gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that
probably requires settlement
by a transfer of economic
benefits or service potential,
and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are
charged as an expense to the
appropriate service line in the
CIES in the year that the
Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and are measured
at the best estimate at the
balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle
the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and
uncertainties.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Controls used to
identify estimates

Charged in the year that
the Council becomes
aware of the obligation.

Whether
Management
have used an
expert

No

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative
estimates

Estimated settlements are reviewed at the
end of each financial year —where it
becomes less than probable that a
transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than
anticipated is made), the provision is
reversed and credited back to the
relevant service. Where some or all of
the payment required to settle a provision
is expected to be recovered from another
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this
is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received by the
Council.

Public

Has there
been a
changein
accounting
method in
year?

No.

6 Wall epyhgey

Q GrantThornton



28

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to
make the estimate

Accruals We use standard accruals
accounting —accruals are
based on expenses incurred
that have not yet been paid.

Credit loss and An analysis has been made of

Impairment the repayment profile of

allowances invoices raised. This has then
been used to inform the
judgement as to the level of
expected credit losses
required taking into account
the nature of the debtors and
whether there is any security
over the debt.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Redditch Borough Council 2020/21

Controls used to
identify estimates

Monthly management
accounts provides
rigorous analysis so that
any accruals are
highlighted and

actioned throughout the
year.

The estimates
determined from the
exercise have been
compared to the
amount of debt written
off in prior years to
ensure that estimates
remained reasonable.
Assumptions have been
challenged on the
robustness of provisions
proposed.

Whether
Management
have used an
expert

N/A.

A range of
relevant Council
staff have been
consulted where
appropriate.

Underlying assumptions: Has there

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty been a

- Consideration of alternative changein

CHUNEES accounting
method in
year?

N/A. No.

The impact of the spread of Covid-19 on No
the local economy as a result of the

measures taken may not be determined

for some time. Whilst initial estimates

have been made these will need to be

reviewed as more information is gathered.

Q GrantThornton

Public

6 Wall epuhigey



GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to
one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not

provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

6 W3l epyphigeq



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115 Agenda Item 10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

THE INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Rouse

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Peter Carpenter, Interim Head of
Finance and Customer Services

Report Author Job Title: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service
Contact email: andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 01905 722051

Wards Affected All Wards
Ward Councillor(s) consulted No
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) Good Governance & Risk

Management Underpins all the
Strategic Purposes.

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Audit, Governance & Standards Committee recommend:-
1) thereportis noted.

2. BACKGROUND
The involvement of Member’s in progress monitoring is considered an important
facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the internal control
assurance given in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

This section of the report provides commentary on Internal Audit’s performance
for the period 015t April 2021 to 28" February 2022 against the performance
indicators agreed for the service and further information on other aspects of the
service delivery.

Summary Dashboard 2021/22:

Total reviews planned for 2021/22 15 (minimum originally)
Reviews finalised to date for 2021/22: 8 (incl. WRS & DFG's)
Assurance of ‘moderate’ or below: 2

Reviews awaiting final sign off: 6

Reviews ongoing: 6

Reviews to commence (Q4): 0

Number of ‘High’ Priority recommendations reported: 1

Satisfied ‘High’ priority recommendations to date: 0

Productivity: (end of Q3) 56%

Revised overall plan delivery to February 2022: 78% (against target >90%)


mailto:andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk

Page 116 Agenda Item 10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Since the last progress report presented to the Committee, three reports have
been finalised and are reported in Appendix 3.

Follow Up reports that have been finalised since the last progress report
presented before Committee are reported in Appendix 4.

All ‘limited’ assurance reviews go before CMT for full consideration.

2021/22 AUDITS TAKING PLACE AS AT 28" FEBRUARY 2022

Due to the implementation of the new financial system and an extended delay
to provide audit with a ‘read only’ access profile the rolling testing programme
that should have been continuing during quarters 1 and 2 for Debtors and
Creditors did not take place. Partial access was established at the end of
September but full read only access was not established until December. This
has impacted the testing the result being a smaller sample overall and a
reliance on the review testing due to take place in Q3 and Q4 to provide formal
assurance. Payroll has been completed on a rolling basis.

The reviews that have been finalised and reported at Appendix 3 are:
e Benefits
¢ Risk Management
e Treasury Management

The reviews at clearance or draft report stage are:
Budget Monitoring

Debtors

Fuel Use — Housing Fleet

Procurement

Payroll

Main Ledger

Reviews that had commenced and at planning or testing stages included:
e Grants

NNDR

Council Tax

Gas Inspections

Asbestos Regulation Compliance

Creditors

As the above are classified as ‘on going’ the assurance and outcome of the
reviews will be reported at Committee on completion.

Critical review audits are designed to add value to an evolving Service area.
Depending on the transformation that a Service is experiencing at the time of a



Page 117 Agenda Item 10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

scheduled review a decision is made regarding the audit approach. Where
there is significant change taking place due to transformation, restructuring,
significant legislative updates or a comparison required a critical review
approach will be used. To assist the service area to move forwards challenge
areas will be identified using audit review techniques. The percentage of critical
reviews will be confirmed as part of the overall outturn figure for the audit
programme. The outturn from the reviews will be reported in summary format
as part of the regular reporting.

Internal Audit are continuing to consider new processes emerging from the
changing working arrangements that have been necessary to continue to
provide Redditch residents with services throughout the pandemic. Plan
flexibility is continuing to be required to include and provide assurance on
potential areas of change. This has been reflected in the current plan with two
deferrals, Refuse Service Scalability and IT. These have been deferred due to
changing in requirements. The Environment Act will impact significantly on the
refuse service in the next 12 months and there is currently a significant piece
of work being undertaken to strengthen cyber security arrangements and
ensure industry standards are deployed.

Follow up reviews are an integral part of the audit process. There is a rolling
programme of review that is undertaken to ensure that there is progress with
the implementation of the agreed action plans. The outcomes of the follow up
reviews are reported in full so the general direction of travel and the risk
exposure can be considered by Committee. An escalation process involving
CMT and SMT is in place to ensure more effective use of resource regarding
follow up to reduce the number of revisits necessary to confirm the
recommendations have been satisfied. Notwithstanding the existing exception
that has already been reported before Committee, there are no new material
exceptions to report.

3.4 AUDIT DAYS

Appendix 1 shows the progress made towards delivering the 2021/22 Internal
Audit Plan and achieving the targets set for the year. At the 28" February 2022
a total of 253 days had been delivered against an overall target of 325 days for
2021/22.

Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service. Performance and
management indicators were approved by the Committee on the 29" July 2021
for 2021/22.

Appendix 3 provides copies of the reports that have been completed and final
reports issued since the previous progress report presented to Committee.



Page 118 Agenda Item 10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Appendix 4 provides the Committee with ‘Follow Up’ reports that have been
undertaken to monitor audit recommendation implementation progress by
management.

Appendix 5 provides an overview of the Quality Assurance Improvement Plan.

3.5 OTHER KEY AUDIT WORK

Much internal audit work is carried out “behind the scenes” but is not always the
subject of a formal report. Productive audit time is accurately recorded against
the service or function as appropriate. Examples include:

e Governance for example assisting with the Annual Government Statement
Risk management

Transformation review providing support as a ‘critical appraisal’
Dissemination of information regarding potential fraud cases likely to affect
the Council

Drawing managers’ attention to specific audit or risk issues

Audit advice and commentary

Internal audit recommendations: follow up review to analyse progress

Day to day audit support and advice for example control implications, etc.
Networking with audit colleagues in other Councils on professional points of
practice

National Fraud Initiative coordination of uploads.

¢ Investigations

National Fraud Initiative

3.6 NFI data set uploads were completed by the end of December 2021. WIASS
continue to provide advice and assistance regarding the process.

Monitoring

3.7 To ensure the delivery of the 2021/22 plan and any revision required there
continues to be close and continual monitoring of the plan delivery, forecasted
requirements of resource — v — actual delivery, and where necessary, additional
resource will be secured to assist with the overall Service demands. The Head
of Internal Audit Shared Service remains confident his team have provided the
required coverage for the year to ensure an internal audit opinion can be
reached using reviews from the authority’s core financial systems, as well as
other systems which have been deemed to be ‘high’ and ‘medium’ risk.
Changes to the plan have been discussed with the s151 Officer and reported to
Committee.



Page 119 Agenda Item 10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2018 to “maintain in accordance with proper practices an adequate
and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system
of internal control”.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqic Purpose

5.1 Good governance along with risk management underpin all the Corporate
strategic purposes. This report provides an independent assurance over
certain aspects of the Council’s operations.

Climate Change Implications

5.2  The actions proposed do not have a direct impact on climate change
implications.

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 There are no implications arising out of this report.

Operational Implications

6.2  There are no new operational implications arising from this report.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1  The main risks associated with the details included in this report are to:

¢ Insufficiently complete the planned programme of audit work within
the financial year leading to an inability to produce an annual opinion;
and,



Page 120 Agenda Item 10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

e a continuous provision of an internal audit service is not maintained.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1 ~ Internal Audit Plan delivery 2021/22

Appendix 2 ~ Performance indicators 2021/22

Appendix 3 ~ Finalised audit reports including definitions.2021/22
Appendix 4 ~ ‘Follow-up’ reports

Appendix 5 ~ Quality Assurance Improvement Plan



Page 121 Agenda Item 10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

APPENDIX 1
Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22
15t April 2021 to 28" February 2022
Audit Area Original Forecasted Actual
2021/22 days to the  Days used
Plan Days  31%'March to 28t
2022 February
2022
Core Financial Systems (see note 1) 112 112 108
Corporate Audits 76 76 65
Other Systems Audits (see note 2) 143 88 47
SUB TOTAL 331 276 220
Audit Management Meetings 20 20 16
Corporate Meetings / Reading 9 9 8
Annual Plans, Reports and Audit 25 20 9
Committee Support
Other chargeable (see note 3)
SUB TOTAL 54 49 33
TOTAL 385 325 253

Audit days used are rounded to the nearest whole.

Note 1: Core Financial Systems are audited predominantly in quarters 3 and 4 in order to maximise the assurance provided
for Annual Governance Statement and Statement of Accounts but not interfere with year end. A rolling programme has also been
introduced for Debtors and Creditors to maximise coverage and sample size, but internal audit has been unable to deliver this
during 2021/22 due to restricted system access. Partial access was provided during September 2021 with further access
established during December 2021. The overall results will be reported during Q4.

Note 2: Several budgets in this section are ‘on demand’ (e.g. consultancy, investigations) so the requirements can fluctuate
throughout the quarters potentially resulting in unallocated days. This is expected during 21/22 hence the reason why the
forecasted figure shows a reduction. This along with reviews that have either not required the full number of days to complete or
those that have been deferred have been reflected in the adjustment.

Note 3: ‘Other chargeable’ days equate to times where there has been, for example, significant disruption to the IT provision
resulting in lost productivity.



Page 122 Agenda Item

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Date: 14" April 2022

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2021/22

Appendix 2

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against some
of the following key performance indicators for 2021/22. Other key performance indicators link
to overall governance requirements of Redditch Borough Council e.g. KP1 4 to 6. The position

will be reported on a cumulative basis throughout the year.

1x Excellent

KPI Trend/Target 2021/22 Position (as of 28" Frequency of
requirement/Direction of February 2022) Reporting
Travel
Operational
1 | No. of audits Per target Target = 15 When Audit
achieved  during (Minimum originally) Committee
the year Delivered = 8 (incl. WRS & DFG’s) convene
6 @ Draft/Clearance
6 in progress
2 | Percentage of | >90% of agreed annual plan 78% When Audit
Plan delivered Committee
convene
3 | Service Positive direction year on year Q3 Average When Audit
productivity 56% Committee
convene
(2020/21 average 62%)
Monitoring & Governance
4 | No. of  ‘high’ Downward 1 When Audit
priority Committee
recommendations (minimal) (2020/21 = 4) convene
5 | No. of moderate or Downward 2 When Audit
below assurances Committee
(mlnlmal) (2020/21 = 6) convene
6 | ‘Follow Up’ results Management action plan 1 When Audit
implementation date exceeded Committee
(2020/21 = 0) convene
(Nil)
Customer Satisfaction
7 | No. of customers Upward 1 issued to date When Audit
who assess the Rec’d 1x Excellent Committee
service as (increasing) convene
‘excellent’ 2020/21

WIASS conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (as amended).

10



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

APPENDIX 3

Appendices A & B are indicated below and are applied to all reports. To save duplication these have been produced once and listed
below for information but can also be applied to Appendix 4.

Appendix A

Definition of Audit Opinion Levels of Assurance

Opinion

Definition

Full Assurance

The system of internal control meets the organisation’s objectives; all of the expected system controls tested are in place and are operating effectively.

No specific follow up review will be undertaken; follow up will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system.

Significant There is a generally sound system of internal control in place designed to meet the organisation’s objectives. However isolated weaknesses in the design
Assurance of controls or inconsistent application of controls in a small number of areas put the achievement of a limited number of system objectives at risk.
Follow up of medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken as part
of the next planned review of the system.
Moderate The system of control is generally sound however some of the expected controls are not in place and / or are not operating effectively therefore increasing
Assurance the risk that the system will not meet its objectives. Assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system.
Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken
as part of the next planned review of the system.
Limited Weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of the organisation’s objectives at risk in many of the areas
Assurance reviewed. Assurance is limited to the few areas of the system where controls are in place and are operating effectively.

Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken
as part of the next planned review of the system.

No Assurance

No assurance can be given on the system of internal control as significant weaknesses in the design and / or operation of key controls could result or have
resulted in failure to achieve the organisation’s objectives in the area reviewed.

Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken
as part of the next planned review of the system.

c2T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Appendix B
Definition of Priority of Recommendations

Priority Definition
High Control weakness that has or is likely to have a significant impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives.
Immediate implementation of the agreed recommendation is essential in order to provide satisfactory control of the serious risk(s) the
system is exposed to.

Medium | Control weakness that has or is likely to have a medium impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives.
Implementation of the agreed recommendation within 3 to 6 months is important in order to provide satisfactory control of the risk(s)
the system is exposed to.

Low Control weakness that has a low impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives.
Implementation of the agreed recommendation is desirable as it will improve overall control within the system.

2T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

2021/22 Audit Reports.

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL
2

W ¢ 3%y Bromsgrove

a\Cé . Y\ : District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

A f(e’w

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

Final Internal Audit Report
Benefits Audit 2021-22

Date 19th January 2022

Distribution:
To:  Customer Support Manager
CC: Chief Executive
Head of Financial and Customer Services
Executive Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer)

GZT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14" April 2022

Contents

O 11 o To [ o 1o [P PPPPPPP Error! Bookmark not defined.
P ANE (o [ @S YoTo o= Tr=TaTo I o] o] [Tt 11V - Error! Bookmark not defined.
3. Audit Opinion and EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ........uuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieaeebeeeebebeeeaeebeeeesbnabaeneaneaeeenennnnes Error! Bookmark not defined.
4. Detailed Findings and ReCOMMENALiONS ............uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e eaeens Error! Bookmark not defined.
INdependence aNd ELNICS: ........cooii oo e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e eaaane Error! Bookmark not defined.
F N o N G ORI Error! Bookmark not defined.
APPENDIX B .ot Error! Bookmark not defined.

o¢T abed

1. Introduction

11 The audit of the Benefits process was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch
Borough Council for 2021/22 which was approved by the Governance and Standards Committee on 29" July 2021 and for Bromsgrove District
Council by the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on 22" July 2021. The audit was a risk-based systems audit of the Benefits as
operated by Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove District Council.

1.2 This review relates to the strategic purposes of:

o BDC Plan 2019-23: Strategic Purpose - Work and Financial Independence. Priorities - Financial Stability.
RBC: Plan 2020-24: Strategic Purposes - Aspiration, Work & Financial independence

0T Wsal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

13

1.4

2 Audit Scope and objective

2.1

2.2

The following entries on the service risk register are relevant to this review.

BEN 1 Fail to effectively resource the service to meet demands

BENS Impact of Welfare Reform Act

BEN 4 Impact of Introduction of Local Council Tax Scheme

BEN 7 Benefits Subsidy

BEN 9 Failure to meet audit requirements

BEN 11 Failure of Corporate Fraud and Compliance Team

REV 6 Fail to make a timely decision (political direction) to manage changes to the Council Tax Support Scheme
REV 9 Impact of introduction of Local Council Tax Scheme

This review was undertaken during the month(s) of October 2021 and November 2021

/2T abed

The audit provided assurance on the accuracy of the award for the revised Council Tax Reduction Scheme, the Test and Trace Support payments,
the action plan in place to deal with any backlog of work and that the service is operating as business as usual in these unprecedented times.
Assurance was also given regarding the regular monitoring of Discretionary Housing Payment refusals and that the new performance measures
are transparent, updated and Quality Monitoring also focuses on the areas of highest risk.

The scope covered:

. A review of the updated position in relation to the 2019/20 audit recommendations.

. Management of any backlogs of work and getting back to business as usual.

. Test and Trace Support payments are being awarded in line with the procedures for the main and discretionary scheme.
. Awards are being made in line with the revised Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2021/22.

. Quality Assurance monitoring is taking place.

. Discretionary Housing Payment refusals are being monitored.

. New Performance measures are accurate, transparent, updated monthly and reported regularly.

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

2.3

2.4

This reviewed covered the period from 15t April 2021 to completion of the testing

This review did not cover

. Compliance with internal processes and external legislation to allow the prompt and accurate processing of new Housing Benefit claims
and changes of circumstance as third-party assurance (DWP and External Audit Assessment) will be used to provide assurance.

. The process of recovery, including the classification of overpayments and its effect on subsidy.

. Payments made under the discretionary hardship scheme.

3 Audit Opinion and Executive Summary

3.1

3.2

3.3

From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of significant assurance over the control environment in this area. The level of
assurance has been calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been
defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A. However, it should be noted that statements of assurance
levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.

g¢T abed

We have given an opinion of significant assurance in this area because there is a generally sound system of internal control in place but that
our testing has identified isolated weaknesses in the design of controls and / or inconsistent application of controls in a small number of areas.

The review found the following areas of the system were working well:

Implementation of the revised Council Tax Reduction scheme

Processing of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme claims with good meaningful file notes.

Processing the Test and Trace payment within a timely manner with unknown quantity of applications.
Adapting to remote working and change during the pandemic and retaining business as usual.

The work carried out within the quality assurance team.

Monitoring of the spend against the Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP)

0T Wal| epusaby



Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

14™" April 2022

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The follow up recommendation regarding reconciliations will be followed up within the Main Ledger Audit which is due to be carried out in quarter
4. The remaining follow up actions, review of the modules for efficiency and the implementation of the new Housing System are ongoing and will
be reviewed again within the 2022/23 audit.

The Benefits team are still waiting the outcome from the proposed re-structure that has taken over 3 years to complete. This has left certain staff
in secondment roles and carrying out duties that are not within their current job role description. This has led to ongoing pressures including within
the quality assurance team.

This service has had to continue to deliver business as usual throughout the pandemic and in addition have had to take on additional activities
such as the test and trace payments which has presented challenges with resourcing as it was unfamiliar and unknown quantity of applications.
There was also pressure by Central Government to get these payments out to the customers quickly. The Team have also introduced and rolled
out a revised council tax reduction scheme. Staff managed with little disruption to the service during the first lock down to continue with business
as usual while obtaining the equipment to work remotely. With the current restrictions a return to the office is unlikely but it is important that any
return to the office in future needs to be planned to minimise any disruption to the officers and customers due to the statutory nature and
importance to the customer provided by this service. Based on previous audits there are clear indications of the positive direction of travel
achieved by the Team and Service in very difficult times and the adoption of a more proactive approach.

62T abed

The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened:

Priority Section 4
(see Appendix B) Recommendation
number
Outstanding Work Queue/Backlogs Medium 1
Test and Trace Support Payments Medium 2
Dashboard — Performance Measures Medium 3

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

14™" April 2022

4 Detailed Findings and Recommendations

The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and
action plan. The issues identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity. The definitions for high, medium, and low priority are

set out in the “Definition of Priority of Recommendations” table in Appendix B.

Ref.

Priority

Finding

Risk

Recommendation

Management Response and
Action Plan

Issues brought forward from previous audit
Reconciliation. This follow up action will be reviewed within the Main Ledger Audit in Quarter 4 2021/22.
The remaining follow up actions, review of the modules for efficiency and the implementation of the new Housing System are ongoing and will be considered
again within the 2022/23 audit.

New matters arising

1

M

Outstanding Work
Queue/Backlogs

New Claims

At the time of review the

outstanding work is manageable
and not considered to be a
backlog. There are however a
handful of cases that are older than
desired (Oldest RBC case 8
weeks, oldest BDC case 10 weeks)
These claims have been assigned
to officers and are waiting on
information before a decision is
able to be made.

This has the potential to
increase the average
processing times which get
reported to DWP and
published in the public domain
which could lead to
reputational damage and
DWP intervention similar to
before,

Investigate if a report can be
generated that separates
defective claims so that the
gueue can be monitored for
outstanding  work/backlogs
and defective claims so that
customers can be reminded
information is still outstanding
or that, if appropriate the
application is closed.

If older cases are not closed,
then a file note is added to

Response and Action:

I agree with the
recommendations with regards to
monitoring outstanding  work.
This is already looked at and
actioned by the team leaders and
reported monthly. From January
we will monitor the reasons
behind the delays to gain a
greater insight to what is causing
the delays; for example — waiting
information from customer, from
the DWP, from housing provider.
Or is it staff members not making

0ST abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

14™" April 2022

Change of Circumstance Claims
(CoC)

At the time of review the
outstanding work is manageable
and not considered to be a
backlog. There are however a
handful of cases that are older than
desired (The bulk of the items
within the work queue dated back
2 weeks for both RBC and BDC).
These claims have been assigned
to officers and are waiting on
information before a decision is
able to be made.

explain why the case remains
within the outstanding queue
and if a claim is made
defective, it is clear within the
file note that information has
been requested and the date
its due back by.

claims defective at the earliest
opportunity.

With regards to the change in
circumstance days this is a
known Civica fault which has
caused delays in receiving
ATLAS and UC documents at the
time of the audit. This work has
now been cleared and on
average a change of
circumstance takes 5 days to be
processed.

Responsible Manager:
Assistant  Financial
Manager

Support

Implementation date:

March 2022

Test and Trace

payments

Support

There are several claims where |
was unable to open the
attachments. The audit trail was
not always clear if customer had
provided a response to questions
such as, do they have any
accessible savings/capital and do

Potential risk if the full audit
trail cannot be viewed
regarding the checks made
and information received in
the event of a challenge if
unable to open attachments.

Ensure Officers record the
responses to any information
requested.

Investigate  why  certain
attachments  cannot  be
opened.

Response:

The loading of the documents is
again a Civica fault that has been
reported. It is intermittent and not
on every case.

TEST abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

14™" April 2022

they have to pay any
rent/mortgage?

Action:

I have noted concerns with
regards to notes on these cases
and will action. The scheme is
currently only being worked on by
2 officers and there are lots of
things to consider and appreciate
in the work they are doing under
testing circumstances.

Responsible Manager:
Assistant  Financial
Manager

Support

Implementation date:

Pending a Civica fix, so date
for this unknown. Clarity in
notepads from January 2022

Dashboard -
Measures

Performance

Not all the new performance
measures have a number allocated
to the measure.

The graph was not always up to
date for certain measures such as
New Claims Speed of processing
and Change of Circumstance
Speed of processing. Not all

Lack of transparency and
context which could lead to
inaccurate assumptions by
senior managers and
members that review this
information and  Service
performance.

Ensure the performance
measures on the dashboard
are complete and updated
monthly where applicable for
transparency or there is
context within the graph so
that the audience can
understand if the

Response and Action

Some of the measures are not
showing on the dashboard again
due to a Civica fault. The issue
surrounds us being 2 separate
authorities on one database. The
error is with Civica to fix.

ZST abed

0T Wal| epusaby



Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

14™" April 2022

measures provided context to
understand if the performance is
good, or not especially where there
were no notes within the comment
history either advising on any
variation positive or negative.
There was no performance
information for 2 measures. There
were no weekly measures on the
dashboard.

performance shown is good,
expected etc.

With regards to no notes or
comment history we will look to
add these; suggest that we have
national average and local
average were possible so we can
see how we are performing
compared to our neighbouring
authorities.

The weekly measures that were
provided to you are purely for
operational purposes and are not
strategic measures. They were
never intended to be added to the
dashboard.

Responsible Manager:
Customer Support Manager

Implementation date:
Pending a Civica fix, date for
this unknown.

Clarity and narrative on
measures will be introduced
from January 2022

c¢cT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

5. Independence and Ethics:

o WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that
we are required to report.

o WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and
able to express an objective opinion in relation to this review.

e WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented to meet the 1A Ethical Standards.

e Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review.

Head of Internal Audit Shared Services

yeT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service

REDDITCH BOROUGH CQUTCIL
2

W2 ¢34y Bromsgrove
3‘% ) e gay” District Council
'\ %C/(o B ¢ www.bromsgrove.gov.uk
(/

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

Internal Audit Report
Risk Management (Follow-up of the 2020/21 Audit) 2021/22

22" March 2022

Distribution:

To:  Executive Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Interim Head of Finance

GET abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Contents

1. Introduction 22

2. Current Position 23

3. Conclusion 24

4. Independence and Ethics: 25

APPENDIX A Error! Bookmark not defined.
o
Q
«Q
@D

. =

1. Introduction «

In 2018/19, an audit of Risk Management provided an assurance level of limited assurance (See Appendix A) due to weaknesses in the design and

inconsistent application of controls. As a result of the audit, a review was commissioned and undertaken by Zurich Municipal to consider the Council’s

risk management arrangements and to advise of any recommendations. In response to the Zurich review a Risk Management Strategy was produced

for both Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough Council. >

A follow-up review was carried out by Internal Audit in March 2021 (Final Report June 2021) with the purpose of identifying what progress had been(Q
made against the Risk Management Strategies. At that time there was a lack of evidence that the actions within the Risk Management Strategies had
been fully completed and embedded within the Councils and therefore no assurance could be given.

pud

As a result of the June 2021 audit report, it was agreed that the next step would be to produce an action plan to identify responsibilities, actions, Q)
timescales and expected output so that there was a clear plan on what needed to happen and would allow the action plan to be monitored. It was —
proposed that this should include but would not be limited to:

OT Wal



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

e Understanding the risk appetite of the Councils

e Review the strategy and the way risks are identified

¢ Review the current 4risk system to ensure it fits the needs of the Council and that if this is to be the central recording system that it is kept up to
date so that current and emerging risks are transparent and there is evidence by a footprint within the system that the risk are being reviewed
regularly.

¢ Provide training and consider different training styles such as workshops, group discussion (this can still take place virtually) in order to have
officers buy in at an early stage and start to embed risk management throughout the Councils. There was lack of evidence that training on the
4risk system or on risk management has taken place and this was highlighted within the Internal Audit Report 2018/19 and a key recommendation
following the Zurich review.

e Consideration of the Role of Risk Champions, Insurance and Risk Officer, Risk Management Groups and defining expectations.

e Aligning processes such as reporting to members, project proposals, etc. so that risk is considered as part of management decision making.

It was agreed that a follow up would be carried out to ensure that an action plan was in place and to review the progress against it.

/ST abed

2. Current Position

This review was to be undertaken on the basis that an action plan to identify responsibilities, actions, timescales and expected output would be produced
so that there is a clear plan on what needs to happen which would allow the action plan to be monitored.

Verbal updates relating to Risk Management were provided to the Redditch Borough Council Audit, Governance and Standards Committee by the Head >
of Finance and Customer Services on 29.07.2021 regarding Corporate Governance and Risk - and the new Risk and Assurance Officer post with a focus
on risk, and on 28.10.2021 regarding the Corporate Risk Register and the ongoing work being undertaken with the Council’s insurance provider, Zurich
Municipal.

pusab

Verbal updates relating to Risk Management were provided to the Bromsgrove District Council Audit, Governance and Standards Committee by the Q)
Head of Finance and Customer Services on 15.07.2021 regarding the Corporate Risk Register and work with Zurich which included looking at best
practice and internal policy from a risk perspective, and on 07.10.2021 regarding further work with Zurich and updates to the Risk Register.

OT Wal



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

A Risk Strategy outlining the approach to Risk Management was taken before CMT on 16™ March 2022. This addresses the requirement to understand
the risk appetite of the Councils and the way risks are identified.

Several other actions have also been proposed:

Nominate a Representative from each Department as Risk Representative

Each Department to complete an updated Risk Register by Wednesday 6™ April (linked to the Zurich Recommendations)
First Officer Risk Board to take place on (Thursday 7"/Friday 8" April)

Verbally update Audit Committees w/c 11" April on Progress

Update CMT at meeting on 13" April on Progress and present draft updated Risk Register for approval

Prepare updated reports for next cycle of Audit Committees

Officer Group to update Risk Register and formally report for CMT on a quarterly basis

3. Conclusion

g¢T abed

From the follow-up carried out in early March 2022, we gave an opinion of no assurance over the control environment in this area. The level of assurance
having been calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the
“Definition of Audit Opinion Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A. However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on
information provided at the time of the audit.

We gave an opinion of no assurance in this area because the action plan that was to form the basis of this review had not been produced and
implemented therefore no assurance could have been provided. It was acknowledged that there is a risk management system in place, and there are
areas of good practice however this is not uniform across the Councils. The embedding of effective risk management needed to be driven and led by
senior management and cascaded down throughout the Councils.

OV

However, since the issue of the draft report, in order to progress the current position in relation to Risk Management, a paper was presented to CMT on
16" March 2022 with the actions as detailed above in Section 2.

0T Wa} epus



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

These actions represent a positive step forward for the Councils in addressing the requirements set out in the action plan mentioned in the previous
review. However Internal Audit cannot at this stage provide an assurance over the actions and their effectiveness in addressing the weaknesses
previously identified but will carry out a follow up in three months’ time to assess progress against these actions.

4. Independence and Ethics:

o WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that
we are required to report.

o WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent
and able to express an objective opinion in relation to this review.

e WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented to meet the IlA Ethical Standards.

¢ Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review.

Head of Internal Audit Shared Services

6ST abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

Final Internal Audit Report
Light touch Treasury Management Audit 2021/22

Date 51" January 2022

Distribution:

To: Financial Services Manager

CC: Head of Financial and Customer Services
Executive Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Chief Executive

ot T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14" April 2022

Contents

O 11 o To [ o 1o [P PPPPPPP Error! Bookmark not defined.
P ANE (o [ @S YoTo o= Tr=TaTo I o] o] [Tt 11V - Error! Bookmark not defined.
3. Audit Opinion and EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ........uuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieaeebeeeebebeeeaeebeeeesbnabaeneaneaeeenennnnes Error! Bookmark not defined.
4. Detailed Findings and ReCOMMENALiONS ............uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e eaeens Error! Bookmark not defined.
INdependence aNd ELNICS: ........cooii oo e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e eaaane Error! Bookmark not defined.
F N o N G ORI Error! Bookmark not defined.
APPENDIX B .ot Error! Bookmark not defined.

1. Introduction

T T abed

1.1 The audit of the Light touch Treasury Management Audit was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service
Audit Plan for Bromsgrove District Council by the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on 22" July 2021. The audit was a light touch
risk-based systems audit of the Treasury Management system as operated by Bromsgrove District Council.

1.2 This area of review is a back-office function and therefore underpins all of the Strategic Purposes

1.3 The service risks relevant to this review:

» Fin 2 Poor Treasury Management

1.4 There is a potential for fraud in this area with the transfer of funds fraudulently to personal or third party bank accounts.

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

1.5 This review was undertaken during the month of December 2021

2 Audit Scope and objective

2.1 A full audit was undertaken in 2020/21. No concerns were raised so this year a light touch audit has been undertaken to provide assurance that
controls are still in place and operating effectively.

2.2 The review covered authorisation of investment and borrowings, compliance with the Treasury Management Strategy in relation to Institutions
invested in and the limits invested, and the interest received and paid. In addition to this the 2020/21 audit findings were also followed up.

2.3 This review covered processes in place at the time of the audit.

3 Audit Opinion and Executive Summary

2T abed

3.1 From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of significant assurance over the control environment in this area. The level of
assurance has been calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined
in the “Definition of Audit Opinion Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A. However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are
based on information provided at the time of the audit.

3.2 We have given an opinion of significant assurance in this area because there is a generally sound system of internal control in place but that our
testing has identified an isolated weakness in the design of controls and / or inconsistent application of controls in one area.

3.3 The review found the following areas of the system were working well:

¢ Management approval had been obtained for the Investments/Borrowing
e Ledger shows the money being paid out and back in.

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

¢ Investments were made in line with the Counterpatrties lists and were within investment limits

3.4 The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened:

Priority Section 4
(see Appendix B) Recommendation
number
Reconciliation and Borrowing Sign off Medium 1
Treasury Members Training Medium 2

4 Detailed Findings and Recommendations

The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and
action plan. The issues identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity. The definitions for high, medium and low priority are
set out in the “Definition of Priority of Recommendations” table in Appendix B.

¢ T abed

Ref. | Priority | Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response
and Action Plan

Issues brought forward from previous audit

1 M Reconciliation and Borrowing Sign
off (Follow up from the 2020/21
Audit)

Risk of financial loss | As a minimum and in order to | Responsible Manager:

borrowings are agreed | ensure that the process does | Financial Services Manager
when they are not | not suffer undue delay the
required, or  the | Treasury Management

The Treasury Management is undertaken
by several officers on a day to day basis
and although there is an authorisation of
transfer of funds on investments there is no

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

14™" April 2022

formally established authorisation of
borrowings. A discussion does take place
with the Head of Finance and Customer
Services, and there is a period of grace
whereby an agreement to borrow can be
cancelled but there is no formal record of
the decision made, and reconciliations
although undertaken are not signed off by
Management except at the year end.

Therefore, there is no official monitoring
to ensure that monies that should have
been received are received.

The implementation of a new system and
the turnover of staff has resulted in the
resources being reallocated to high risk
areas.

interest rate is not a
good deal for the
Council

reconciliation  should be
reviewed and signed off by
Management on a quarterly
basis as part of the quarterly
reporting to Members.

This will ensure that all monies
that should have been
received have been

Agreed that this is a sensible
approach.

Implementation date:

By end of June 22

Treasury Members Training (Follow
up from the 2020/21 Audit)

During testing it was ascertained Members
of Bromsgrove District Council elected in
May 2019 had not been offered treasury
management training by an accredited
provider.

Due to Covid-19 and the reliance on a third
party this training was not possible to
complete.

The council may be
open to unacceptable
risks that could have
been mitigated by the
implementation of
additional controls.

Training is offered to those
Members newly appointed to
relevant Committees as soon
as practical with an accredited
provider to allow members to
be further informed when
making decisions on the

strategy and  procedures
relating to treasury
management.

Responsible Manager:
Financial Services Manager

Agreed that this is a sensible
approach.

Implementation date:

By end of June 22

v T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

New matters arising

There have been no areas of control issues or risks highlighted by this light touch review that require reporting.

5. Independence and Ethics:

o WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that
we are required to report.

e WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 (revised 15t April 2017) and confirms that we are
independent and able to express an objective opinion in relation to this review.
e WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented to meet the 1A Ethical Standards.

® Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review.

Head of Internal Audit Shared Services

G T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

FOLLOW-UP REPORTS:
Since the previous progress report reported to Committee there have been three finalised ‘Follow-Up’ reports.

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service

REDDITCH BOROUGH CQUTCI
2

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

St David’s House 2020-21

1st Follow-up Report - 17" December 2021

Distribution:

To:  Head of Community and Housing Services
Business Manager

APPENDIX 4

o T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Contents

Section A - Justification of Audit FOIOW-UP APPIOGACKH ...ttt b et b bbbt e 33
Section B - Conclusion - CUrrent POSItION STAEMENT ...........iiiiiiiiieie ittt ettt s b e beese e s e e besbe st e nbesbeabenseaneeneenees 33
Section C — Current Position — (please see Appendix B for definition of Prioriti€S) ........ccceiveiiiii i 34
AP P ENDIX A ettt bttt bRt E R bt bt oAbt e b e e eRe e e bt e oAbt oAb e e eR bt e abeeeRbe e beeanbeenbeeanbeenree s Error! Bookmark not defined.
APPENDIX Bttt bbbt R R e Rt b e R R R e Rt Rt e Rt Rt et b e b e b e b e reeneene e Error! Bookmark not defined.

Section A - Justification of Audit Follow-up Approach

The date of the final audit Report was 30/04/2021 and followed up because:
e 1 medium priority recommendation was outstanding.

The following audit approach was therefore taken:

1. 1 medium priority recommendation has been updated with the current position.
2. Where required recommendations against weaknesses in key controls have been tested substantively/ evidenced.

Section B - Conclusion - Current Position statement
The original audit report gave significant assurance over the control environment and this was the 15t follow-up.

Internal Audit is satisfied that all actions detailed in the management response have been completed and therefore no further follow up is
required.

/T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

This follow up was undertaken during the month of December 2021

Section C — Current Position

14™" April 2022

Ref./ Recommendation Management Response and Action Plan 15t Follow up

Priority Position as of 14" December 2021
1 Controls - Testing (Laundry) Responsible Manager: Implemented

Medium Business Manager

Review the current process and
ensure that there is a clear audit
trail detailing reasons why
charges have not been in line
with usage.

Introduce sample checks to
ensure that the information sent
for invoicing is correct.

Recording log for laundry has been amended
so that it is clear which laundry is covered by
a care package paid by WCC.

All tenants now charged for all laundry loads
regardless of the total number during a week.

Implementation date:
Completed

Testing has been carried out to ensure that
the recording of the laundry is clear in
relation to what was paid for by Worcester
County Council as part of the tenant’s care
package. Any extra loads that are payable by
the tenants are charged and invoiced
correctly. All information was available for
review and no issues identified.

81T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service

REDDITCH BORUUGH CQUTCI
2

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

www.redditchbe.gov.uk

The Orb 2020/21

1st Follow-up Report - 301" September 2021

Distribution:
To: Head of Transformation
Communications and Marketing Manager
ICT Transformation manager
ICT Operations Manager
Web Developer
Senior Communications and Marketing Officer

CC: Chief Executive

61T abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Contents

Section A - Justification of Audit FOIOW-UP APPIOGACKH ... 36
Y=ot 1[0 I = T @] o (1] o 38
SECHON C — CUIMEINT POSTION ...ttt e 4
F = N PP PRTRP 6
F o o = N5 ) = TP PP PP PP PPIN 7

Section A - Justification of Audit Follow-up Approach

The date of the final audit Report was 27/08/2020 and was followed up because:

0GT abed

e 2 medium priority recommendations were made.
The following audit approach was therefore applied:

e The 2 medium priority recommendations have been updated with the current position.
e Where required recommendations against weaknesses in key controls have been tested substantively/ evidenced.

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022

Section B - Conclusion - Current Position statement

The original audit report gave moderate assurance over the control environment and this was the 15t follow-up.

From the explanations received and the evidence provided, internal audit is satisfied that in relation to the user-friendly recommendation it
has been partially implemented. Due to other work priorities e.g. implementation of new systems, Covid-19 requirements and work on the
public website the other recommendation has not yet been implemented.

A further follow up will be undertaken in 6 months to assess the progress against actions which are not yet fully implemented.

This follow up was undertaken during the month of September 2021.

TGT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Section C — Current Position

14™" April 2022

Ref./ Recommendation Management Response and Action Plan 15t Follow up

Priority Position as of 30" September 2021
1 Ownership Responsible Manager: Not Implemented

Medium

An assessment to be undertaken on
whether a corporate steer is required to
drive the orb forwards with a strategic
action plan, to shape how the orb is to
be used over the next several years.

This needs to include exactly what the
organisation wants a corporate shared
area to achieve and how best to
achieve this, especially with the
introduction of a new windows platform
and Microsoft packages. It should also
allocate ownership for the delivery of
any proposals.

Head of Transformation, OD & Digital Services
Senior Marketing & Communications Officer
Implementation Date: April 2021

An intranet strategy and action plan will be

developed to outline the future direction of the
ORB.

Although changes have started to be made to the
orb (see recommendation 2), this action is still to
be commenced and has been delayed due to
other work commitments.

It is hoped that this will be undertaken in
December 2021.

ZGT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

14™" April 2022

Ref./ Recommendation Management Response and Action Plan 15t Follow up

Priority Position as of 301" September 2021
2 User friendly Responsible Manager: Partially Implemented

Medium

Survey the staff in order to get a full
understanding of their requirements in
relation to a shared area for reference
material and Governance Policies.

The results should be built into the
review above.

IT Manager
Implementation Date: Feb 2021

Create a user group of internet and intranet staff
to look at out of date content and how it will be
resolved by their departments. Members of this
group to agree an action plan with their respective
Head of Service if content is out of date. The
content on the Intranet is the responsibility of
each service area.

The Web Team will look at the site design and
make the search more user friendly. Training will
also be provided through the user group. N
Perrett and N Chapman will be the lead officers
for this work.

The Web Team will create a survey to address
issues raised in this audit. N Perrett and J
Carradine will be the lead officers for this work.

There is a positive direction of travel as some
changes have started to take place on the orb
following the audit review — a new and updated
homepage has been implemented and work has
been conducted to remove items that should not
be on the orb.

ICT have created a feedback survey which can
be found on the orb. This was to allow staff to
provide feedback in relation to how they find the
orb to navigate through, the orb search engine,
how useful oracle news is, if they use their team
area and also to provide comments as to where
they would like improvements to be made. Covid
derailed the initial launch, but this now live.

The search engine has had a background
overhaul to enable it to be nimbler on searching
for specific documents and as a result of the
work, the results coming back are more relevant.
ICT have stated that the user will not notice a
change to the appearance of the search engine
but will experience the improvement when
searching items.

However, since the pandemic resources have
been used on the public website to improve

¢GT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 14™" April 2022
Ref./ Recommendation Management Response and Action Plan 15t Follow up
Priority Position as of 30" September 2021

certain items and this has caused delays in some
areas of lower risk.

ICT have had to delay the implementation on the
remaining items that require implementation to
March 2022.

yGT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

14™" April 2022

APPENDIX 5
Quality Assurance Improvement Plan.
Action Area for Action Outcome Required Action Lead person Target Date for Date of Latest Position
Number and Standards completion Completion (Quarterly)
Reference
1 1210.A1 - Training | Professional Auditors to enhance their Auditors 2023/24 Ongoing December 2021:
Requirements qualifications to be | skils and qualifications Auditor enrolled with [IA
obtained. through professional study and continuing training to
e.g. 1A obtain further professional
qualifications.
Progressing. On target.
2 2420 - Timely | Improvement in issuing | Monitor the issue of Draft Auditors Mar-22 Ongoing December 2021:
Completion of | the ‘Draft Report’ to the | Reports and the receipt of Being monitored
Review Stages agreed date as set out in | management response Progressing. On target.
the Brief. To make | during the financial year
improvements in the | taking appropriate and
monitoring of the | timely action where the
management response | target dates are stressed.
after the issue of a Draft
Report.
3 2500.A1 - Follow Up | More efficient and timely | To review and enhance the Audit Team Mar-22 Ongoing December 2021:
follow up regarding | follow up process, and Leader Included in Auditors work
reported management | monitor progress to reduce plan for the year. Being
action plans. potential slippage. monitored and tracked
and discussed at 1:2:1s
Progressing. On target.

GGT abed

0T Wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards Committee

14™" April 2022

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department

Name and Job Title

Date

Portfolio Holder

Lead Director / Head of
Service

Financial Services

Legal Services

Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

N/a

March 2022

Climate Change Officer (if
climate change
implications apply)

N/a

March 2022

oGT abed

0T Wal| epusaby



Page 157 Agenda Iltem 11
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 15" April 2022

Capital Strateqy 2022/23 incorporating the Treasury
Management Strateqy

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Rouse Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Peter Carpenter

Wards Affected ALL

Non-Key Decision

3.

3.1

SUMMARY

This report for 2022/23 presents the Capital strategy, Treasury Management Strategy,
Minimum Revenue Provision Statement, a policy for use of flexible Capital receipts and
the Investment Strategy for 2022/23 to be considered for recommendation to Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee are asked to RECOMMEND TO
COUNCIL that

the Capital Strategy (Appendix A) as an appropriate overarching strategy for
the Council be approved

the Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21 (Appendix B) and the associated
MRP policy (Appendix C) be approved

the policy for Flexible use of Capital Receipts as per appendix D be approved

the Investment Strategy (Appendix E) be approved

KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

The report for 2020/21 is required following changes in the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Department of Levelling UP Communities
and Housing (DLUCH) guidance. It combines an overview of how capital expenditure,
capital financing, treasury and other investment activity contribute to the provision of local
public services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the
implications for future financial sustainability. The strategies set limits and indicators that
embody the risk management approach that the Council believes to be prudent. The
strategies are set against the mid-term financial strategy, the context of the UK economy
and projected interest rates.




Page 158 Agenda Iltem 11
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 15" April 2022

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Council are required to set a balanced operating budget. The role of the treasury
function is to manage cash flow within the authority so that the demands of expenditure
can be met. The policies included in this report set out the criteria in which the Council
can manage its Treasury management function.

The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public services (the CIPFA TM
Code) and the Prudential Code require local authorities to set the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Prudential Indicators each financial year. The TMSS
also incorporates the Investment Strategy as required under the CLG’s Investment
Guidance. In addition the Council has to receive a report on treasury management and
this is reported on a quarterly basis which is included within the Quarterly Monitoring
Report.

CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as:

‘the management of the organisation’s investments, cash flows, its banking,

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with
those risks.”

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be the
prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will be
measured. Treasury management risks are identified in the Council’s approved Treasury
Management Practices and include:

Liquidity Risk (Adequate cash resources)

Market or Interest Rate Risk (Fluctuations in the value of investments)

Inflation Risks (Exposure to inflation)

Credit and Counterparty Risk (Security of Investments)

Refinancing Risks (Impact of debt maturing in future years)

Legal & Regulatory Risk (Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements)

The guidance requires investment strategies to comment on the use of treasury
management consultants and on the investment of money borrowed in advance of
spending needs.

In formulating the Treasury Management Strategy and the setting of the Prudential
Indicators, the Council adopts the Treasury Management Framework and Policy
recommended by CIPFA.

The Council’s 2020/21 accounts have not been formally approved and audited at the
time of writing. Entries marked as “actual 2020/21” are therefore pre audited estimates.
Following accounts closedown and audit, the Strategies will be updated if required,
although this is not anticipated.



Page 159 Agenda Iltem 11
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 15" April 2022

3.7

3.8

3.9

Legal Implications

This is a statutory report under the Local Government Act 2003.

Service/Operational Implications

None as a direct result of this report, service requirements which form the Capital
Programme are the base data for this report.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

None as a direct result of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Failure to manage the Treasury Management function effectively to ensure the delivery of
maximum return within a secure environment.

Controls in place to mitigate these risks are as follows:
e Regular monitoring of the status of the organisations we invest with
e Daily monitoring by internal officers of banking arrangements and cash flow

implications.

APPENDENCES

Appendix A — Capital Strategy 2022/23

Appendix B — Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23
Appendix C — Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2022/23
Appendix D — Policy for the Flexible Use of Capital receipts
Appendix E — Investment Strategy 2022/23

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name:

Pete Carpenter — Interim Financial Services Manager (Deputy S151)

E Mail: Peter.Carpenter@bromsgroveandredditchbc.gov.uk

Tel:

01527 645252 ext 3205



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161 Agenda Item 11

Appendix A - Redditch Capital Strategy Report 2022/23

Introduction

This capital strategy report gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure,
capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local
public services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the
implications for future financial sustainability. It has been written in an accessible style
to enhance members’ understanding of these sometimes technical areas.

Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have financial
consequences for the Authority for many years into the future. They are therefore
subject to both a national regulatory framework and to local policy framework,
summarised in this report.

Capital Expenditure and Financing

Capital expenditure is where the Authority spends money on assets, such as property
or vehicles, that will be used for more than one year. In local government this includes
spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans and grants to other bodies
enabling them to buy assets. The Authority has some limited discretion on what counts
as capital expenditure.

In 2022/23, the Authority is planning capital expenditure of £20.5m as summarised
below:

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure in £ millions

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 | 2024/25
actual forecast budget budget budget
General Fund 6.3 8.8 4.3 2.4 1.9
services
Council housing
(HRA) 10.7 7.3 14.2 12.6 12.6
Regeneration 0.6 2.2 2.0 4.0 8.7
Schemes
TOTAL 17.6 18.3 20.5 19.0 23.2

The main General Fund capital projects delivered over the 3 year Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) period include the fleet replacement programme which
totals £3.3m across the budget period, implementing the Disabled Facilities and
associated Grants £2.5m. Capital Investments are the successful Town Funds
Regeneration bid which will over of £16m.



Page 162 Agenda Item 11

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that
council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local services. HRA
capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately.

Governance: Service managers bid annually in November to include projects in the
Authority’s capital programme. Bids are collated by finance who calculate the financing
cost (which can be nil if the project is fully externally financed). The final capital
programme is then presented to Executive and Council in February each year.

» For full details of the Authority’s capital programme, including the project
appraisals undertaken, see the MTFS published on the 16" February 2022.

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government
grants and other contributions), the Authority’s own resources (revenue, reserves and
capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing and Private Finance Initiative). The
planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows:

Table 2: Capital financing in £ millions

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

actual forecast budget budget budget
External sources 0.8 1.2 3.4 5.7 10.4
Own resources 16.8 17.1 12.8 10.9 10.9
Debt 0 0 4.3 2.4 19
TOTAL 17.6 18.3 20.5 19 23.2

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid,
and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which
is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP) or by taking out new borrowing.
Alternatively, proceeds from selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be
used to replace debt finance. Planned MRP and use of capital receipts are as follows:

Table 3: Replacement of debt finance in £ millions

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
actual forecast budget budget budget
Own resources 0.9 1.0 0.9 0 0

The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the
capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital
expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace debt. The CFR
is expected to increase by £3.2m during 2022/23. Based on the above figures for
expenditure and financing, the Authority’s estimated CFR is as follows:



Page 163

Agenda Item 11

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement in £

millions
31.3.2021 | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023 | 31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025
actual forecast budget budget budget

General Fund 139.1 136.8 140.1 141.4 1422
services/HRA
Regeneration 15 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6
Schemes
TOTAL CFR 140.6 139.5 142.8 144.0 144.8

Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that
the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets or to repay debt.
The Authority is currently also permitted to spend capital receipts on service
transformation projects until 2022/23. Appendix D sets out that capital receipts are not
required for this purpose in 2022/23. Repayments of capital grants, loans and
investments also generate capital receipts.

Treasury Management

Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash
available to meet the Authority’s spending needs, while managing the risks involved.
Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by
borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current
account. The Authority at the moment is cash rich in the short-term as revenue income
is received before it is spent, and in the long-term as capital expenditure incurred has
been financed internally and not through debt financing. The revenue cash surpluses
are offset against capital cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.

The Authority currently has £104m of long term external borrowing and £34m in
treasury investments at an average rate of 0.11%.

Borrowing strategy: The Authority’s main objectives when borrowing are to achieve
a low but certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans change in future.
These objectives are often conflicting, and the Authority therefore seeks to strike a
balance between cheap short-term loans (currently available at around 0.10%) and
long-term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher (currently 1.5 to
2.5%), and the use if internal resources.

Projected levels of the Authority’s total outstanding debt (which comprises borrowing,
PFI liabilities, leases and transferred debt) are shown below, compared with the capital
financing requirement (see above).



Page 164 Agenda Item 11

Table 6: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement in
£ millions

31.3.2021 | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023 | 31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025
actual forecast budget budget budget

Debt (incl. PFI &

126.5 127.9 130.5 132.7 134.6
leases)

Capital Financing

) 140.6 139.5 142.8 144.0 144.8
Requirement

Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement,
except in the short-term. As can be seen from table 6, the Authority expects to comply
with this in the medium term.

Liability benchmark: To compare the Authority’s actual borrowing against an
alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk
level of borrowing. This assumes that cash and investment balances are kept to a
minimum level of £0.2m at each year-end. This benchmark is currently £112.9m and
is forecast to rise to £122.1m over the next three years.

Table 7: Borrowing and the Liability Benchmark in £ millions

31.3.2021 | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023 | 31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025
actual forecast | forecast | forecast | forecast
Forecast external 1265 1279| 1305 132.7 134.6
borrowing
Liability benchmark 115.7 112.9 118.1 120.3 122.1

The table shows that the Authority expects to remain borrowed above its liability
benchmark. This is because cash outflows to date have been below the assumptions
made when the loans were borrowed.

Affordable borrowing limit: The Authority is legally obliged to set an affordable
borrowing limit (also termed the authorised limit for external debt) each year. In line
with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” is also set as a warning level
should debt approach the limit.

Table 8: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external
debtin £m

2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25
limit limit limit limit




Page 165 Agenda Item 11

Authorised limit — borrowing 170.0 175.0 180.0 185.0
Authorised limit — PFI and leases 1.5 15 15 15
Authorised limit — total external debt 1715 176.5 181.5 185.5
Operational boundary — borrowing 160.0 165.0 170.0 175
Operational boundary — PFI and 1.5 15 15 15
leases 161.5 166.5 171.5 176.5
Operational boundary — total

external debt

The Authorised Limit must not be breeched with a combination of long and short
term financing - if they are Full Council needs to be informed. The Operational
Boundary can be breeched but only for short periods. Councils must set these
boundaries taking into account long term financing requirements and short term
borrowing requirements due to cash flow requirements.

Treasury investment strategy: Treasury investments arise from receiving cash
before it is paid out again. Investments made for service reasons or for pure financial
gain are not generally considered to be part of treasury management.

The Authority’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity over
yield, that is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns. Cash that is
likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the
government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the risk
of loss. Money that will be held for longer terms is invested more widely, including in
bonds, shares and property, to balance the risk of loss against the risk of receiving
returns below inflation. Both near-term and longer-term investments may be held in
pooled funds, where an external fund manager makes decisions on which particular
investments to buy and the Authority may request its money back at short notice.

Table 9: Treasury management investments in £millions

31.3.2021 | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023 | 31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025
actual forecast budget budget budget
Near-term 10.8 15.0 12.4 12.4 12.5
investments
_I_onger-term 0 0 0 0 0
Investments
TOTAL 10.8 15.0 12.4 12.4 12.5

Further details on treasury investments are in the treasury management strategy
which is Appendix B of these papers.



Page 166 Agenda Item 11

Risk management: The effective management and control of risk are prime
objectives of the Authority’s treasury management activities. The treasury
management strategy therefore sets out various indicators and limits to constrain the
risk of unexpected losses and details the extent to which financial derivatives may be
used to manage treasury risks.

» Further details on treasury investments are in the treasury management
strategy which is Appendix B of these papers.

Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are
made daily and are therefore delegated to the Executive Director of Finance and staff,
who must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by council.
Three Reports on Treasury Management activity will be made to Council the initial
strategy, a half yearly update and an outturn report on treasury management activity.
The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee is responsible for scrutinising
treasury management decisions.

Investments for Service Purposes

The Authority may make investments to assist local public services, including
potentially making loans to the Authority’s subsidiaries that provide services. In light
of the public service objective, the Authority is willing to take more risk than with
treasury investments, however it still plans for such investments to at least break even
after all costs.

Total investments for service purposes are currently valued at £4.3m for 22/23 and
are set out in the Capital Programme.

Governance: Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant service
manager in consultation with the Executive Director of Finance and must meet the
criteria and limits laid down in the investment strategy. Most loans and shares are
capital expenditure and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of the capital
programme.

Commercial Activities

With central government financial support for local public services declining, and
changes to the Capital Financing rules in 2021 in relation to the use of using debt to
finance investment for return, Councils must ensure that commercial activities do not
make investment primarily for yield. If this was the case it would mean that the
Authority could not Public Works Loan Board debt instruments in the future, which are
much more advantageous than private sector debt financing.

The Authority will invest in regeneration schemes such at Towns Fund programme but
not for purely commercial reasons.



Page 167 Agenda Item 11

In 2019 the Council did invest in property at Oak Tree Park Offices. The biggest issue
facing Redditch’s office market is the obsolesce of existing stock. By investing in
existing premises, the Council has control over the condition and quality of its assets
and therefore contributes to a supply of offices that are fit for purpose and attractive to
the end occupiers. Therefore although a return is made this investment is for
regenerative purposes.

Governance: Decisions on commercial investments, including for Regeneration
reasons, are made in line with the criteria and limits approved by council in the
investment strategy. Property and most other commercial investments are also capital
expenditure and decisions will therefore also be approved as part of the capital
programme.

Liabilities
In addition to the debt detailed above, the Authority is committed to making future
payments to cover its pension fund deficit which it does on a 3 yearly basis. The next

payment will be in 2024 and will be circa £10m. It has also set aside £428k to cover
risks of insurance, NNDR appeals £3,222k and employee benefits £128k.

Governance: Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by service
managers in consultation with the Executive Director of Finance. The risk of liabilities
crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by finance and reported as required.

Revenue Budget Implications

Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest
payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income
receivable. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the
net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and
general government grants.

Table 10: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
forecast budget budget budget
Financing costs 11 11 11 1.2
(Em)
Proportion of net
10.05% 10.05% 10.34% 11.09%
revenue stream

> Further details on the revenue implications of capital expenditure are in the

MTFS published on the 16" February 2022.




Page 168 Agenda Item 11

Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing,
the revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few years will
extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Executive Director of Finance is satisfied
that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable because
of the current MTFP forecasts which show that the council is financially sustainable
and taking it into account.

Knowledge and Skills

The Authority employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior
positions with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment
decisions. For example, the Executive Director of Finance and Head of Service are
gualified accountant with significant experience. The Authority pays for junior staff to
study towards relevant professional qualifications including CIPFA and AAT.

In line with best practice, the Council has expert external advisers that are specialists
in their field. The Authority currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury
management advisers, Britans & Knowles as property consultants and other as
needed. This approach is more cost effective than employing such staff directly, and
ensures that the Authority has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its
risk appetite.

Appendix B - Redditch Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2022/23

Introduction



Page 169 Agenda Item 11

Treasury management is the management of the Authority’s cash flows, borrowing
and investments, and the associated risks. The Authority has borrowed and invested
substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the
loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The
successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore central
to the Authority’s prudent financial management.

Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the
Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the
Authority to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial
year. This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act
2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code.

Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a
different report, the Investment Strategy.

External Context

Economic background: The ongoing impact on the UK from coronavirus, together
with higher inflation, higher interest rates, and the country’s trade position post-Brexit,
will be major influences on the Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2022/23.

The Bank of England’s (BoE) increased Bank Rate to 0.25% in December 2021 and
again in February 2022 to 0.5% and also announced a tailing down of its erstwhile
Quantitative Easing programme. The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted 5-4 to
raise rates by 0.25% at the February meeting, the four dissenters had voted for an
0.5% rise at this meeting which means a very high likelihood of further rate rises in
2022.

At the time of the MPC meeting in November 2021, the economic uncertainty
surrounding the Omicron variant of coronavirus was much more prevalent and the
forecast for growth was depressed as a result. Since then, the uncertainty surrounding
this variant had declined and the negative effects that it might have had on the global
economy were shown to be less damaging and more short lived than previously
expected. On the other hand, exceptionally strong demand for goods combined with
supply chain disruptions and rising energy prices have weighed on activity throughout
the early parts of Q1 2022.

In its February 2022 Monetary Policy Report the Bank of England noted 12-month CPI
inflation for December was 5.4% which is 1% above the expectations set out in its
previous Report in November 2021. Rising energy prices and core goods prices are
the leading drivers of this inflation.

The MPC projects CPI inflation will continue its upward trajectory in the coming months
to around 6% in February and March before peaking at 7.25% in April. The most recent
labour market data for the three months to October 2021 showed the unemployment
rate fell to 4.2% while the employment rate rose to 75.5%.



Page 170 Agenda Item 11

The most recent Labour Force Data for the period to November 2021 shows that the
labour market continues to recover. The number of job vacancies in Q4 2021 rose to
a new record of 1,247,000, and the unemployment rate fell to 4.1%.

Gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 1.3% in the third calendar quarter of 2021
according to the initial estimate, compared to a gain of 5.5% g/q in the previous
guarter, with the annual rate slowing to 6.6% from 23.6%. Looking ahead, Q4 growth
(data for which will be released in February) is expected to be soft.

According to a first estimation of annual growth for 2021, GDP increased by 5.2% in
both the euro area and the EU. Core CPlI inflation was 5.1% y/y in December. At these
levels, inflation is above the European Central Bank’s target of ‘below, but close to
2%’, putting some pressure on its long-term stance of holding its main interest rate of
0%.

The US economy expanded at an annualised rate of 6.9% in Q4 2021. CPI rose 7%
in 2021, the largest 12-month increase since June 1982. In its December 2021 interest
rate announcement, the Federal Reserve continue to maintain the Fed Funds rate at
between 0% and 0.25% but outlined its plan to reduce its asset purchase programme
earlier than previously stated and signalled they are in favour of tightening interest
rates at a faster pace in 2022, with three 0.25% movements now expected.

Credit outlook: Since the start of 2021, relatively benign credit conditions have led to
credit default swap (CDS) prices for the larger UK banks to remain low and had
steadily edged down throughout the year up until mid-November when the emergence
of Omicron has caused them to rise modestly. However, the generally improved
economic outlook during 2021 helped bank profitability and reduced the level of
impairments many had made as provisions for bad loans. However, the relatively
recent removal of coronavirus-related business support measures by the government
means the full impact on bank balance sheets may not be known for some time.

The improved economic picture during 2021 led the credit rating agencies to reflect
this in their assessment of the outlook for the UK sovereign as well as several financial
institutions, revising them from negative to stable and even making a handful of rating
upgrades.

Looking ahead, while there is still the chance of bank losses from bad loans as
government and central bank support is removed, the institutions on the Authority’s
counterparty list are well-capitalised and general credit conditions across the sector
are expected to remain benign. Duration limits for counterparties on the Authority’s
lending list are under regular review and will continue to reflect economic conditions
and the credit outlook.

Interest rate forecast: The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose is
forecasting that Bank Rate will continue to rise in 2022 to subdue inflationary
pressures and the perceived desire by the BoE to move away from emergency levels
of interest rates.

Investors continue to price in multiple rises in Bank Rate over the next forecast horizon,
and Arlingclose believes that although interest rates will rise again, the increases will



Page 171 Agenda Item 11

not be to the extent predicted by financial markets. In the near-term, the risks around
Arlingclose’s central case are to the upside while over the medium-term the risks
become more balanced.

Yields are expected to remain broadly at current levels over the medium-term, with the
5, 10 and 20 year gilt yields expected to average around 1.20%, 1.35%, and 1.55%
respectively. The risks around for short and medium-term yields are initially to the
upside but shifts lower later, while for long-term yields the risk is to the upside.
However, as ever there will almost certainly be short-term volatility due to economic
and political uncertainty and events.

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is
attached at Appendix A.

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury
investments will be made at an average rate of 0.15% , and that new long-term loans
will be borrowed at an average rate of 2.7%.

Local Context

On 23 March 2022, the Authority held £103.9m of borrowing and £34m of treasury
investments. This is set out in further detail at Appendix B. Forecast changes in these
sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1 below.

Table 1: Balance sheet summary and forecast

31.3.21 31.3.22 31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25
Actual Estimate | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m

General Fund CFR 139.1 136.8 140.1 141.4 142.2
Investments CFR 1.5 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6
Total CFR 140.6 139.5 142.8 144.0 144.8
Less: External borrowing 124.1 124.1 124.1 1241 1241
Internal (over)
borrowing 16.5 154 18.7 19.9 20.7
Less: Usable reserves -20.2 -21.9 -20 -19 -18
Less: Working capital -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9
g?ilse%\:ybi:r\:iamg;ts 8.6 11.4 6.2 4.0 2.2




Page 172 Agenda Item 11

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the
underlying resources available for investment. The Authority’s current strategy is to
maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known
as internal borrowing. The underlying availability of internal borrowing will reduced
over the period reflecting the use of the HRA capital reserve and capital receipts held
on account and a reduction in HRA working balances to a minimum level of £0.6m in
the medium term.

The Authority has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme and minimal
investments and will therefore be required to borrow or use internal resources of up to
£6.2m over the forecast period.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the
Authority’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three
years. Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply with this recommendation
during 2022/23.

Liability benchmark: To compare the Council’'s actual borrowing against an
alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk
level of borrowing. This assumes the same forecasts as table 1 above, but that cash
and investment balances are kept to a minimum level of £0.2m at each year-end to
maintain sufficient liquidity but minimise credit risk.

Table 2: Liability benchmark

31.3.21 | 31.3.22 | 31.3.23 | 31.3.24 | 31.3.25
Actual | Estimate | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m
CFR 140.6 139.5 142.8 144.0 144.8
Less: Usable reserves -20.2 -21.9 -20 -19 -18
Less: Working capital -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9
Plus: Minimum investments 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Liability Benchmark 115.7 112.9 118.1 120.3 122.1

Following on from the medium-term forecasts in table 2 above, the long-term liability
benchmark assumes capital expenditure funded by borrowing each year, minimum
revenue provision on new capital expenditure based on a 50 year asset life and
income, expenditure and reserves all increasing/decreasing in line with the MTFP.

Borrowing Strateqy

The Authority currently holds circa £104 million of loans as part of its strategy for
funding previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet forecast in table 1
shows that the Authority expects to borrow against internal resources in 2022/23. The
Authority may however borrow to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this
does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing.



Page 173 Agenda Item 11

Objectives: The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving
certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are required. The flexibility to
renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change is a secondary
objective.

Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local
government funding, the Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key
issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt
portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, it is
likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either use internal resources, or to
borrow short-term loans instead.

By doing so, the Authority is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone
investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of internal / short-
term borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for incurring additional
costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing rates are
forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose will assist the Authority with this ‘cost of carry’
and breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether the Authority borrows
additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2022/23 with a view to keeping future
interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the short-term.

The Authority has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from the
PWLB but will consider long-term loans from other sources including banks, pensions
and local authorities, and will investigate the possibility of issuing bonds and similar
instruments, in order to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on one source
of funding in line with the CIPFA Code. PWLB loans are no longer available to local
authorities planning to buy investment assets primarily for yield; the Authority intends
to avoid this activity in order to retain its access to PWLB loans.

Alternatively, the Authority may arrange forward starting loans, where the interest rate
is fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This would enable certainty
of cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the intervening period.

In addition, the Authority may borrow further short-term loans to cover unplanned cash
flow shortages.

Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing
are:

 HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board)

e any institution approved for investments (see below)

« any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

« any other UK public sector body

« UK public and private sector pension funds (except the Council’'s Pension Fund)

» capital market bond investors

» UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created
to enable local authority bond issues



Page 174 Agenda Iltem 11

Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the
following methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities:

» leasing

« hire purchase

« Private Finance Initiative
« sale and leaseback

Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in
2014 by the Local Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB. Itissues
bonds on the capital markets and lends the proceeds to local authorities. This is a
more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing
authorities will be required to provide bond investors with a guarantee to refund
their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any reason; and there
will be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and knowing
the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will therefore be
the subject of a separate report to full Council.

Short-term and variable rate loans: These loans leave the Authority exposed to
the risk of short-term interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the interest
rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below. Financial
derivatives may be used to manage this interest rate risk (see section below).

Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity
and either pay a premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based
on current interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to negotiate
premature redemption terms. The Authority may take advantage of this and replace
some loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is
expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk.

Treasury Investment Strateqy

The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the
Authority’s treasury investment balance has ranged between £20 and £40 million, and
similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year.

Objectives: The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to invest its treasury funds
prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before
seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when investing
money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk
of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment
income. Where balances are expected to be invested for more than one year, the
Authority will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or higher than the prevailing
rate of inflation, in order to maintain the spending power of the sum invested.

Strategy: Given the increasing risk and very low returns from short-term unsecured
bank investments, the Authority aims to diversify into more secure and/or higher
yielding asset classes during 2022/23. The majority of the Authority’s surplus cash is



Page 175 Agenda Item 11

currently invested in short-term unsecured bank deposits. This diversification will

represent a continuation of the approved strategy.

Business models: Under the new IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain
investments depends on the Authority’s “business model” for managing them. The
Authority aims to achieve value from its internally managed treasury investments by a
business model of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore, where other
criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for at amortised
cost.

Approved counterparties: The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of the
counterparty types in table 3 below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and
the time limits shown.

Table 3: Approved investment counterparties and limits

Credit Banks Banks Registered
. Government | Corporates .
rating | unsecured secured Providers
UK n/a n/a £ Unlimited n/a n/a
Gowvt 50 years
AAA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 20 years 50 years 20 years 20 years
AA+ £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 10 years 25 years 10 years 10 years
AA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
4 years 5 years 15 years 5 years 10 years
AA- £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
3 years 4 years 10 years 4 years 10 years
£3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
A+
2 years 3 years 5 years 3 years 5 years
A £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
13 months 2 years 5 years 2 years 5 years
A £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
6 months 13 months 5 years 13 months 5 years
None £1.5m n/a £3m £1m £500k
6 months 25 years 5 years 5 years
Pooled funds and
real estate £2.5m per fund or trust
investment trusts

This table must be read in conjunction with the notes below

*Minimum credit rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk
will only be made with entities whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no
lower than [A-]. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific investment
or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used.
However, investment decisions are never made solely based on credit ratings, and all
other relevant factors including external advice will be taken into account.



Page 176 Agenda Item 11

For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either (a)
where external advice indicates the entity to be of similar credit quality; or (b) to a
maximum of £0.5m per counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g. via a peer-to-
peer platform.

Government: Loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, national
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development banks.
These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a lower risk of
insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the UK Government are
deemed to be zero credit risk due to its ability to create additional currency and
therefore may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits
the potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality of the security
will be a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds and reverse repurchase
agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where there is
no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is
secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the
counterparty credit rating will be used. The combined secured and unsecured
investments with any one counterparty will not exceed the cash limit for secured
investments.

Banks and building societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates of
deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than
multilateral development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit
loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail.
See below for arrangements relating to operational bank accounts.

Registered providers (unsecured): Loans to, and bonds issued or guaranteed by,
registered providers of social housing or registered social landlords, formerly known
as housing associations. These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social
Housing (in England), the Scottish Housing Regulator, the Welsh Government and the
Department for Communities (in Northern Ireland). As providers of public services,
they retain the likelihood of receiving government support if needed.

Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and
very low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money markets. They have the
advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of investment risks,
coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee.
Although no sector limit applies to money market funds, the Authority will take care to
diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash at
all times.

Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds that offer enhanced returns
over the longer term but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Authority
to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage
the underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but
are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued
suitability in meeting the Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.



Page 177 Agenda Iltem 11

Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in real estate
and pay the majority of their rental income to investors in a similar manner to pooled
property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced returns over the longer
term, but are more volatile especially as the share price reflects changing demand for
the shares as well as changes in the value of the underlying properties.

Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed above, for
example unsecured corporate bonds and company loans. Non-bank companies
cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent placing the Authority’s investment at
risk.

Operational bank accounts: The Authority may incur operational exposures, for
example though current accounts, collection accounts and merchant acquiring
services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and with assets greater
than £25 billion. These are not classed as investments but are still subject to the risk
of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore be kept below £500,000 per bank. The
Bank of England has stated that in the event of failure, banks with assets greater than
£25 billion are more likely to be bailed-in than made insolvent, increasing the chance
of the Authority maintaining operational continuity

Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by
the Authority’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. The
credit rating agencies in current use are listed in the Treasury Management Practices
document. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the
approved investment criteria then:

e no new investments will be made,

e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and

» full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “negative watch”) so that it may fall below the approved
rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day
will be made with that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This
policy will not apply to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel
rather than an imminent change of rating.

Other information on the security of investments: The Authority understands that
credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment default. Full regard
will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the
organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial
statements, information on potential government support, reports in the quality
financial press and analysis and advice from the Authority’s treasury management
adviser. No investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive
doubts about its credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all
organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally reflected in credit



Page 178 Agenda Item 11

ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the
Authority will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and
reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of
security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market
conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high
credit quality are available to invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will
be deposited with the UK Government, or with other local authorities. This will cause
investment returns to fall but will protect the principal sum invested.

Investment limits: The Authority’s revenue reserves available to cover investment
losses are forecast to be £21.9 million on 315t March 2022. The maximum that will be
lent to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be as below. A group
of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for limit
purposes.

Limits will also be placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee
accounts, foreign countries and industry sectors as below. Investments in pooled
funds and multilateral development banks do not count against the limit for any single
foreign country, since the risk is diversified over many countries.

Table 4: Investment limits

Cash limit
Any single organisation, except the UK Central £5m each
Government
UK Central Government unlimited
Any gr isati
y group of organisations under the same £5m per group
ownership
Any group of pooled funds under the same £5m per manager
management
Negotiable instruments held in a broker’'s nominee
£5m per broker
account
Foreign countries £5m per country
Registered providers and registered social £2 5m in total
landlords
Unsecured investments with building societies £2.5m in total
Loans to unrated corporates £1m in total
Money market funds £20m in total
Real estate investment trusts £2.5m in total

Liquidity management: The Authority uses detailed spreadsheets to determine the
maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed. The forecast is
compiled on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Authority being forced to borrow
on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term



Page 179 Agenda Item 11

investments are set by reference to the Authority’s medium-term financial plan and
cash flow forecast.

The Authority will spread its liquid cash over at least four providers (e.g. bank accounts
and money market funds) to ensure that access to cash is maintained in the event of
operational difficulties at any one provider.

Treasury Management Indicators

The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks
using the following indicators.

Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk
by monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. This
is calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking
the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments
are assigned a score based on their perceived risk.

Credit risk indicator Target
Portfolio average credit rating A

Liquidity: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity
risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within
a rolling three month period, without additional borrowing.

Liquidity risk indicator Target
Total cash available within 3 months £2.5m

Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to
interest rate risk. The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall
in interest rates will be:

Interest rate risk indicator Limit
. _ i 0, i i
ppper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in £500,000
interest rates
. _ i 0, i
Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in £500,000

interest rates

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing
loans and investments will be replaced at new market rates.

Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of
borrowing will be:



Page 180 Agenda Item 11

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper limit Lower limit
Under 12 months 50% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0%
10 years and above 100% 0%

The Council has not taken out debt financing for a number of years, therefore all debt
is presently over 10 years old. This revised ratio gives flexibility for new debt that will
possibly be required.

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal sums invested for periods longer than a year: The purpose of this
indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking
early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested
to final maturities beyond the period end will be:

Price risk indicator 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25
I;:;lt on principal invested beyond year £15m £1.0m £0.5m

Related Matters

The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to include the following in its treasury
management strategy.

Financial Derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial
derivatives embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g.
interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase income at the
expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits). The general power
of competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the uncertainty
over local authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not
embedded into a loan or investment).

The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards,
futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall
level of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to. Additional risks presented,
such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when
determining the overall level of risk. Embedded derivatives, including those present in
pooled funds and forward starting transactions, will not be subject to this policy,
although the risks they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk
management strategy.

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets
the approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit rating for



Page 181 Agenda Item 11

derivative exposures. An allowance for credit risk calculated using the methodology in
the Treasury Management Practices document will count against the counterparty
credit limit and the relevant foreign country limit.

In line with the CIPFA Code, the Authority will seek external advice and will consider
that advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure that it fully understands
the implications.

Housing Revenue Account: On 1st April 2012, the Authority notionally split each of
its existing long-term loans into General Fund and HRA pools. In the future, new long-
term loans borrowed will be assigned in their entirety to one pool or the other. Interest
payable and other costs/income arising from long-term loans (e.g. premiums and
discounts on early redemption) will be charged/ credited to the respective revenue
account. Differences between the value of the HRA loans pool and the HRA'’s
underlying need to borrow (adjusted for HRA balance sheet resources available for
investment) will result in a notional cash balance which may be positive or negative.
This balance will be measured at year end and interest transferred between the
General Fund and HRA at the Authority’s average interest rate on investments,
adjusted for credit risk.

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: The Authority has retained retail client
status with its providers of financial services, including advisers, banks, brokers and
fund managers, allowing it access to a smaller range of services but with the greater
regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small companies. Given the size and
range of the Authority’s treasury management activities, the Executive Director of
Finance believes this to be the most appropriate status.

Financial Implications

The budget for investment income in 2022/23 is £0.673 million. The budget for debt
interest paid in 2022/23 is £0.4 million. If actual levels of investments and borrowing,
or actual interest rates, differ from those forecast, performance against budget will be
correspondingly different.

Where investment income exceeds budget, e.g. from higher risk investments including
pooled funds, or debt interest paid falls below budget, e.g. from cheap short-term
borrowing, then 50% of the revenue savings will be transferred to a treasury
management reserve to cover the risk of capital losses or higher interest rates payable
in future years.

Other Options Considered

The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for
local authorities to adopt. The Executive Director of Finance, having consulted the
Portfolio Holder for Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an
appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some
alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are listed
below.



Page 182

Agenda Item 11

Alternative

Impact on income and
expenditure

Impact on risk
management

Invest in a narrower range
of counterparties and/or
for shorter times

Interest income will be
lower

Lower chance of losses
from credit related
defaults, but any such
losses may be greater

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for
longer times

Interest income will be
higher

Increased risk of losses
from credit related
defaults, but any such
losses may be smaller

Borrow additional sums at
long-term fixed interest
rates

Debt interest costs will
rise; this is unlikely to be
offset by higher
investment income

Higher investment
balance leading to a
higher impact in the event
of a default; however
long-term interest costs
may be more certain

Borrow short-term or
variable loans instead of
long-term fixed rates

Debt interest costs will
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly
offset by rising investment
income in the medium
term, but long-term costs
may be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment
balance leading to a lower
impact in the event of a
default; however long-
term interest costs may
be less certain




Page 183 Agenda Item 11

Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast — February 2022

Underlying assumptions:

e The post COVID global economy has entered a higher inflationary phase,
driven by a combination of resurgent demand and supply bottlenecks in goods
and energy markets. Geopolitics are also playing a role, driving energy prices
upwards which are being passed onto consumers. Tighter labour markets due
to reduced participation rates have prompted concerns about wage-driven
inflation, leading central banks to tighten policy to ensure inflation expectations
remain anchored.

e Global inflation is riding high. While some indicators suggest supply bottlenecks
in goods markets are easing, oil and gas prices have risen significantly and
threaten a more sustained level of uncomfortably high inflation than previously
expected. In the UK, Ofgem has confirmed a significant rise in retail energy
prices, which will maintain relatively high CPI rates throughout 2022.

e Supply constraints are also evident in the labour market. Underlying wage
growth is running above pre-COVID levels despite employment being lower
now than in early 2020. Evidence suggests that labour pools have diminished.
Higher wage growth will be a contributory factor to sustained above-target
inflation this year.

e The lower severity of Omicron means that the economic impact should be
limited. The UK economy had a weak Q4 2021 due to the virus, but growth is
likely to bounce back in Q1 2022.

e However, higher inflation will dampen demand. In the UK, households face a
difficult outlook. Fiscal and monetary headwinds alongside a sharp reduction in
real income growth will weigh on disposable income, ultimately leading to
slower growth.

e The Bank of England will tighten policy further over the next few months to
ensure that aggregate demand slows to reduce business pricing power and
labour wage bargaining power. Markets have priced in a significant rise in Bank
Rate, but we believe the MPC will be more cautious given the medium term
outlook, assessing the impact of the first round of rises rather than following the
market higher.

e Bond yields have risen sharply to accommodate tighter monetary policy,
including the run off of central bank bond portfolios. The interplay between
slowing growth and falling inflation, and tightening policy, will likely keep yields
relatively flat.

Forecast:
e The MPC will raise Bank rate further to dampen aggregate demand and reduce
the risk of sustained higher inflation.
¢ Arlingclose therefore expects Bank Rate to rise to 0.75% in March and 1.0% in
May. Despite this expectation, risks to the forecast remain weighted to the



Page 184 Agenda Item 11

upside for 2022, becoming more balanced over time. The Arlingclose central
forecast remains below the market forward curve.

e Gilt yields will remain broadly flat from current levels, which have risen sharply
since mid-December 2021. Significant volatility is, however, likely which should
offer tactical opportunities for borrowing and investment.

e The risks around the gilt yield forecasts are broadly balanced. While gilt yields
may face downward pressure as Bank Rate expectations ease from current
levels, the run off of the Bank’s corporate bond portfolio, and later the gilt
portfolio, as it reverses QE, could impact some upward pressure on yields.

Feb-22 Mar-22  Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24
Official Bank Rate
Upside risk 0.00| 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50/ 0.50, 0.50 0.50| 0.50
Arlingclose Central Case 0.50, 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.000 1.00| 1.00 1.00, 1.00
Downside risk 0.00] -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25| -0.25| -0.25] -0.50] -0.50] -0.50/ -0.50/ -0.50] -0.50
3-month money market ri
Upside risk 0.00| 0.05 0.20 0.35 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50f 0.50, 0.50 0.50| 0.50
Arlingclose Central Case 0.50, 0.85 1.20 1.25 1.15 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10| 1.10 1.10, 1.10
Downside risk 0.00] -0.25 -0.25 -0.30 -0.30) -0.30] -0.35] -0.45] -0.50] -0.50| -0.50] -0.50] -0.50
5yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00f 0.35 0.45 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55| 0.55| 0.55 0.55| 0.55
Arlingclose Central Case 1.22) 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.15 1.15 1.15 1.15 1.15) 1.15
Downside risk 0.00] -0.20 -0.25 -0.25 -0.30, -0.35| -0.40] -0.50] -0.50] -0.50| -0.50/ -0.50| -0.50
10yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00f 0.40 0.45 0.55 0.60 0.65 0.65 0.70 0.70/ 0.70, 0.70 0.70, 0.70
Arlingclose Central Case 1.37] 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35| 1.35
Downside risk 0.00] -0.20 -0.30 -0.35 -0.40, -0.45| -0.50] -0.55] -0.55| -0.55| -0.60/ -0.60 -0.60
20yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00| 0.40 0.45 0.50 0.55 0.60 0.60 0.65 0.65| 0.65| 0.65 0.65| 0.65
Arlingclose Central Case 1.54) 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55| 1.55
Downside risk 0.00] -0.30 -0.35 -0.40 -0.40, -0.45| -0.45| -0.50, -0.50, -0.50/ -0.50/ -0.50| -0.50
50yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00| 0.40 0.45 0.50 0.55 0.60 0.60 0.65 0.65| 0.65| 0.65 0.65| 0.65
Arlingclose Central Case 1.22) 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20) 1.20
Downside risk 0.00| -0.30 -0.35 -0.40 -0.40, -0.45| -0.45| -0.50, -0.50| -0.50| -0.50| -0.50| -0.50

PWLB Standard Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 1.00%
PWLB Certainty Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.80%
UKIB Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.60%



Page 185 Agenda Item 11

Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position

Actual Average
Portfolio Rate
£m %
External borrowing:

Public Works Loan Board 98.9 3.35
Barclays 5.0 4.71
Total gross external debt 103.9 3.42
Total treasury investments 34.0 0.11

Net debt 69.9




Page 186 Agenda Item 11

Appendix C - Redditch Borough Council
Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2022/23
Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2022/23

Where the Authority finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources
to repay that debt in later years. The amount charged to the revenue budget for the
repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although there
has been no statutory minimum since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 requires
the Authority to have regard to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (the MHCLG Guidance)
most recently issued in 2018.

The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is
financed over a period that is either reasonably commensurate with that over which
the capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing supported by
Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period
implicit in the determination of that grant.

The MHCLG Guidance requires the Authority to approve an Annual MRP Statement
each year and recommends a number of options for calculating a prudent amount of
MRP. The following statement incorporates options recommended in the Guidance
and a locally determined approach to loans to third parties and asset backed capital
expenditure where there are detailed plans in place to demonstrate that all expenditure
will be recovered from income streams generated by the expenditure in an appropriate
timeline.

e For capital expenditure incurred before 1t April 2008 MRP will be determined as
4% of the capital financing requirement in respect of that expenditure on an annuity
basis.

e For unsupported capital expenditure incurred after 315t March 2008, MRP will be
determined by charging the expenditure over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset as the principal repayment on an annuity with an annual interest rate
of 4%, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. MRP on purchases
of freehold land will be charged over 50 years. MRP on expenditure not related to
fixed assets but which has been capitalised by regulation or direction will be
charged over 20 years.

e For assets acquired by leases, MRP will be determined as being equal to the
element of the rent or charge that goes to write down the balance sheet liability.

e For capital expenditure loans to third parties that are repaid in annual or more
frequent instalments of principal, the Council will make nil MRP, but will instead
apply the capital receipts arising from principal repayments to reduce the capital
financing requirement instead. In years where there is no principal repayment,
MRP will be charged in accordance with the MRP policy for the assets funded by
the loan, including where appropriate, delaying MRP until the year after the assets



Page 187 Agenda Item 11

become operational. While this is not one of the options in the MHCLG Guidance,
it is thought to be a prudent approach since it ensures that the capital expenditure
incurred on the loan is fully funded over the life of the assets.

e No MRP will be charged in respect of assets held within the Housing Revenue
Account.

e Where the council makes a capital contribution or loan to another entity or where
responsibility for a council asset with borrowing attached is transferred to a third
party, and

o the payments are appropriately covered by assets

o there are detailed plans demonstrating that all the expenditure will be
recovered in an appropriately short time frame

Then no MRP will be set aside. To ensure that this remains a prudent approach the
Council will review the expenditure and income regularly to determine if the income or
asset values have decreased to the point that MRP needs to be provided for. Should
evidence emerge which suggests the expenditure will no longer be recovered MRP
will be provided for.

e Where the council uses internal borrowing and receipts of rental income are greater
than the MRP calculated then as there are sufficient revenues to repay the capital
cost no MRP will be set aside.

Capital expenditure incurred during 2022/23 will not be subject to a MRP charge until
2023/24.

Based on the Authority’s latest estimate of its capital financing requirement (CFR) on
31t March 2022, the budget for MRP has been set as follows:

31.03.2022 2022/23
Estimated Estimated
CFR MRP
£m £
Unsupported capital expenditure after
31.03.2008 19.8 910
Total General Fund
Assets in the Housing Revenue Account 23.3
HRA subsidy reform payment 98.9
Total Housing Revenue Account 122.2 0
Total 143.0 910




Page 188 Agenda Item 11

Appendix D - Policy for Flexible use of Capital Receipts Purpose

1. This report reviews the statutory guidance on the flexible use of Capital Receipts
and its application within this authority.

Background

2. Capital receipts can only be used for specific purposes and these are set out in
Regulation 23 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)
Regulations 2003 made under Section 11 of the Local Government Act 2003. The
main permitted purpose is to fund capital expenditure and the use of capital receipts
to support revenue expenditure is not permitted by the regulations.

3. The Secretary of State is empowered to issue Directions allowing expenditure
incurred by local authorities to be treated as capital expenditure. Where such a
direction is made, the specified expenditure can then be funded from capital receipts
under the Regulations.

4. The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government has issued
guidance in March 2016, giving local authorities greater freedoms with how capital
receipts can be used to finance expenditure. This Direction allows for the following
expenditure to be treated as capital,

“‘expenditure on any project that is designed to generate ongoing revenue savings in
the delivery of public services and/or transform service delivery to reduce costs
and/or transform service delivery in a way that reduces costs or demand for services
in future years for any of the public sector delivery partners.”

5. In order to comply with this Direction, the Council must consider the Statutory
Guidance issued by the Secretary of State. This Guidance requires authorities to
prepare, publish and maintain a Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy with the
initial strategy being effective from 1st April 2016 with future Strategies included
within future Annual Budget documents.

6. There is no prescribed format for the strategy, the underlying principle is to
support local authorities to deliver more efficient and sustainable services by
extending the use of capital receipts to support the revenue costs of reform projects

7. The Statutory Guidance for the Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy states
that the Strategy should include a list of each project which plans to make use of the
capital receipts flexibility, together with the expected savings that the project will
realise. The Strategy should also include the impact of this flexibility on the
affordability of borrowing by including updated Prudential Indicators.

Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strateqy

8. The Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy is set out below

9. Government has provided a definition of expenditure which qualifies to be funded
from capital receipts. This is: “Qualifying expenditure is expenditure on any project
that is designed to generate ongoing revenue savings in the delivery of public
services and/or transform service delivery to reduce costs and/or transform service



Page 189 Agenda Item 11

delivery in a way that reduces costs or demand for services in future years for any of
the public sector delivery partners. Within this definition, it is for individual local
authorities to decide whether or not a project qualifies for the flexibility.”

10. The Council's does not intend to use capital receipts for this purpose in
2022/23.

Impact on Prudential Indicators

11. The guidance requires that the impact on the Council’'s Prudential Indicators
should be considered when preparing a Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy.

12. The indicators that will be impacted by this strategy are none. The scheme is
currently funded from capital receipts and the new planned use of capital receipts will
be funded from capital receipts which are currently unallocated.

13. The Prudential Indicators show that this Strategy is affordable and will not impact
on the Council’s operational and authorised borrowing limits.

Investment Strategy Report 2022/23



Page 190 Agenda Item 11

Introduction
The Authority invests its money for three broad purposes:

e because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for example
when income is received in advance of expenditure (known as treasury
management investments),

e to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other
organisations (service investments), and

e to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where this is
the main purpose).

This investment strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued by the
government in January 2018, and focuses on the second and third of these categories.

Treasury Management Investments

The Authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) before
it pays for its expenditure in cash (e.g. through payroll and invoices). It also holds
reserves for future expenditure and collects local taxes on behalf of other local
authorities and central government. These activities, plus the timing of borrowing
decisions, lead to a cash surplus which is invested in accordance with guidance from
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The balance of treasury
management investments is expected to fluctuate between £20m and £40m during
the 2022/23 financial year.

Contribution: The contribution that these investments make to the objectives of the
Authority is to support effective treasury management activities.

Further details: Full details of the Authority’s policies and its plan for 2022/23 for
treasury management investments are covered in a separate document, the treasury
management strategy.

Service Investments: Loans

Contribution: The Council may in future lend money to its subsidiaries and local
businesses to support local public services and stimulate local economic growth.

Security: The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable
to repay the principal lent and/or the interest due. In order to limit this risk, and ensure
that total exposure to service loans remains proportionate to the size of the Authority,
upper limits on the outstanding loans to each category of borrower have been set as
follows:

Table 1: Loans for service purposes in £ millions
31.3.2021 actual 2022/23




Page 191 Agenda Item 11

Category of Balance Loss Net Approved
borrower owing allowance | figurein Limit
accounts
Subsidiaries 0 0 0 5
Local businesses 0 0 0 0.5
TOTAL 0 0 0 5.5

Accounting standards require the Authority to set aside loss allowance for loans,
reflecting the likelihood of non-payment. The figures for loans in the Authority’s
statement of accounts are shown net of this loss allowance. However, the Authority
makes every reasonable effort to collect the full sum lent and has appropriate credit
control arrangements in place to recover overdue repayments.

Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and
whilst holding service loans by using specialist advice to understand the market and
the potential future demands of the market and the customers in it. It will also use
benchmarking data from the market to determine future potential risks which need to
be planned for. External advice is only sought from credible sources eg acknowledged
experts in their fields, and officers ensure that they fully understand any information
given to them before decision or advice is taken.

Commercial Investments: Property

Contribution: The Authority will invest in regeneration schemes such at Towns Fund
but not for purely commercial reasons. Decisions on commercial investments,
including for Regeneration reasons, are made in line with the criteria and limits
approved by council in the investment strategy. Property investments are also capital
expenditure and decisions will therefore also be approved as part of the capital
programme. As set out in the Capital Strategy it invested in offices at Oak Tree Part in
2019 for regenerative purposes. Fully let these premises will generate £76k per
annum.

Table 3: Property held for regenerative and investment purposes in £ millions

Property Actual 31.3.2021 actual 31.3.2022 expected
Purchase | Gains or | Valuein | Gains or | Valuein
cost (losses) | accounts | (losses) |accounts
Oak Tree Park 0.9 n/a 0.9 0 0.9

Towns Fund

TOTAL 0.9 - 0.9 0 0.9




Page 192 Agenda Item 11

Security: In accordance with government guidance, the Authority considers a property
investment to be secure if its accounting valuation is at or higher than its purchase
cost including taxes and transaction costs.

Where value in accounts is at or above purchase cost: A fair value assessment of
the Authority’s investment property portfolio has been made within the past twelve
months, and the underlying assets provide security for capital investment. Should the
2021/22 year end accounts preparation and audit process value these properties
below their purchase cost, then an updated investment strategy will be presented to
full council detailing the impact of the loss on the security of investments and any
revenue consequences arising therefrom.

Where value in accounts is below purchase cost: The fair value of the Authority’s
investment property portfolio is no longer sufficient to provide security against loss,
and the Authority is therefore taking mitigating actions to protect the capital invested.
These actions include Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss
before entering into and whilst holding property investments by involving specialist
advisors with expertise in the type of property being purchased, looking at historic data
and speaking to other councils undertaking similar activities.

Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and
whilst holding property investments by use of consultants and experts in those service
areas.

Liquidity: Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell
and convert to cash at short notice, and can take a considerable period to sell in certain
market conditions. To ensure that the invested funds can be accessed when they are
needed, for example to repay capital borrowed, the Authority ensures that properties
purchased are in an active market where there is demonstrable demand to ensure that
the authority does not purchase assets which it will not be able to sell on at a later
date.

Capacity, Skills and Culture

Elected members and statutory officers: Member training will take place annually
as part of the induction process. External advisors will provide reports to support
investment decisions with officers ensuring that they fully understand them and can
relate them to the strategic objectives and risk profile of the authority.

Commercial deals: Significant work has been undertaken using external advisors and
relevant training courses have been attended to ensure that officers are fully aware of
the code and statutory requirements of a local authority which is investing.

KPMG have developed a modelling tool for the authority to use when assessing
potential purchases as a precursor to engaging with external consultants to ensure
that potential purchases are likely to make sense from the perspective of the authority
before incurring advisor costs. However, following an internal review of policy, it has



Page 193 Agenda Item 11

been decided that the council may wish to make purchases which do not make a
financial return or may indeed make a loss in the short term. On these occasions a
business case will be developed which specifies the non-financial benefits of the
investment. These are likely to be regenerative schemes for the greater good of the
area with an intended long term impact. The regenerative and redevelopment benefits
which will flow from the investment will be taken into account in the development of
the business case, so if the net investment yield falls below 0.75% it can still proceed
if these benefits are deemed to outweigh the lower than target yield.

Corporate governance: when investment decisions are to be made, they are to be
led by the Council’'s Executive Director of Finance in consultation with the Corporate
Management Team. They will assess the potential investment opportunity, consulting
North Worcestershire Economic Development and Regeneration (NWEDR) and using
the KPMG finance appraisal model, and should they decide it presents a strong
opportunity for the authority and complies with the relevant criteria a conditional offer
can be made. A business case will then be developed and presented ensuring that
once greater detall is included, it makes a satisfactory income yield and/or economic
redevelopment and regeneration impact. When the business case is completed, if it is
still compliant with the council criteria, it will be presented to Executive for approval
before purchase is completed.

Investment opportunity identified

Initial screening (NWEDR/KPMG model)

High level opportunity assesment (NWEDR/Finance)

Pre offer evaluation (KPMG model/Savills initial report)

Conditional offer (Executive Director of Finance)

Full business case [Presented to Executive)

Member approval (Executive)

Proceed

Once a purchase has been made the Executive Director of Finance will provide
quarterly updates, in line with budget monitoring reports on the status of the
investment.



Page 194 Agenda Item 11

Investment Indicators

The Authority has set the following quantitative indicators to allow elected members
and the public to assess the Authority’s total risk exposure as a result of its investment
decisions.

Total risk exposure: The first indicator shows the Authority’s total exposure to
potential investment losses. This includes amounts the Authority is contractually
committed to lend but have yet to be drawn down and guarantees the Authority has
issued over third party loans.

Table 5: Total investment exposure in £millions

) 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2023

Total investment exposure
Actual Forecast Forecast

Treasury management 0 30 10
investments
Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Commercial investments: 0.9 09 09
Property
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 0 0 0
TOTAL EXPOSURE 0.6 0.9 10.9

How investments are funded: Government guidance is that these indicators should
include how investments are funded. Since the Authority does not normally associate
particular assets with particular liabilities, this guidance is difficult to comply with.
However, the following investments could be described as being funded by borrowing.
The remainder of the Authority’s investments are funded by usable reserves and
income received in advance of expenditure.

Table 6: Investments funded by borrowing in £millions

Investments funded by 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2023
borrowing Actual Forecast | Forecast
Treasury management 0 0 0
investments

Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Commercial investments: 0 0 0
Property

TOTAL FUNDED BY 0 0 0
BORROWING




Page 195 Agenda Item 11

Rate of return received: This indicator shows the investment income received less
the associated costs, including the cost of borrowing where appropriate, as a
proportion of the sum initially invested. Note that due to the complex local government
accounting framework, not all recorded gains and losses affect the revenue account

in the year they are incurred.

Table 7: Investment rate of return (net of all costs) %

Investments net rate of 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

return Actual Forecast Forecast

Treasury management 0.11% 0.11% 0.11%

investments

Service investments: Loans 0% 0% 0%

Commercial investments: 0% 0% 0%

Property

ALL INVESTMENTS 0.11% 0.11% 0.11%

Table 8: Other investment indicators

Indicator 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Forecast Forecast

Debt to net service 1205% 1218% 1279%

expenditure ratio

Commercial income to 0.7% 0.7% 0.7%

net service expenditure

ratio




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 197 Agenda Item 12

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee
14t April

2022
RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Rouse Portfolio Holder for

Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Peter Carpenter

Report Author Job Title: James Howse

Contact
email:;james.howse @bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 0152764252

Wards Affected All
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) All

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s) of Part |
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to note the update and endorse the way
forward.

2. BACKGROUND

Context

2.1 In 2018/19, an audit of Risk Management provided an assurance level
of “limited”, due to weaknesses in the design and inconsistent
application of controls.

2.2  Areview was then commissioned to further consider the Council’s risk
management arrangements and a Risk Management Strategy was
developed.

2.3  Afollow-up review was carried out by Internal Audit in March 2021. At
that time there was a lack of evidence that the actions within the Risk
Management Strategy had been fully completed and embedded within
the Council and therefore no assurance could be given.



Page 198 Agenda Item 12

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards
Committee

14t April
2022

At this time an action plan was agreed with management which
focused on the following areas:

. Understanding risk appetite

. Review the strategy and the way risks are identified

. Review the current 4risk system

. Provide training

. Consideration of the Role of Risk Champions

. Aligning processes so that risk is considered as part of

management decision making

Update

2.4 While risk registers are in place and are used, and while all decisions
do consider risk and risk mitigation (as demonstrated by the
requirement to report on risk implications in all reports), progress in
implementing all the above actions (aimed at embedding a more
consistent risk management framework) have stalled during the
2021/22 financial year. This is primarily as a result of pressures within
the Finance Team (where the corporate coordination responsibility for
risk currently sits).

2.5 The Finance Team have experienced a significant number of vacancy
and capacity issues. Workload has also increased during Covid-19 with
circa £59m of Covid related government grants being paid to
businesses. The implementation of a new Finance System has also
been a priority over the past year which has inevitably diverted
resources. Critically also, the Risk and Insurance Officer was
redeployed during the year to focus on the priority areas of income and
payment processes.

2.6 The recent follow up review undertaken by Internal Audit has confirmed
that more needs to be done to progress previously agreed actions
aimed at embedding best practice risk management processes.

2.7  The Corporate Management Team (CMT) therefore considered a
report on the way forward in March 2022, and agreed a set of actions
as set out below as an important first step to regaining momentum in
this area.

2.8 CMT agreed actions and way forward




Page 199 Agenda Item 12

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards
Committee

14t April
2022

e Risk Champions to be identified for each department

e Data quality checks to be undertaken on current risk registers

e Officer Risk Board to be put in place to drive forward improvements
(1%t one to take place on 8" April)

e Update CMT on Progress and present draft updated Risk Register

e Officer Group to update Risk Register and formally report for CMT on
a quarterly basis and consider other system and process
improvements.

e Prepare updated reports for next cycle of ASG.

2.9  Following the above CMT will consider what further resources
(including training and development) are required.

2.10 This is also an opportunity to involve the member risk champion.
Consequently, the Executive Director of Resources will meet with
member champion to discuss progress on the above actions later in the
month.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 None ldentified.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations state that “A
local government body shall ensure that its financial management is
adequate and effective and that it has a sound system of internal
control which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and
includes arrangements for the management of risk”.

4.2  Implementing the actions set out in this report will demonstrate
compliance with this legislative requirement.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1  Good risk management underpins the Council Plan.



Page 200 Agenda Item 12

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards
Committee

14t April
2022

Climate Change Implications

5.2  No direct implications identified.

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 No direct implications identified.

Operational Implications

6.2 As setoutin the report and Appendix 1.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 As setoutin the report.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.



Page 201 Agenda Item 12

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance & Standards

Committee
14t April
2022
9. REPORT SIGN OFF
Department Name and Job Title Date
Councillor Mike Rouse 23/3/22
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Finance

James Howse, Exec Director 23/2/22
Lead Director / Head of

Service

Peter Carpenter, Interim Head | 23/3/22
Financial Services of Service

Clare Flanagan, Principal 23/3/22
Legal Services Solicitor

N/A
Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

N/A

Climate Change Officer (if
climate change
implications apply)




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 203 Agenda Item 13

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance

& Standards Committee 14 April

2022

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee — Independent Member

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Councillor Mike Rouse - Portfolio
Holder for Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Yes

Relevant Head of Service

Peter Carpenter, Interim Head of
Financial and Customer Services

Report Author
James Howse

Job Title: Executive Director of Resources
Contact email:
james.howse@bromsgoveandredditch.gov.uk

Contact Tel: 01527 64252 Ext: 1205

Wards Affected N/A
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) An Effective and Sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

advance of the meeting.

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee is asked to
agree one of the following options:

1) RESOLVE that the position of Independent Member of the
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee be advertised as
an unpaid, non-voting voluntary position; OR

2) RECOMMEND that the Council allocate an allowance to be paid
to the position of Independent Member of the Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee and this position
should be advertised as a non-voting position; OR

3) RESOLVE that no further action be taken to appoint an
Independent Member to serve on the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee.


mailto:james.howse@bromsgoveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 204 Agenda Item 13

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance

& Standards Committee 14 April
2022

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 In December 2013 an Independent Member was appointed to serve on
the Council’s then Audit and Governance Committee.

2.2  This Independent Member remained in post when the Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee was formed by combining the
former Audit and Governance Committee with the then Standards
Committee. He was subsequently reappointed for a further four-year
term in February 2018. However, the Independent Member resigned
from this position in July 2018.

2.3 InJanuary 2020, Members agreed that the position of Independent
Member of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee should be
advertised for recruitment. Members were advised at the time that the
post holder would not receive remuneration for the role, although could
claim travel expenses.

2.4  In September 2020, the position of Independent Member of the Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee was advertised through the
Council’s recruitment process. No applications were received from any
potential candidates for the position.

2.5 At a meeting of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee held
in November 2020, Members noted that the recruitment campaign had
been unsuccessful and agreed that the potential to recruit an
Independent Member should be reviewed each year.

2.7  The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee subsequently
considered the potential to appoint an Independent Member to serve
on the Committee at a meeting held in October 2021. Further
information on this subject, including the approach adopted by other
Councils in respect of recruiting an Independent Member, was
requested and it was agreed that this should be reported for Members’
consideration at the last meeting of the Committee in the 2021/22
municipal year.



Page 205 Agenda Item 13

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance

& Standards Committee 14 April
2022

2.8  Officers have reviewed the options available in terms of the potential to
appoint an Independent Member to serve on the Audit, Governance
and Standards Committee. Members are invited to consider which
option they feel is the most appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 To date, the Independent Member position on the Audit, Governance
and Standards Committee has been an unpaid, voluntary post although
reimbursement for travelling expenses can be made.

3.2  Should Members support option 2, whereby the Independent Member
would receive remuneration for the role, this would need to be referred
to Council for approval due to the financial implications for the
authority. The level of remuneration would need to be determined,
although it is suggested that this should be less that the basic
allowance for Members of £4,732 per annum in the 2022/23 municipal
year.

3.3 Members are asked to note that, should they choose either option 1 or
option 2 this will have financial implications for the Council arising from
the costs entailed in undertaking a recruitment process. These costs
are estimated to be in the region of £1,000.

3.4 Should Members opt for option 3, which would be to not recruit an
Independent Member to serve on the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee, this would have no financial implications for the
Council.

3.5 ltis anticipated that the level of interest in the role should it be
advertised, and the quality of any applications to the role of
independent member, would be influenced by the level of remuneration
offered.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The constitution of the Council states “the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee shall be entitled to appoint a number of people
as non-voting co-optees”.



Page 206 Agenda Item 13

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance

& Standards Committee 14 April
2022

4.2 Independent members of the Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee do not have voting rights in accordance with Section 13 of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1 In choosing an option, Members are asked to consider which approach
they feel would best enable the authority to demonstrate that it is an
effective and sustainable Council.

Climate Change Implications

5.2  There are no specific climate change implications.

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 There are no specific equalities and diversity implications.

Operational Implications

6.2 The appointment of an Independent Member to serve on a local Audit
Committee is considered by CIPFA to be best practice.

6.3 Different approaches are adopted by different Councils across the
country in terms of the appointment of an Independent Member to
serve on their Audit Committees.

6.4  In Worcestershire, Wychavon District Council and Wyre Forest District
Council both have an Independent Member appointed to their Audit
Committees, whilst Bromsgrove District Council, Malvern Hills District
Council, Worcester City Council and Worcestershire County Council do
not currently have an Independent Member serving on their Audit
Committees.



Page 207
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda Iltem 13

Audit, Governance

& Standards Committee 14 April
2022
6.5 There can potentially be both positive implications and challenges
arising from the appointment of an Independent Member to serve on a
Council’'s Audit Committee. Some of these implications are detailed in
the table below:
Potential Positive Implications | Potential Challenges
An Independent Member can The potential for overreliance on
bring additional knowledge and the Independent Member by
expertise to the Committee. other members of the Committee
resulting in a lack of engagement
across the Committee.
An Independent Member can Lack of organisational knowledge
help to reinforce the may impact on the value of their
independence and neutrality of contribution. It is difficult to verify
the Committee. independence / neutrality prior to
appointment and is possible that
motivations that are not in the
best interests of the Council.
An Independent Member can The need for Members and
help to maintain continuity in Officers to spend time building
membership of the Committee, constructive working
which may otherwise change relationships with the
following local elections. Independent Member could be
resource intensive.
6.6  Should Members agree that a new appointment should be made, it

6.7

would be necessary to establish an interview panel, consisting of 4
elected members from amongst the Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee membership, with delegated authority to interview
candidates for the position of independent member.

Previously Members agreed that it was reasonable to follow guidance
as currently in place for appointment to the independent remuneration
panel to appoint to the role. The criteria for appointments is that

independent members cannot be:

e a member of any local authority in the area (including Parish

Council)




Page 208 Agenda Item 13

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance

& Standards Committee 14 April
2022

e disqualified from being an elected member of a local authority

e a member of any committee or sub-committee of the local
authority, including being a co-opted member

e a member of a political party to ensure independence

e arelative or close friend of a Member or employee of the
Council

6.8  Members of Feckenham Parish Council have previously served as
non-voting co-opted members on the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee to speak on standards matters. Whilst currently
there is no Parish Councillor serving as a co-opted member of the
Committee, there remains an open invitation to Parish Councillors from
Feckenham Parish Council to serve in this capacity.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee plays an important
role in good governance including risk management.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Report in respect of the appointment of an Independent Member
considered by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 7t
March 2019.



Page 209 Agenda Item 13

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit, Governance

& Standards Committee 14 April
2022

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Councillor Mike Rouse — March 2022
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Finance

and Enabling

James Howse — Executive March 2022
Lead Director / Head of Director
Service

James Howse — Executive March 2022
Financial Services Director

Clare Flanagan — Principal March 2022
Legal Services Solicitor




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 211 Agenda Item 15

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2021-22

April 2022

e Monitoring Officer's Report

e New Model Code of Conduct

e Grant Thornton - External Audit Plan 2020/21
e Grant Thornton - Informing The Audit Risk Assessment
e Grant Thornton - External Audit Sector Update
e Internal Audit Progress Report

e Draft 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan*

e Treasury, Capital, and Investments reports

e Corporate Risk Register

e Review of the Independent Member

e Risk Champion Update

e Committee Work Programme

July 2022

e Standards Regime - Monitoring Officer's Report

e RIPA Report 2022-2023

e Grant Thornton - Housing Benefit 2020/2021 Certification Letter
e Grant Thornton — Progress Report

e Internal Audit - Draft Audit Plan

e Internal Audit — Annual Report 2021-2022

e General Dispensation Report

e Risk Register Update

e Annual Appointment of the Risk Champion

e Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme



Page 212 Agenda Item 15

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

*to be considered at the July meeting




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Monitoring Officer's Report - Standards Regime
	6 New Model Code of Conduct
	2022 Code agreed by DLG 16.12.2021cf

	7 Grant Thornton - External Audit Sector Update
	Redditch Borough Council Sector update report - April 2022

	8 Grant Thornton - External Audit Plan 2020/21
	Redditch Borough Council 2020-21 audit plan

	9 Grant Thornton - Informing The Audit Risk Assessment
	Informing the audit risk assessment 2020-21 - Redditch Borough Council

	10 Internal Audit Progress Report
	11 Capital Strategy 2022/23 incorporating the Treasury Management Strategy
	Combined Appendices - Redditch Final_JH April 22 fin

	12 Risk Management Report
	13 Review of the Independent Member
	15 Committee Work Programme

